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CHAIRMAN'’S
STATEMENT

C RS

On behalf of the board (the “Board”)
of directors (the “Directors”) of
Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings
Company Limited (the “Company” or
“Zhou Hei Ya"), | am pleased to present
the annual report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “we")
for the year ended December 31, 2023.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Dear Shareholders:

In 2023, the global economy recovered slowly, and the Chinese economy
posted good momentum despite pressures. The year 2023 marks the first
year since the lifting of COVID-19 restrictions. As public travel resumed,
we witnessed a gradual resurgence of human traffic, accompanied
by a partial return of online traffic to offline channels, injecting new
vitality into the market. However, amidst the triple economic pressures
of shrinking demand, disrupted supply and weakening expectations,
the public consumption environment and habits have also undergone
profound changes. Due to the challenges of slack consumer demand and
weakened consumer confidence, consumer brands operating within the
consumption upgrade cycle need to adapt to industry trends and embrace
changes to achieve a soft landing amid consumption differentiation.

Looking back to 2023, Zhou Hei Ya closely followed changes in
the consumer industry, adeptly adjusted its business strategies, and
endeavored to improve its operational quality against considerable cost
increases and intricate external challenges. In terms of store expansion,
we concentrated on stores located in transportation hubs to enhance their
operational efficiency. In terms of products, we aligned our strategies
with consumer preferences and introduced cost-effective new products
and packages. In terms of channel expansion, we proactively operated
emerging online platforms and channels to expand our consumer reach.
Meanwhile, we remained steadfast in meeting our highest standards in
quality, flavors and services. On the supply chain side, we prioritized cost
reduction, efficiency improvement and refined operations, and promoted
the full-link collaboration, laying a foundation for our business growth.

In 2023, quality remained paramount in our expansion efforts. In response
to evolving market conditions, we actively adjusted the strategies on
opening new stores, expanding the layout of stores in transportation hubs
and high-potential business zones based on the development trends of
different channels, with a view to optimizing and upgrading the structure
of our store network and strengthening our channel advantages. As
of December 31, 2023, the Group had a total of 3,816 retail stores. In
2023, our channel layout was more targeted. Based on our judgments of
changes in consumer market trends, we improved the strategic layouts
of both online and offline channels to foster multi-channel synergy,
implementing refined management tailored to different channels, aiming
to achieve optimal operational results and drive business growth. Flexible
supply chain remains our consistent production philosophy. In 2023,
we prioritized the three core strategies of “supply assurance, quality
Relying
on the continuous and dynamic optimization of logistics network, the

improvement, and cost reduction and efficiency enhancement.”

upgrades to the OCM management mechanism and other measures, we
effectively mitigated the impact of rising raw material costs on gross profit
margin and maintained a sound gross profit margin.
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Chairman’s Statement = [E¥RE

Brand and product strengths are the core fundamentals of the Company.
Under the strategies of product diversification and brand rejuvenation,
we continued to attract young consumers in line with market trends
and endeavored to enhance our brand influence and competitiveness,
with a view to winning the favor of consumers amidst increasing market
competition. On the one hand, in an effort to horizontally expand
categories and flavors and vertically extend the price range, the Group
has introduced a variety of cost-effective new products and packages and
made great effort to build a product matrix catering to the diversified
consumer needs. On the other hand, the Group implemented the brand
rejuvenation strategy, and attracted more Generation Z consumers
through co-branding activities and fun interactions, unleashing the vitality
of brand rejuvenation. Meanwhile, the Group has steadfastly upheld its
commitment to quality, and constantly optimized its products and services
to promote the high-quality development of the Group.

Despite the external environment has been challenging in recent years,
the experiences and trials throughout the year have instilled Zhou Hei Ya
with greater stability, composure, and resilience. At the same time, we
are confident in the Chinese economy and market, as well as the growth
potential of the braised food market. In the coming year, we will follow
our established strategy with unwavering confidence to cope with the
differentiated consumer market and capitalize on our foreseeable business
development to address unpredictable changes, becoming a long-term
leader in the braised food industry. We will continue to promote the dual-
drive mode of “self-operation + franchise”, consolidate our advantages in
high-potential channels, and enhance the quality of store operations. We
will also persist in promoting product innovation to capture online and
offline opportunities, and make all-out and concerted efforts to create
unique braised Chinese food based on our values of “being open-minded,
pragmatic, honest and trustworthy”, thus providing more delicious,
healthy and convenient braised food for our consumers. Meanwhile,
we will remain committed to exploring new consumption scenarios and
creating new growth poles to enhance the resilience of the Company.
Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to all employees of Zhou Hei Ya, all Shareholders, consumers and partners
for your consistent support. The year 2024 stands as the most pivotal
year for Zhou Hei Ya to achieve a soft landing. Despite a complex and
severe external environment, we will strive to secure a stable soft landing
for our flagship brands and will explore expanding the casual braised
and table braised two-in-one new store model. We are well prepared to
tackle challenges and capture opportunities, and are poised to maintain
sustainable development and deliver outstanding results in the future!

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW
AND OUTLOOK

XI5 BN RE

Looking forward to 2024, difficulties and challenges will remain, but the general trend of stable economic recovery
and long-term improvement will remain unchanged. Looking back on the past years, the consumer industry has
weathered numerous challenges and ushered in growth and expansion amidst evolving changes. In the short term,
the consumer confidence of residents is still in the process of rebuilding, and the development of the consumer
market faces significant uncertainty as well. However, in the medium to long term, the Group believes that the
overall consumption environment will gradually rebound amid fluctuations. In the future, the Group will continue
to maintain its strategic determination and is prepared to move forward against difficulties and pursue steady
expansion. Meanwhile, the Group will uphold a consumer-centric approach and further fortify its products, brands
and channels to continuously drive the improvement of both operating efficiency and service quality.
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Business Review and Outlook

XFERERRE

MARKET OVERVIEW

Looking back to 2023, the global economy saw a gradual recovery
amidst ongoing fluctuations. However, emerging challenges such as
inflationary pressures, adjustments in monetary policies and geopolitical
risks continued to reshape the global industrial landscape and business
rules. Despite facing numerous difficulties, China’s overall economy
demonstrated a sustained growth momentum due to the implementation
of a series of policies to stabilize growth.

Although there is an overall upturn in China’s consumer market in
2023, the recovery of residents’ purchasing power and confidence is still
relatively slow, leading to noticeable structural disparities in consumer
demand. On one hand, the consumer demand in discretionary spending
has slowed down under the backdrop of subdued income expectations,
with more prudent consumption preference and pursuing products
that are more affordable and offer the best value for their money.
On the other hand, as the trend of consumption upgrading persisted,
consumers increasingly prioritized the fulfillment of personal value and
the satisfaction of inner demand as well as the growing emphasis on
experiences and services. Furthermore, with the development of the
Internet, the accelerated integration of online and offline channels and
the rapid development of emerging social media platforms, the overall
shopping experience for consumers also continued to improve.

In the new consumption patterns, companies in the consumer industry
must adapt to the industry trend, proactively embrace change and seek
for new market opportunities amid pressures and challenges. At the same
time, in the face of intricate and ever-evolving economic landscape and
increasing industry competition, enterprises should remain committed
to a “people-oriented” approach, prioritize core consumer groups
and thoroughly understand and satisfy consumers’ evolving needs to
constantly seek for innovation and growth and capture consumers’
attention with innovative, high-quality and distinctive products, achieving
long-term sustainable development.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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OVERALL BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Retail Store Network Expansion and Optimization

In 2023, the Group continued to promote the “self-operation +
franchise” dual-drive model and bolster the market presence of offline
stores, and proactively refined its overall operation by optimizing some
underperforming stores. As of December 31, 2023, the Group had a total
of 3,816 retail stores, including 1,720 self-operated retail stores and 2,096
franchised retail stores, covering 331 cities in 28 provinces, autonomous
regions and municipalities in China.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of the number of self-operated
and franchised retail stores and the revenue contribution by geographic
location for the years indicated:

Business Review and Outlook & EIEEN R E

BREEKRIKERE
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TECI=F AEERBEREIBE+ETEE NG
REER - TEIRAGRTPIEMMBLEER - A
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Number of Retail Stores PIEE B
EET
As of December 31,
BEt+t=-A=+-—H
2023 2022
—E-=HF - F
# % # %
B % B %
Central China® Z=eho 1,685 44.2 1,553 453
Southern China® RO 667 17.5 584 17.0
Eastern China® RO 561 14.7 454 13.2
Northern China® ESI0 473 12.4 490 14.3
Western China® PR 430 11.2 348 10.2
Total “RET 3,816 100.0 3,429 100.0
Revenue ez
EET
Year Ended December 31,
BE+t-A=+—HLFE
2023 2022
—E-=F B oF
RMB’000 % RMB’'000 %
ARBFT % ARBTFT %
Central China® RO 1,211,535 53.9 971,709 52.6
Southern China®@ RO 386,110 17.2 341,493 18.5
Eastern China® FEHO 260,403 11.6 211,572 1.4
Northern China® FEit@ 224,145 10.0 187,204 10.1
Western China® FEPHE) 166,798 73 136,280 7.4
Total BET 2,248,991 100.0 1,848,258 100.0
BARBERZERERAR
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The table below sets forth a breakdown of the number of self-operated

Comprises Hubei Province, Hunan Province, Henan Province, Jiangxi Province,

Anhui Province and Shanxi Province.

Comprises Guangdong Province, Fujian Province and Hainan Province.

Comprises Shanghai, Jiangsu Province and Zhejiang Province.

Comprises Beijing, Tianjin, Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, Liaoning
Province, Hebei Province, Shandong Province, Gansu Province, Ningxia Hui

Autonomous Region, and Jilin Province.

Comprises Chongging, Sichuan Province, Shaanxi Province, Guizhou Province,
Yunnan Province, Qinghai Province and Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous

Region.

BiEWHiLE  HEE  TEE  TEE - TRE R

e -

BREERE  BEEAENEEE -

BRELE THEMNIA -

BELLR  XE ARGERR - BEES

AL
LR - HlE - BEEREARREME -

BEER - W)IE - BREE - EMNE - EFEHE
BREAEMHRRAR °

TR BRREL 250 B &ML ER

and franchised retail stores by classification for the periods indicated: JRELE A -
EENT
As of December 31,
BEt=A=t-8H
2023 2022
== “E-CF
Self-operated retail stores Franchised retail stores  Self-operated retail stores  Franchised retail stores
e e g wBitee
# % # % # % # %
%R % 28 % %A % g8 %
Transportation hubs'! Pl 249 14.5 70 33 121 84 57 29
Shopping zones, Commercial complexes &~ B - i
and Supermarkets 913 53.1 1,343 64.1 804 55.6 1,295 65.3
Communities e 243 14.1 602 287 218 15.0 574 289
Others? Hpo 315 183 81 39 303 21.0 57 2.9
Total @t 1,720 100.0 2,09 100.0 1,446 100.0 1,983 100.0
(1) Include stores located in airports and train stations. (1)  BIEMISIE - KEILE -

@

Include stores located in metro stations, school campuses, sightseeing points,

bus terminals and service areas.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2023

@)

BIEBEE  REE - KB - FEWE - REEE -



Amidst the gradual recovery of consumption, the Group strategically
evaluated its position, thereby prioritizing the strategic layout and steady
expansion at transportation hubs with high certainty. Leveraging the
collective strength of its business resources, the Group actively acquired
superior location resources to expand stores, with a view to reinforcing its
competitive advantage in transportation hubs. As of December 31, 2023,
the Group recorded a total of 319 stores located in transportation hubs,
representing a net increase of 141 stores. Due to the evolving business
landscape, changes in consumer preferences and shifts of consumer
traffic, the consumption in shopping zones, supermarkets, commercial
complexes and community channels did not recover as expected, the
Group has undertaken further refinement and optimization of its
experience in stores’ site selection and has conducted careful and prudent
evaluation for the opening of new stores, with a focus on areas with
higher demand such as high-potential shopping zones and commercial
complexes and high-quality communities. Meanwhile, the Group
continued to improve its store operation feedback mechanism, conducted
regular reviews of operational data, and proactively implemented
improvement and optimization measures for low-performing stores to
enhance the efficiency of store operations and foster high-quality business
growth.

In line with the policy of “Community of Common Future”, the
Group fully empowered the operation of franchised stores in terms
of store operations, marketing promotions, and team training and
development. Based on the brand management policy of Zhou Hei Ya
and current development plans for franchised stores, the Group refined
its management strategy for franchised stores to better support their
high-quality development. To cope with the uncertainty of the external
environment and the trend towards more rational consumption, the
Group, on one hand, devised operational enhancement plans tailored
to low-performing stores of franchisees, thus helping franchise partners
in overcoming operational challenges. On the other hand, the Group
implemented refined management of franchised stores based on the
scale and operating results of franchised stores, and provided targeted
optimization plans to each franchisee to optimize their store structure,
thus achieving long-term sustainable development.

Business Review and Outlook ¥f&CIEE N RE
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Diversified Access to Consumers

The Group continued to adhere to its concept of “ubiquitous scenarios,
accessible products and freewheeling consumers”, and actively enhanced
its strategic deployment for online and offline collaboration in 2023. In
addition to offline stores, the Group leveraged various channels, including
online ordering and delivery services, traditional e-commerce platforms,
fresh grocery e-commerce platforms, content e-commerce platforms and
private domain mini-programs, to meet consumers’ multi-dimensional
consumption needs across different times and scenarios, thus achieving
precise consumer coverage through all channels.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, revenue from the Group's online
business, being traditional e-commerce platform, community fresh grocery
platform and emerging e-commerce platform such as live-streaming
business, accounted for 14.4% of its total revenue. In terms of traditional
e-commerce platforms, the increasing shift of traffic to emerging
e-commerce platforms and the intensifying competition for existing traffic
and resources have significantly impacted the traditional e-commerce
platform business. Prioritizing quality and operational efficiency, the
Group adopted measures such as adjusting product portfolios, integrating
platform resources and exploring incremental scenarios to enhance
the expense efficiency and bolster profitability effectively. In terms of
community fresh grocery channels such as Pupu Mall, Dingdong and
Freshippo, the Group further strengthened resource integration, adjusted
product structures to steadily expand its market share through adept
traffic acquisition strategies and refined operations. For the year ended
December 31, 2023, the sales amount (including tax) of community
fresh grocery platform aggregated to approximately RMB148 million.
Meanwhile, the Group continued to explore emerging e-commerce
channels such as short videos and live-streaming platforms, with a view
to continuously improving operational efficiency for sustainable business
growth. The Group optimized its live-streaming matrix and consolidated
live-streaming channels such as Douyin through self-operated live-
streaming and collaborations with top live streamers.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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Meanwhile, the Group is responding to changes in consumer trends
by actively promoting the accelerated integration of online and offline
channels, achieved through delivery services, private domain mini-
programs, and lifestyle service platforms such as Douyin and Meituan,
leveraging both home delivery and in-store business to boost sales at
retails stores. Regarding home delivery services, on the one hand, the
Group focused on the resource allocation on key platforms to maximize
traffic boosting efficiency; on the other hand, the Group delves into
consumer demands, implementing differentiated marketing strategies
across different time periods, scenarios and types of store models,
including themed operations such as the “Eating Day” on Wednesday,
take-out combos, and late-night snack promotions, to solidify the
operational foundation of retail stores and enhance consumer experiences.
At the same time, the Group utilizes private domain mini-programs to
strengthen private traffic operations, optimizing and upgrading the home
delivery business on private domain mini-programs to improve customer
stickiness and loyalty, providing a powerful means of attracting customers
to offline retail stores. For the year ended 2023, the terminal sales amount
(including tax) of online ordering and delivery for all retail stores of the
Group aggregated to approximately RMB853 million, of which the sales
amount (including tax) of terminals during late-night hours aggregated
to RMB133 million. Regarding in-store business, the Group utilizes the
high-quality “Lifestyle Division of Douyin” (B} 4ERT%) and “Meituan
Dianping” (EE255F) to funnel traffic, forming a closed-loop connection
between interest cultivation, online consumption, and offline transactions,
thereby building a new retail ecosystem for retail stores. In 2023, the
Group achieved a GMV of approximately RMB80 million, with over 70%
of online orders being redeemed in-store.
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Product Innovation and Brand Marketing

In 2023, the Group adeptly responded to evolving consumer preferences
by gaining more insights on consumers, constantly developing new flavors
and categories, and crafting a rich and diverse Zhou Hei Ya product
mix to cater to a wide array of consumer needs. Meanwhile, the Group
maintained a steadfast focus on consumers and continuously improved
consumer experience, thus enhancing its overall brand awareness and
influence.

In terms of product research and development, the Group continued to
optimize its product structure, horizontally expand categories and flavors,
and vertically extend the price range, thereby creating a comprehensive
Zhou Hei Ya product matrix. Relying on its full life-cycle new product
research and development system, the Group successfully launched
products spanning multiple price ranges, categories and channels, so as
to broaden its consumer base and bolster the market presence of Zhou
Hei Ya. In 2023, the Group concentrated efforts on its premium product
series, and developed and launched a new flavor of slightly spicy series,
with terminal sales (including tax) of approximately RMB521 million.
Meanwhile, the Group also expand the medium and low price ranges, and
introduced a series of products at a price range of RMB9.9 to RMB14.9,
such as Sweet and Spicy Chicken Drumsticks (Chicken Drumettes) and
Dry-fried Spicy Chicken, which resonated strongly with cost-conscious
consumers. For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group’s annual
number of orders increased over 20% year-on-year. The aggregate
monthly sales volume of Sweet and Spicy Chicken Drumsticks (Chicken
Drumettes) and Dry-fried Spicy Chicken amounted to approximately 1
million boxes, and the monthly sales amount of products priced less than
or equal to RMB14.9 accounted for 17% of the monthly sales amount.

In terms of brand marketing, the Group prioritized consumer demand,
centered its focus on products, and aligned marketing and publicity
themes, thus deepening the overall brand image and consumer
awareness. In 2023, the Group, on one hand, leveraged various online
platforms including various online media, short videos and live-streaming
platforms, and tailored promotional resources and content based on
the characteristics and attributes of consumers on different platforms.
Through increasing the frequency of consumer interaction, continuously
enhancing brand exposure, amplifying the voice of its brand, the Group
gained high online attention and popularity as well as positive market
response. On the other hand, the Group launched engaging activities
in offline stores such as “Scratch Card” and “Super Wednesday”, an
exclusive event for brand day, which invigorated consumer participation
and purchase interest, and expanded the penetration into diverse
consumer groups. Moreover, the Group continued to bolster its brand
reputation through cross-border co-branding collaborations with
renowned brands, such as “Arena of Valor” (&%), “Fix XBody" of
Want Want China and “Harbin Beer” (¥ E/&"H).

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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Supply Chain Optimization

In 2023, the Group anchored its management approach on digital
and intelligent empowerment, professional management system, and
efficient and agile team, with a sharp focus on resource conservation and
efficiency optimization, refined operations, and continuous enhancement
of the OCM (Operations and Cost Management) mechanism. Capitalizing
on seamless integration and collaboration across the entire supply chain,
the Group effectively mitigated cost pressures stemming from escalating
raw material prices, achieving a gross profit margin of 52.4%.

With the strategic objective of “supply assurance, quality improvement,
cost reduction and efficiency enhancement”, the Group continued to
firmly promote the implementation of its three core strategies, namely,
whole-chain synergy, refined operation and digitalization and upgrading.
Through more efficient integration and synergy of the whole chain of
production, supply and marketing, we will continue to improve the
flexibility of the supply chain and its responsiveness to the demand for
product innovation. The Group strengthened the integration of supply
chain OCM (Operations and Cost Management) and continued to
explore the whole-chain optimization model through fine-tuning product
portfolio management and conducting regular profitability reviews and
analyses. In terms of procurement, the Group intensified efforts to reduce
procurement costs and improve quality by conducting thorough value
analyses of the industry chain and optimizing supplier resources. In terms
of production, aligned with the requirements of product segmentation
and channel diversification, the Group upgraded its standards for refined
production to refine products and improve production efficiency. In
terms of warehouse and distribution, the Group optimized the resources
of logistics and distribution service providers and employed digital and
intelligent empowerment to implement dynamic management and
refined operations across main lines, branch lines, and urban distribution
based on business development. Moreover, the Group integrated the
data monitoring and analysis of “consumer feedback from all channels”,
listening to consumers and identifying user needs in a timely manner and
applying them to product quality refinement; with continually updated
and consolidated full-link data to enhance data transparency and digital
analysis capabilities, which facilitated faster and more accurate demand
forecasting, agile supply and quality traceability, thereby fortifying the
rapid response and digital and intelligent decision-making capabilities of
the supply chain.

Business Review and Outlook ¥f&CIEE N RE
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In terms of production capacity, the Group continued to make overall
arrangements around the five major processing facilities in China and
promote the construction, and the processing facility in western China
is expected to be put into operation in 2024. By then, the five major
processing facilities will cover the whole of China with efficient big data-
driven end-to-end collaboration, which will further optimise the supply
network, shorten the distribution distance, enhance the efficiency of store
services and extend the shelf life of products. Therefore, these processing
facilities possess the flexibility to allocate production capacity as needed,
thus laying a solid foundation for facilitating the next expansion of stores
and ensuring the continuous growth of front-line businesses.

INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2024, difficulties and challenges will remain, but the
general trend of stable economic recovery and long-term improvement
will remain unchanged. Looking back on the past years, the consumer
industry has weathered numerous challenges and ushered in growth
and expansion amidst evolving changes. In the short term, the consumer
confidence of residents is still in the process of rebuilding, and the
development of the consumer market faces significant uncertainty as well.
However, in the medium to long term, the Group believes that the overall
consumption environment will gradually rebound amid fluctuations. In
the future, the Group will continue to maintain its strategic determination
and is prepared to move forward against difficulties and pursue steady
expansion. Meanwhile, the Group will uphold a consumer-centric
approach and further fortify its products, brands and channels to
continuously drive the improvement of both operating efficiency and
service quality. In the new consumer landscape, the Group will explore
expanding its casual braised and table braised two-in-one store model,
further facilitating the store performance improvement. Meanwhile, we
will continue to adhere to a long-term perspective and embrace new
opportunities and challenges to achieve cross-cycle resilient growth.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
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The Group’s total revenue increased by 17.1% from RMB2,343.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB2,743.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023, which was primarily due to the fact that in 2023, with the
recovery of the economy and of the consumer market, the business of offline stores
gradually recovered, resulting in an increase in sales and a subsequent increase in
revenue.
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The following table sets forth the Group’s consolidated statements of ~ TFTRHIIANEENGEABHLREMEEKRAR 56
profits or loss and other comprehensive income in absolute amounts and 2% Fi/R IEIR@H B MG AEFB AW RN T D
as a percentage of the Group's total revenue for the periods indicated, AN T - —FEZ T - =FNEFH(AA DT
together with the change from 2022 and 2023 (expressed in percentages). /) °
Year Ended December 31, Year
BE+t-A=1-HLEE on-year
2023 2022 Change
—E-CE - It &8
RMB’000 % RMB'000 % %
ARETR ARETT
Revenue Wigs 2,743,628 100.0 2,343,353 100.0 17.1
Cost of sales HERA (1,305,467) (47.6)  (1,053,869) (45.0) 239
Gross profit EF 1,438,161 524 1,289,484 55.0 115
Other income and Hi AR
gains/(losses), net W/ (BR) 38 98,473 36 56,617 24 73.9
Finance costs HBER (23,640) (0.9) (58,403) (2.5) (59.5)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDERY (982,970) (35.8) (930,509) (39.7) 5.6
Administrative expenses THES (316,961) (11.5) (310,416) (13.2) 2.1
Share of profits and losses of associates AEBENAGHEEE 1,086 0.0 7,958 03 (86.4)
Profit before tax BRBLAT A 214,149 78 54,731 23 2913
Income tax expense s (98,573) (3.6) (29,448) (13) 234.7
Profit for the year FERiEH 115,576 42 25,283 1.0 357.1
Other comprehensive loss REBERETEES
that may be reclassified to profit or loss PEZEENEM
in subsequent periods: 2EFE
Exchange differences on translation of foreign ~ JG/hE TSR ER)
operations EREE (20,758) (0.7) (10,390) (0.4) 99.8
Net other comprehensive loss i3 S kil
that may be reclassified to profit or loss NEEBRRNEMD
in subsequent periods 2ABETE (20,758) (0.7) (10,390) (0.4) 99.8
Other comprehensive income that BRERNEEMEESN
will not be reclassified to profit or loss PEEERN
in subsequent periods: HipZEBA
Translation from functional currency to A EREZ 2 g
presentation currency EEVERES 31,018 1.1 63,097 2.7 (50.8)
Net other comprehensive income BAS RS %
that will not be reclassified to profit or loss BN BZERN
in subsequent periods Ht2ERA TR 31,018 11 63,097 27 (50.8)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAEMEERA
FOR THE YEAR 10,260 0.4 52,707 23 (80.5)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRZARAAR
FOR THE YEAR 125,836 4.6 77,990 33 61.3
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREFRBHEER
(RMB) (AR%T) 0.05  N/AFEH 001 NATER 4000

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Revenue

The Group's total revenue increased by 17.1% from RMB2,343.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB2,743.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2023, which was primarily due to the fact that
in 2023, with the recovery of the economy and of the consumer market,
the business of offline stores gradually recovered, resulting in an increase
in sales and a subsequent increase in revenue.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales increased by 23.9% from RMB1,053.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2022 to RMB1,305.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023, which was attributable to the increase in sales and,
at the same time, the increase in the cost of sales due to the significant
increase in the price of raw materials.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing as well as due to the facts that the sales
increased as compared to the same period in 2022, gross profit
subsequently increased, the Group's gross profit increased by 11.5%
from RMB1,289.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB1,438.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2023. In the year
ended December 31, 2023, the Group'’s gross profit margin was 52.4%, as
compared to a gross profit margin of 55.0% in the year ended December
31, 2022.

Other Income and Gains/(Losses), Net

The Group’s other income and gains/(losses), net increased by 73.9%
from RMB56.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB98.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2023. The increase was primarily
due to (i) an increase of RMB111.2 million in gain on foreign exchange
differences; (ii) a decrease of RMB42.4 million gain from early redemption
of the Convertible Bonds; (iii) a decrease of RMB33.3 million in
government grants; (iv) an increase of RMB9.7 million in interest income
from bank deposits;and (v) a decrease of RMB5.3 million in interest
income from structured deposits measured at fair value through profit or
loss (or “FVTPL") and other financial assets measured at FVTPL.
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Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased by 59.5% from RMB58.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2022 to RMB23.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023, which was mainly attributable to the fact that the
remaining Convertible Bonds were redeemed in 2023, resulting in a
decrease in interest expense.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by 5.6% from
RMB930.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB983.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2023. The increase was primarily
due to an increase in the rent relating to retail stores and the salary and
benefits for sales personnel, as the operation of the offline stores of
the Group returned to normal, while the number of stores located in
transportation hubs increased rapidly.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 2.1% from RMB310.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB317.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2023, mainly due to an allowance made
for credit losses and an increase in administrative expenses due to the
preparation work before the processing facility in Sichuan was put into
operation.

Share of Profits and Losses of Associates

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group incurred share of
profits and losses of associates of RMB1.1 million mainly in connection
with the 25.00% equity interest in Shenzhen Tiantu Xingnan Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership), the 33.33% equity interest in Hainan
Tiantu Xingzhou Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership), and the
41.61% equity interest in ACCF Ginkgo Capital I L.P, resulting from
fair value gains on the associate’s investees and partially offset by the
administration expenses.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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Profit Before Tax

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded profit before tax of
RMB214.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, increased by
291.3% from RMB54.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by 234.7% from RMB29.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB98.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023, as a result of the increase in profit before tax for
the year and the withholding tax of approximately RMB35 million on
dividends to be distributed from the domestic subsidiaries of the Group to
the Company in consideration of the Group's future capital plan.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s net profit increased by 357.1%
from RMB25.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB115.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2023. The Group'’s
net profit margin increased from 1.0% in the year ended December 31,
2022 t0 4.2% in the year ended December 31, 2023.

Exchange Differences on Translation of Foreign
Operations

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations changed from
other comprehensive income of RMB52.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022 to other comprehensive income of RMB10.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2023, primarily resulting from foreign
currency exchange differences since some of the Group’s overseas entities
use Hong Kong dollar as the reporting currencies.

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s total comprehensive income for
the year ended December 31, 2023 increased by 61.3% to RMB125.8
million from RMB78.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2022.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

In the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group financed its operations
through cash generated from its business operations, the net proceeds
received from its Initial Public Offering and the exercise of the over-
allotment options on November 30, 2016 (the “IPO"”) and the net
proceeds from the issuance of convertible bonds due 2025 in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$1,550.0 million, bearing interest at the
rate of 1% per annum (the “2025 Bonds"” or the “Convertible Bonds”).
The Group intends to finance its expansion and business operation by
internal resources and through organic and sustainable growth, as well as
to use the net proceeds received from its IPO.

In November 2020, the Company completed and executed its offering
of the 2025 Bonds. Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated October 28, 2020 and November 5, 2020 for more details. The
estimated net proceeds from the issuance of the 2025 Bonds, after
deducting the relevant commissions and other estimated expenses
payable, are approximately HK$1,519.8 million.

In 2023, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Bonds, the Company repurchased by installments the Convertible Bonds
with a principal amount of HK$246,000,000 in total and redeemed the
Convertible Bonds with a principal amount of HK$248,000,000 in total
pursuant to the exercise of the options of the bondholders, representing
15.9% and 16.0% of the aggregate principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds originally issued, respectively. As of the date of this annual report
(i.e. March 27, 2024), there is no outstanding Convertible Bonds in
issue. The Convertible Bonds were delisted from the Stock Exchange on
November 15, 2023. Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
April 3, 2023, April 6, 2023, May 12, 2023 and November 7, 2023 for
more details. Please also see “— Other Information — Purchase, Sale and
Redemption of Listed Securities” in this annual report.
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Capital Structure

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had net assets of approximately
RMB3,935.4 million, as compared to RMB4,088.3 million as of December
31, 2022, primarily comprising non-current assets of RMB2,762.4 million,
current assets of RMB2,130.8 million, current liabilities of RMB684.2
million and non-current liability of RMB273.6 million.

As of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2023, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group were mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB")
and Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), with some denominated in U.S dollars
("USD") and a small amount in Euro.

Cash and Bank Balances

As compared with RMB1,245.2 million as of December 31, 2022, the
Group had cash and bank deposits of approximately RMB1,074.5 million
as of December 31, 2023, which consisted of unrestricted cash and
bank balances of approximately RMB277.6 million and term deposits of
approximately RMB796.9 million.

Financial Risks

The Group is not subject to significant credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group had cash at banks denominated in foreign currencies, which
exposed the Group to foreign exchange risk. The Group does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge against its exposure to foreign exchange
risk. The management manages its currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and will take prudent measures
to minimize the currency translation risk.

Use of Proceeds from the IPO

Net proceeds from the IPO (including the exercise of the over-allotment
options on November 30, 2016), after deducting the underwriting
commission and other estimated expenses in connection with the Global
Offering which the Company received amounted to approximately
HK$2,792.3 million, comprising HK$2,428.1 million raised from the
Global Offering and HK$364.2 million from the issuance of shares
pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment options, respectively. The
remaining balance of the proceeds from the IPO as of December 31, 2023
was RMB199.8 million.
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The table below sets forth the use of proceeds by the Group as of TXRHIAEFBHE_S_=F+_A=+—HNF
December 31, 2023: BIFIERE -
[
Amount that Amount that
had been was used in Remaining
utilized as of  the year ended balance as of Expected
December 31, December 31, December 31, timeline of
Budget 2022 2023 2023 utilization®
BE-Z--F BE-TCZF HECRCCE
+=ZB=+-B +=A=t+-Bt +=A=+-H BABA
HE CHRALE FERRANSE BT EISE
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AR¥EER AR¥EER ARBEER AR¥EETR
Construction and improvement of 3R kM 1T R 1,258.3 1,258.3 - - Used up
processing facilities ik
Development of retail network BRI AR 167.8 167.8 - - Used up
fEAT
Branding image campaigns, mERES - 21 3943 3943 - - Used up
including the e-commerce BEELEE ik
marketing campaigns
Improvement of research and R 3 452 452 - - Used up
development BT
Acquisition and strategic alliances Wi IR B ER B B2 145.2 17.9 - 1273 N/A?
TERe
Upgrades of information technology ~ 7R {E BRI &5 - B4 96.2 83.6 72 5.4 Expected to be
systems, including the enterprise MR EFHE 25 used up in
resource planning system one years
HIARRIEFERT
General replenishment of working ~ BRMEE —#%2EES 345.2 268.0 10.1 67.1 Expected to be
capital used up in
one years
BRI FEAT
Total ast 2,452.2 2,235.1 17.3 199.8
Notes: FisE

(1) Based on the Group’s current estimates of its business plans and market (1)
conditions, and subject to change and adjustment.

(2)  The Group expects that the remaining balance will be used in accordance  (2)
with the intended usage in the coming years as indicated but it is not able to
reasonably estimate a detailed timeline of utilization at current stage.

18 5 SR B 0 TR T B R TSR M AT M0 £
i ARARBRBE -

AEBETRA FIRER IR TR R R L FIRIREE A&
B EERBRER TSR AT SHANFARER -

As of December 31, 2023, net proceeds not utilized had been deposited #HZE—Z=-=4-+=-RA=+—H ' XEAMESHET

into short-term deposits and money market instruments, including

structured deposits.
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Use of Proceeds from the 2025 Bonds

Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 & 5

The Company completed the offering of the 2025 Bonds in November
2020 and the net proceeds from the issuance of the 2025 Bonds, after
deducting the relevant commissions and other estimated expenses

payable, are approximately HK$1,519.8 million.

The table below sets forth the use of proceeds by the Group as of

December 31, 2023:

A

k=112
|
\
/\
2
M

—ERCHFESFMEHRRRAE

ARBRR_Z_EF+ AR _ZT-_AFEFE
17 AR - RFEFBEITAFREFRE(HEA
BAReREMERENERR)OR,519.888ET -

TR AEEBE—T_=F+ _A=1+—H1M
BREMAE

[
Amount that ~ Amount that
hadbeen  was used in Remaining
utilized as of the year ended  balance as of Expected
Initial Adjusted December 31, December 31, December 31, timeline of
budget budget™” 2022 2023 2023 utilization
HE-RC=F
BE-B-CF TZA=t-H EECRCZH
+=A=t-H LEE +=A=+-H REEA
MREE HAREREY CHALH ERNEHE BT EH BE%
RMB million RMB million ~ RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREEET AR¥BER ARWEER ARYEER ARWEER
Further penetration in existing  E—#FRAEE 11334 279.0 279.0 - - Used up
markets and explore new THTENR fEAT
business opportunities REMmEH
Enhancement of product RAEREF N 60.0 - - - - Used up
innovation, research and iEsss ik
development capabilities
Working capital and for general 2844 Rk 50.0 - - - - Used up
corporate purposes —BARER EAT
Total a3 1,243.4 279.0 279.0 - -
Notes: Bsr

(1) The adjustment to budget was due to the Company’s partial repurchase of
the 2025 Bonds in 2022 and 2023 and the exercise of options of bondholders
to require the Company to redeem all Convertible Bonds held by them. For
details of the partial repurchase and redemption of 2025 Bonds, please refer
to the section headed “Purchase, Sale and Redemption of Listed Securities”

of this annual report.

(1) FEEAZERHARAQRRAR-Z_—_FR_T_=—F%
R RFEFET T B EBRESFFE ATTERD
HERAQRERMBRSHENIIRRES - B
CERELN T - AFEHFE  B2MATHRIZE
RIBE LERER EMES|—F -
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Indebtedness
As at December 31, 2023, the Group did not have any bank borrowing.

The Group uses the gearing ratio (gearing ratio = total liabilities/total assets)
to monitor its capital structure. The Group’s gearing ratio decreased
from 28.7% as of December 31, 2022 to 19.6% as of December 31,
2023, which was primarily due to the fact that the Group redeemed all
remaining Convertible Bonds in 2023.

Pledged Assets

As of December 31, 2022, the Group had pledged bank deposits of
RMB100 million, which were pledged as securities for the short-term bank
borrowings of RMB100 million. The Group did not pledge any of its assets
as of December 31, 2023.

Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2023, net cash generated from
operating activities decreased to approximately RMB361.2 million from
RMB467.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, which was
mainly attributable to profit before tax of RMB214.1 million, adjusted for
certain non-cash items and profit before tax from non-operating activities
such as depreciation of property, plant and equipment, depreciation of
right-of-use assets, amortization of intangible assets, interest income from
bank deposits and interest income from structured deposits. Additional
factors that affected net cash generated from operating activities
included: (i) an increase in profit before tax of RMB159.4 million, while
income tax paid decreased by RMB10.1 million; (ii) an increase in inventory
of RMB34.6 million mainly due to increased production activities; (iii) an
increase of RMB31.3 million in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets; (iv) a decrease in other payables and accruals of RMB15.5 million; (v)
an increase in trade receivables of RMB15.0 million; and (vi) a decrease in
trade payables of RMB11.0 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, net cash generated from
investing activities was approximately RMB563.2 million, compared with
net cash generated from investing activities of RMB1,044.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022, which was mainly attributable to (i)
redemption of structured deposits and other financial assets measured at
FVTPL in the aggregate amount of RMB1,882.8 million, (ii) a decrease of
term deposits of maturity over three months of RMB71.4 million; and (iii)
interest from bank deposits, structured deposits and other financial assets
measured as FVTPL of RMB64.7 million, partially offset by (i) purchases of
structured deposits and other financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss in the aggregate amount of RMB1,376.2 million, and (i) purchase
of items of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets in the
aggregate amount of RMB92.4 million.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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For the year ended December 31, 2023, net cash used in financing
activities was approximately RMB1,046.5 million, compared with
RMB1,318.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, which was
mainly attributable to (i) dividends paid in the amount of RMB258.0
million in 2023; (i) repurchase of Convertible Bonds RMB465.0 million; (iii)
lease rental payments of RMB214.9 million; (iv) proceeds from interest-
bearing bank borrowings of RMB60.0 million and repayments of interest-
bearing bank borrowings of RMB220.0 million; and (v) repurchases of the
Company’s shares of RMB51.7 million.

Structured Deposits and Other Financial Assets Measured

at FVTPL

The Group from time to time invests in asset management products,
primarily structured deposits and other financial assets measured at FVTPL,
in order to better facilitate its cash management. Structured deposits were
principal-protected products which typically had a fixed short term and
may be redeemed upon at their respective expiry dates. The Group's other
financial assets measured at FVTPL were mainly investments in equity
funds, which generally are not principal-protected nor return-guaranteed.
Such investments also typically have a fixed short term and are relatively
low risk in nature. As of December 31, 2023, the Group had a balance of
structured deposits and other financial assets measured at FVTPL in the
amount of approximately RMB634.7 million. Up to the date of this annual
report (i.e. March 27, 2024), approximately RMB300.0 million out of the
RMB634.7 million had been settled and redeemed upon their maturity
with the remaining not yet fallen due. The underlying investments of
the structured deposits were primarily short-term sovereign bonds,
financial bonds and central bank bills, and other investment products
issued by commercial banks in the inter-bank market in China, which
were very liquid with a relatively short term of maturity, and which were
considered akin to placing deposits with banks whilst enabling the Group
to earn a relatively higher rate of return. In the year ended December
31, 2023, interest income from structured deposits and other financial
assets measured at FVTPL amounted to RMB28.1 million, as compared to
approximately RMB33.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2022.

The Group has implemented capital and investment policies to monitor
and control the risks relating to its investment activities. The Group may
only make investments in asset management products when it has surplus
cash. The Group is only entitled to invest in low-risk products issued by
qualified commercial banks or other financial institutions, and investments
should be non-speculative in nature. The Group’s capital and investment
policies also specify the criteria for selecting investments to be considered
and the detailed review procedures each proposed investment shall go
through.
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In view of an upside of earning a relatively higher return than current
saving or fixed deposit rate, as well as the principal-protected nature
and a relatively short term of maturity of the structured deposits, the
Directors are of the view that the structured deposits pose little risk to the
Group and the terms and conditions of each of the structured deposits
are fair and reasonable and are in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

Capital Expenditure

The Group’s capital expenditures amounted to RMB92.4 million as of
December 31, 2023, mainly in connection with the establishment and
improvement of processing facilities. The Group financed its capital
expenditures primarily with cash generated from business operations and
the net proceeds from the IPO.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As of December 31, 2023, the Group did not have any significant
unrecorded contingent liabilities, guarantees or any litigation against it.

Major Investments

The Group did not conduct any material investments, acquisitions
or disposals in the year ended December 31, 2023 and in the period
subsequent to December 31, 2023 and up to March 27, 2024, being the
date of this annual report.

In addition, save for the expansion plans as disclosed in the sections
headed “Business” and “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
prospectus of the Company dated November 1, 2016, the Group has no
specific plan for major investment or acquisition for major assets or other
business. However, the Group will continue to identify new opportunities
for business development.

Restricted Share Unit Scheme

The Company adopted its Restricted Share Unit Scheme (the "RSU
Scheme”) on July 25, 2018. The purpose of the RSU Scheme is to
incentivize Directors, senior management and employees of the Group for
their contribution to the Group, to attract, motivate and retain skilled and
experienced personnel to strive for the future development and expansion
of the Group by providing them with the opportunity to own equity
interests of the Company. The Board has the power to administer the
RSU Scheme. The Board may, from time to time and at its sole discretion,
select any eligible person, as defined in the RSU Scheme, to participate in
the RSU Scheme and determine the number of Shares to be granted and
the terms and conditions of the grant.
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We refer to the announcement of the Company dated April 3, 2023. On
April 3, 2023, 16,182,500 of RSUs were granted to 260 selected persons
including 2 directors under the Scheme. The vesting is subject to the
satisfaction of performance and because such conditions are not satisfied
in whole or in part, the RSUs have lapsed automatically in respect of such
proportion of underlying shares as have not vested.

As of the date of this annual report (i.e. March 27, 2024), pursuant to the
RSU Scheme, 191 selected persons had received the RSUs representing
24,593,693 shares of the Company with par value of US$0.000001 each,
of which (i) two selected persons who are directors of the Company
had received RSUs representing 6,188,680 shares; and (ii) 189 selected
persons who are employees of the Group had received RSUs representing
18,405,013 shares. The underlying shares concerned represented 1.03%
of the Company’s issued shares.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated July 25, 2018,
July 31, 2018, October 24, 2018, July 5, 2021 and January 11, 2024 for
detailed summaries of its RSU Scheme and the announcements dated
April 20, 2020, February 1, 2021, March 25, 2021 and March 31, 2022,
for the details in connection with grants of the RSUs.

TURNOVER RATIOS

Average inventory turnover days decreased from 104.4 days in the year
ended December 31, 2022 to 83.3 days in 2023, mainly due to the
recovery of transportation in 2023, the acceleration of transfer of fresh
preserved product, resulting in a higher inventory turnover rate.

Average trade receivables turnover days decreased from 10.1 days in the
year ended December 31, 2022 to 7.8 days in the year ended December
31, 2023, primarily due to the increase in sales of the Group, resulting in
an increase in sales revenue, and an expedited collection of receivables.

Average trade payables turnover days decreased from 32.1 days in the
year ended December 31, 2022 to 28.5 days in the year ended December
31, 2023, primarily due to the rapid consumption of inventory reserves
resulting from the increase in sales of the Group, and thus a decrease in
turnover days.
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EMPLOYEE AND LABOR COST

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had a total of 4,498 employees,
among which 62.2% were retail store operations and sales staff and
21.6% were manufacturing staff at its processing facilities.

The Group has developed a performance evaluation system to assess
the performance of its employees annually, which forms the basis for
determining the salary levels, bonuses and promotions an employee may
receive. Sales and marketing personnel may also receive bonuses based on
the sales targets they accomplish, by taking into account the overall sales
performance of the stores in the same regional market in the relevant
period.

In the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group incurred total labor
costs of RMB555.7 million, representing 20.3% of total revenue of the
Group.

TOP SUPPLIERS AND TOP CUSTOMERS

In the year ended December 31, 2023, purchases from the Group’s
largest duck supplier in terms of RMB amount accounted for 3.6% of
total purchase cost and the aggregate purchases from its top five duck
suppliers in aggregate accounted for 15.0% of total purchase cost.

Due to the nature of the Group's business, in the year ended December
31, 2023, revenue derived from its top five customers accounted for less
than 30% of total revenue.

RESERVES

As of December 31,
distribution to shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB948.2 million.

2023, the Company’s reserves available for

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to December 31, 2023 and up to March 27, 2024 (being the
date of this annual report), no material events were undertaken by the
Group.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHOU Fuyu (B E#4), aged 49, is the Chairman and an executive
Director. Mr. Zhou founded our business with his wife, Ms. Tang Jianfang,
in 2002 and established the Company’s previous holding company,
Zhou Hei Ya Foods Joint Stock Limited Company (E2ie& ik B R
2 A]) (“Wuhan ZHY Holdco"”), on June 13, 2006. He was appointed
as an executive Director on June 8, 2016 and is primarily responsible
for formulating the overall Group’s strategies and leading the product
development. With approximately 20 years of experience in casual
braised food industry, he is the key driver of our business strategies and
achievements to date and continues to oversee the management of our
operations, business, and sales network.

Mr. ZHANG Yuchen (3R /&), aged 48, is an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Zhang was appointed as an executive Director
on November 15, 2019 and the Chief Executive Officer on August 27,
2019. He has over 22 years of operational and management experience in
the consumer goods sector, and has served several leading multinational
consumer goods enterprises in management position. From 1997 to
2003, Mr. Zhang served at Procter & Gamble (Guangzhou) Ltd. (“"P&G"),
as a distributor channel unit manager, after which Mr. Zhang served in
the WalMart team of P&G from 2003 to 2005 and in the Greater China
market Strategy & Planning of haircare division of P&G from 2005 to
2006. Mr. Zhang then served as distributor channel market director at
P&G from 2006 to 2009, and Mr. Zhang's last held position was National
Trade Marketing Director of Pampers from 2009 to 2011. Later on, Mr.
Zhang served as National Sales Director at L'OREAL (China) Co., Ltd.’s
active cosmetic division from 2011 to 2013. From 2013 to 2016, Mr.
Zhang served as Sales Director (China) at Mattel Barbie (Shanghai) Trading
Co., Ltd., a children’s products trading company. Mr. Zhang then served
as the Country Manager (China) at Hasbro Trading (China) Co., Ltd., a toy
trading company, from 2016 to 2019. In May 2019, Mr. Zhang joined the
Group, serving as Executive Vice President of Hubei Zhouheiya Enterprises
Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhang received his bachelor’s degree in
electrical engineering from Southeast University in June 1997.

Mr. WEN Yong (X E), aged 41, was appointed as an executive
Director on June 8, 2016 and is primarily responsible for the supply
chain management of the Group. He was the deputy general manager
of Wuhan ZHY Holdco from March 2015 to July 2015 and is a deputy
general manager of Hubei Zhouheiya Enterprises Development Co., Ltd..
Mr. Wen was the manager of procurement and supply department and
the manager of supply chain center of Wuhan ZHY Holdco from June
2006 to April 2011 and from April 2011 to August 2011, respectively,
where he was primarily responsible for the overall operation of the
respective departments. Mr. Wen was also the general manager of
Shenzhen Zhou Hei Ya Foods Co., Ltd. (YT A2 E RE R A T) from
August 2011 to March 2015.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. PAN Pan (&Z), aged 44, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on June 8, 2016. Mr. Pan resigned as a non-executive Director with effect
from 27 March, 2024. He was the non-executive director of Wuhan
ZHY Holdco from March 25, 2014 to November 24, 2017 and a director
representative of Shenzhen Tiantu Investment Management Co., Ltd. (3|
MREREEIE B R F]) (currently known as Tian Tu Capital Co., Ltd. (&
I KREIRE SRR HD AR A F), a shareholder of Wuhan ZHY Holdco
at the same time. He is primarily responsible for giving strategic advice
and making recommendations on the operations of the Group. He was
the managing director of Tiantu Capital Management Center LLP ( & 3|
KEEAREEPL(BRER)) from February 2014 to January 2016 and
has been a partner since February 2016. Mr. Pan also worked at Guoxin
Hongsheng Venture Investment Co., Ltd. (BI{F5ABEIZIREFR 2 F]), an
investment company.

Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor’s degree in currency banking from Hunan
University (4 A22) in July 2003 and a master’s degree in finance from
Hunan University in December 2004.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul (FR$%%2), aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on October 24, 2016. He is the
proprietor of Chan Paul K.C. & Partners, and is now practicing laws in
Hong Kong. Mr. Chan was an independent non-executive director of
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited (a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), stock code:
850) from October 21, 2002 to September 11, 2015.

He obtained his Juris Doctor Degree from University of Toronto in June
1979. He was admitted to practice as a barrister and solicitor in Ontario,
Canada in April 1981, and as a solicitor in Hong Kong in January 1984
and in England and Wales in July 1988, and as a barrister and solicitor
of the Australian Capital Territory in October 1991, and an advocate and
solicitor of Singapore in February 1995. He is currently a China Appointed
Attesting Officer, a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, a
Member of Hong Kong Society of Notaries, HKIAC Accredited Mediator, a
Civil Celebrant of Marriages and Certified Tax Adviser.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2023

REHEERE

FATES

BREELE MR R_T-R"FERNANAEZRER
FHITES - FEECR T _WF=A-++tHE
EFNTEE - BT WF=-_A_THAE_F
—tF+— A TOAEERERRBIZER AR IEHR
TES YRFAFIMREKREEEARQA (R
ARV ARBREERRMOABRAR) (BUERREE
BARBR)NEEKE ° ?ﬁIEﬁf?f$¢lM“
HABRERMEREBER - R _F—HF_A
ECR-RFE-AHERIRBEREEHL(BER
ERINESHKE BT R"EF_AEKAER
A BRENMBERNBEELARAEREBRAR]
(—RKERA) °

BLEER-_ZZ=F+ ANGIMASHEENEER
TEETBEG VN _TTNF+ = AES AR AZN
S RMAELTEN -

BAFHTES

BRSBRELE 695 K-F—AF+A-THEE

éf?c%ﬁi#%ﬂﬂi% o WAAMRIBIZ AN EIFAMAR
CERBRERE c REEANR_ZT_F+A-F—

E:Et E-RFNAT B RTTERERERAR

(BEBARZMERAR([BXAT]) EHRw - i

D HREE © 850) MBI IFHITES -

BR—NENFRAESRZREBREZBF LS
7 - R— NN\ —FMAEFINER T KRS B RERD
ﬂéﬁﬂiéﬂ C A RIR - ANRE—-AR—ANAN
FLARSEBNERBMERATNRMER - ©
—NN—F+ ABERMN S E B R A KA & 2Am
Big - MR- NANAF - ABEH NN EHERBA
AR - WEAMATEZREATA - REHHS
SEREE  TEBEBRATAGESEE - FEERM
BPORA RS - EIRER A NG RSED



Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management 2 K SR E1EEBERE

Mr. LU Weidong (Ef#3), aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on October 24, 2016. He has been the managing
director of Shenzhen Junfu Investment Co., Ltd. (RIITTHEHREER A
7)) (“Shenzhen Junfu”), an investment company, since January 2015.
Prior to joining Shenzhen Junfu, Mr. Lu was the non-auditing business
partner of Grant Thornton Accounting Firm (BRI & 5TEM =4 FT) (formerly
known as Jingdu Tianhua Accountant Firm (REBRIES AT ETEFN)) from
January 2010 to August 2011. From January 2008 to January 2010, he
worked at Shanghai Junfu Panchenzhangjiahua Accounting Firm (_E)&
HEEBERREESFTAIEFT) and successively held positions as Junfu
PRC partner and secretary-general of the partners’ meeting, managing
partner of Shenzhen Branch. Mr. Lu worked as the managing partner
from March 1997 to January 2008 and the legal representative from May
1994 to March 1997 of Shenzhen Licheng Accounting Firm (ZYIIT1 7738
@A FT) (formerly known as Shenzhen Licheng Accounting Firm (&
NSLE & 5HEREFEAT)). From July 1991 to March 1994, he served as the
assistant to the head, the manager of the audit department of Shenzhen
Guangming Accounting Firm ORI BA & ETRIEH5FT). From December
1987 to July 1991, he successively held the positions as auditor assistant,
assistant to the manager and manager of Shekou Zhonghua Accounting
Firm (3¢ O R ES RIS FT). From September 1985 to December 1987,
he held positions as accounting assistant and accounting manager of
China Electronic System Project Co., Ltd. (PEIEFRATIZ4EAF)), an
electronic construction company.

Mr. Lu obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Hangzhou Dianzi
University (17741 & FRHZ A E2) (formerly known as Hangzhou Institute of
Electronic Engineering (MMM & F L 23)) in July 1985. He is a Chinese
Certified Public Accountant (FEIFEf&51AM) certified by The Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (fF B sEft & 5HEIHE) in May
1990.

Mr. CHEN Chen (BR/2), aged 43, has been the chief financial officer
of ATRenew Inc., a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange
("NYSE") (ticker symbol: RERE), since January 2021 and is responsible for
finance, legal and investment related matters as well as investor relations,
and he has been its director since May 2021. He has been an independent
director of Q&K International Group Limited, a company listed on
NASDAQ (ticker symbol: QK), since November 2019. He has also been an
independent director of Yunji Inc., a company listed on NASDAQ (ticker
symbol: YJ), since January 2024. From May 2018 to December 2020, Mr.
Chen was the chief financial officer of Yunji Inc. Prior to joining Yunji Inc.,
he was a partner at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP,where he had
served and had held various positions since July 2002. Mr. Chen received
his bachelor’s degree in naval engineering from Shanghai Jiaotong
University in China in June 2002. He is also a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (CICPA).
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Senior Management

Mr. GUO Rong (3B%8), aged 56, is the chief financial officer of the
Group. He was the board secretary at Hunan Hoping Seeds Technology
Co., Ltd. (Hm & EREERERR D BR A 7)) from October 2015 to May
2019 before joining the Company. Prior to that, he had held senior
financial positions at various multinational or public companies for
around 20 years. From October 2010 to September 2015, he served as
the chief financial officer at LBX Pharmacy Co., Ltd. (¥ &K %5 EH
F&AERAT]) (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock
code: 603883). From September 2004 to August 2010, he was the chief
financial officer and chief information officer of Yuan Longping High-tech
Agriculture Co., Ltd. (REFEESEERHBBRAF]) (a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000998). From December
2002 to September 2004, he was the chief financial officer of Guangdong
Creawor Technology Development Co., Ltd. (BRAIFHREI R B A F),
a company that provides big data technology solutions. From July 2001
to December 2002, he was the financial accounting manager for the
China region at Perfetti Van Melle (China) Limited (‘T L% 2 #)
#E R (P E)ABBRAA). From January 2000 to July 2001, he was the credit
controller for the Europe region at Lenovo Group Limited (B$185%E AR
72 7)) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 00992). From
January 1996 to November 1998, he served as a financial manager for
Hong Kong and overseas regions at Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd. GE&

BATARAE).

Mr. Guo obtained a master of business administration at the Maastricht
School of Management in 1999 and a master of economics at Jinan
University in 1996. He obtained a bachelor degree in economics and an
accounting professional certificate from Hunan University in 1991. Since
2012, he has been a Fellow of the Institute of Financial Accountants (FFA)
and a Fellow of the Institute of Public Accountants (FIPA).
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Mr. LYU Hanbin, aged 48, is the chief supply chain officer of the Group.
He has over 20 years of rich management experience in Fortune Global
500 multinational companies and companies in the Asia Pacific region, as
well as an Executive Committee Member for over 16 years. Prior to joining
the Group in August 2023, he served at Danone Waters China as the Vice
President of Supply Chain from 2014 to 2023, and also as the E2E Digital
Transformation Leader since 2018, as the Vice President of Purchasing
and the head of the Efficiency Committee of Danone China from 2007 to
2014, as well as the Member of Purchasing Management Committee for
Danone’s Global Water Division, as the Senior SSD Manager from 2005
to 2007 overseeing strategic purchasing management, at Danone’s Asia
Pacific Management Center as a IT Project Manager (SAP Implementation
Expert) responsible for deploying SAP system throughout the region from
2002 to 2005. Prior to that, he served as a Sourcing Manager and Senior
Souring Manager at Robust Group.

Mr. LYU has more than 20 years of senior management experience in
supply chain and operations, including corporate strategic purchasing,
supply network strategic planning, warehousing and transportation, lean
operations, supply chain management and quality management, etc. He
has done a lot of innovation projects and accumulated rich experience
in RTM (Route to Market) design, Omni-channel supply chain, new plant
investment and construction project management, End-to-End Digital
Transformation and Digital Supply Chain, Intelligent Supply Network
Optimization, Purchasing Management and Quality Management System,
Green Supply Chain, Change management and other aspects of the
FMCG (foods and beverage) industry.

Mr. LYU obtained his bachelor’s degree of engineering from Tianjin
University of Commerce in 1997 and completed his International Master’s
Degree in Business Administration (IMBA) from Lingnan College at Sun
Yat-sen University and Sloan School of Management at the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology (MIT) in 2008.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activity of
the Group is to produce and retail casual braised food.

BUSINESS REVIEW

General

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group’s future business development are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement, Business Review and Outlook as well as the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 6, pages 7 to 16 and pages 17
to 30, respectively, of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is
set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 17 to 30 of
this annual report. Subsequent to December 31, 2023 and up to the date
of this annual report (i.e. March 27, 2024), the Group has not undertaken
any material events.

Principal risks and uncertainties the Group faces include (i) uncertainty
as to the opening and profitable operation of new retail stores; (ii)
uncertainty as to the expansion into new geographical markets; (iii)
uncertainty as to the performance of the Group’s current retail stores;
(iv) risks related to site selection for new stores; (v) risks related to quality
control and food safety; and (vi) risks related to the increase in food price,
labor costs and commercial real estate rent.

The financial risks of the Group include foreign currency risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. These financial risks, and the related risk management
policies and practices used by the Group are discussed in note 41 headed
“Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies” to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group strictly complies with the relevant environmental protection
laws and regulations in the places where it operates, focuses on
environmental protection in the manufacturing process, and promotes
green and low-carbon office practices to reduce the environmental impact
of production and operation activities. During the year ended December
31, 2023 (the “Reporting Period”), we continued to enhance our
environmental management system, incorporated energy and resource
consumption targets into key performance assessments, and improved
the efficiency of energy and resource consumption. We also continued to
strengthen the management of production processes and promote the
efficient use of packaging materials. Meanwhile, we also carried out solid
waste sorting disposal and recycling refined management to promote
a circular economy and reduce waste generation and to improve the
Company’s environmental performance and economic benefits.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the year ended December 31, 2023, as far as the Board is aware,
the Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group in all material respects.

Relationship with Employees

The Group strictly complies with relevant employment laws and
regulations, constantly optimizes its human resource management
system, and fully respects and protects its employees’ legitimate rights
and interests. The Group provides its employees with a healthy and
safe working environment and offers them competitive remuneration
and benefits, fair promotion opportunities and a sound training system.
During the Reporting Period, we launched a talent development project
to help employees formulate a reasonable and personalized development
path. We expect that the project will continuously improve organizational
performance analysis and performance system, establish a scientific
incentive mechanism for employees, strengthen employee training and
development systems, increase team cohesion as well as attract, retain
and motivate employees.

For further details on the Group’s employees and employee costs and
remuneration policies, please refer to the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Employees and Labor Cost” and “Director’s
Report — Employees and Remuneration Policies”.
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Important Relationships with Stakeholders

The Group regards shareholders/investors, government departments,
suppliers, employees, the media and consumers as its important
stakeholders. To ensure the establishment of a set of sustainable
development strategies that effectively manages environmental and social
regulatory risks and to provide the appropriate corresponding disclosures,
we continue to improve our long-term communications mechanism with
various stakeholders. At the same time, a multi-dimensional risk analysis
was conducted to identify environmental, social and governance issues
that are of interest to the Group’s development and stakeholders, and a
separate Environmental, Social and Governance Report was issued.

During the Reporting Period, the Group carried out stakeholder
communications and reviews of substantive issues as well as analyzed
environmental, social, and governance issues that the Group’s key
influential stakeholders are focusing on. The Group is committed to
continuously improve its level of corporate sustainable development
management.

For further details regarding our major suppliers and customers, please
refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and
Suppliers”.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group's financial affairs as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 89.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.05 per
share (adopting an exchange rate of HK$1 = RMB0.90698, equivalent to
RMBO0.045 per share) and payable in Hong Kong dollars, amounting to
approximately a total of RMB108,073,000 for the year ended December
31, 2023 (the “2023 Final Dividend”), representing approximately
93.5% of the Group’s net profit for the year ended December 31, 2023.
The 2023 Final Dividend is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM") to
be held on Thursday, May 30, 2024.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the dividend policy revised and adopted by the Company with
effect from March 8, 2024, we currently adopt a general annual dividend
policy that intends to distribute to the shareholders of the Company to
not less than 60% of the profit attributable to owners of the Company
for a financial year, subject to, among other things, financial results, cash
flow, financial condition, any legal or regulatory restrictions on payment
of dividends, capital requirements of the Company, future business plan
and prospects and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company, subject to the articles of association of the
Company, all applicable laws and regulations and the revised dividend
policy. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated March 8, 2024.

The Company will evaluate its dividend policy and distributions made from
time to time.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determination of eligibility to attend and vote at
the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, May 27, 2024 to Thursday, May 30, 2024 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming
AGM to be held on Thursday, May 30, 2024, all transfer of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30
p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Friday, May 24, 2024.

Subject to the approval of the declaration of the 2023 Final Dividend at
the forthcoming AGM, the register of members of the Company will also
be closed from Wednesday, June 5, 2024 to Thursday, June 6, 2024 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed 2023 Final Dividend,
all transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no
later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Tuesday, June 4, 2024. The
2023 Final Dividend, if approved by the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM, will be paid on or about Friday, June 28, 2024 to
those shareholders whose name appear on the register of member of the
Company on Thursday, June 6, 2024.

RESERVES
Changes to the reserves of the Group during the year ended December
31, 2023 are set out in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2023, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB948.2 million (2022: RMB1,226.2 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at December 31, 2023 are set
out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS
The Group did not have any short-term or long-term bank borrowings or
other loans as at December 31, 2023.

In addition, in November 2020, the Company completed and executed
its offering of convertible bonds due in 2025 in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$1,550.0 million, bearing interest at the rate of 1% per
annual (the “2025 Bonds"” or the “Convertible Bonds").

In 2023, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Bonds, the Company repurchased by installments the Convertible Bonds
with a principal amount of HK$246,000,000 in total and redeemed
the Convertible Bonds with a principal amount of HK$248,000,000
in total pursuant to the exercise of the options of the bondholders,
representing 15.9% and 16.0% of the aggregate principal amount of
the Convertible Bonds originally issued, respectively. As of December 31,
2023 and at the date of this annual report (i.e. March 27, 2024), there is
no outstanding Convertible Bonds in issue. The Convertible Bonds were
delisted from the Stock Exchange on November 15, 2023. Please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated April 3, April 6, May 12 and
November 7, 2023 for more details.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended December 31, 2023
amounted to approximately RMBO0.3 million (2022: RMBO0.3 million).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 204 of this annual
report.
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

On November 5, 2020, the Company issued the Convertible Bonds
with a principal amount of HK$1,550,000,000, which were listed and
traded on the Stock Exchange and will mature on November 5, 2025. In
2023, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Bonds, the Company repurchased by installments the Convertible Bonds
with a principal amount of HK$246,000,000 in total and redeemed the
Convertible Bonds with a principal amount of HK$248,000,000 in total
pursuant to the exercise of the options of the bondholders, representing
15.9% and 16.0% of the aggregate principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds originally issued, respectively. The details of each repurchase of
Convertible Bonds are set out below.

On April 3, 2023, the Company repurchased the Convertible Bonds with
a principal amount of HK$155,000,000 with the right to convert into
15,484,516 shares of the Company, representing 10.0% of the aggregate
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds originally issued. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated April 3, 2023.

On April 4, 2023, the Company repurchased the Convertible Bonds with
a principal amount of HK$45,000,000 with the right to convert into
4,495,505 shares of the Company, representing 2.9% of the aggregate
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds originally issued. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated April 6, 2023.

From April 7, 2023 to May 12, 2023, the Company repurchased an
aggregate principal amount of HK$46,000,000 of the Convertible
Bonds with the rights to convert into 4,595,405 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 3.0% of the aggregate principal amount of
the Convertible Bonds originally issued. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated May 12, 2023.

On 5 November 2023, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Convertible Bonds, the bondholders holding an aggregate principal
amount of HK$248,000,000, representing 16.0% of the aggregate
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds originally issued, exercised
their option to require the Company to redeem all Convertible Bonds
held by them at 103.86% of the principal amount, together with interest
accrued but unpaid up to but excluding such date (the “Redemption”).
On 6 November 2023, the Company has completed such Redemption
in full. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
November 7, 2023.

During the Reporting Period, the Company repurchased and redeemed the
above Convertible Bonds for a total consideration (including principal and
interest) of HK$509.8 million.

As of December 31, 2023 and at the date of this annual report (i.e.
March 27, 2024), there is no outstanding Convertible Bonds in issue. The
Convertible Bonds were delisted from the Stock Exchange on November
15, 2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Company and its subsidiaries did not
purchase, sell or redeem any of the listed securities of the Company in
2023.
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SHARES ISSUED
Details of the Shares issued as at December 31, 2023 are disclosed in note
31 to the consolidated financial statement.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
annual report (i.e. March 27, 2024) were:

2 EITRH
R-E-=F+- A=+ HEBTROZFERE
RERA BB REM S -

BE
AEREREEAFHAPEI _ZT-_ONF=A—++t
FIMARRESRR

| o
Name Position
®E B
Mr. ZHOU Fuyu Chairman of the Board and Executive Director
BB EE EESIERPTES
Mr. ZHANG Yuchen Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
RFREE WMITE FRITEEH
Mr. WEN Yong Executive Director
XEEE WITES

Mr. PAN Pan (resigned with effect from Non-executive Director
March 27, 2024)
BREE(RZFZMF=HA =+ HETF) FPTES

Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul

Independent Non-executive Director

PRIBIZSE A WU FITES
Mr. LU Weidong Independent Non-executive Director
ERREEE BIYFEMTES
Mr. CHEN Chen Independent Non-executive Director
BREEAE BUITES

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, Mr. ZHOU
Fuyu, Mr. ZHANG Yuchen, and Mr. WEN Yong shall retire by rotation at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company and they being eligible and offer
themselves for re-election.

None of Mr. ZHOU Fuyu, Mr. ZHANG Yuchen, and Mr. WEN Yong has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than under normal statutory obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company are set out in “Biographies of the Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as the related party transactions disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements and the connected transactions
as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
Directors’ Report, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at December 31, 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) were as follows:

EEEsS
Name of Group

Name of Director/ member/associated

Capacity/
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Notes:

(1

(©)

(4)

5)

Save

All interests stated are long positions.

These 1,358,470,940 Shares represent 5,571,500 Shares held by Ms.
Tang Jianfang, 1,197,892,000 Shares held by Healthy Origin Holdings
Limited, 32,480,300 Shares held by ZHY Holdings Il Company Limited and
122,527,140 Shares held by ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Healthy Origin Holdings Limited and ZHY
Holdings Il Company Limited are held by ZHY X Holdings Co., Limited
("ZHY X") which in turn is 100% held by Cantrust (Far East) Limited being
the trustee of Fuyu Family Trust (the “Trust”). Ms. Tang Jianfang is the
settlor of the Trust. Therefore, Ms. Tang Jianfang is deemed to be interested
in 1,197,892,000 Shares and 32,480,300 Shares held by Healthy Origin
Holdings Limited and ZHY Holdings Il Company Limited, respectively. Since Ms.
Tang Jianfang owns 100% of ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited, Ms. Tang
Jianfang is also deemed to be interested in 122,527,140 Shares held by ZHY
Holdings IV Company Limited.

Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Tang lianfang and is deemed to be interested
in the Shares which are interested by Ms. Tang Jianfang under the SFO.

These 7,107,066 Shares represents (i) the interests in restricted share units
adopted by the Company (“RSUs"), representing 6,863,066 Shares held
on trust on his behalf by Kastle Limited (the “RSU Trustee”), and (ii)
244,000 Shares purchased by Mr. Zhang Yuchen dated August 24, 2022.
For details of the grants of the RSUs to Mr. Zhang Yuchen, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated April 20, 2020, March 25, 2021,
March 31, 2022 and April 3, 2023.

As of the date of this annual report (March 27, 2024), 2,143,000 RSUs
granted to Mr. Zhang Yuchen lapsed automatically. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated March 27, 2024.

Mr. Wen Yong is interested in RSUs representing 1,421,114 Shares held on
trust on his behalf by the RSU Trustee. For details of the grant of RSUs to Mr.
Wen, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated April 20,
2020, March 25, 2021, March 31, 2022 and April 3, 2023.

As of the date of this annual report (March 27, 2024), 387,500 RSUs
granted to Mr. Wen Yong have lapsed automatically. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated March 27, 2024.

as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2023, none of the Directors

nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short

positions in any of the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2023, the following persons (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) have interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of Shares

FERRKEMA TR R AFE KRG HY

BERAR

RZEZ=FF+ZA=+—8 U TFTAZ(ESFHAK
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Approximate
percentage of

Name of shareholder Nature of interest or securities held® interest
REH®H EmME FEROBEBSHBO BAREES L
Ms. TANG Jianfang® Interests in a controlled corporation 122,527,140 (L) 5.14%
EEF Lo RIS ERE R

Settlor of a family trust 1,230,372,300 (L) 51.63%

RIREFLZTEA

Beneficial owner 5,571,500 (L) 0.23%

EmEB A

1,358,470,940 (L) 57.00%
Cantrust (Far East) Limited® Trustee 1,230,372,300 (L) 51.63%
Cantrust (Far East) Limited® ZEA
ZHY X Holdings Co., Limited® Interest in a controlled corporation 1,230,372,300 (L) 51.63%
ZHY X Holdings Co., Limited® R thEEER
Healthy Origin Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 1,197,892,000 (L) 50.27%
fERER AR AR EmEA A
ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited Beneficial owner 122,527,140 (L) 5.14%
ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited EmEB A
ERBEREZERERAR
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Notes:

(1) The letter “S” denotes the person’s short position in such Shares. The letter “L"
denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

(2) These 1,358,470,940 Shares represent 5,571,500 Shares held by Ms.
Tang Jianfang, 1,197,892,000 Shares held by Healthy Origin Holdings
Limited, 32,480,300 Shares held by ZHY Holdings Il Company Limited and
122,527,140 Shares held by ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Healthy Origin Holdings Limited and ZHY
Holdings Il Company Limited are held by ZHY X which in turn is 100% held by
Cantrust (Far East) Limited being the trustee of the Trust. Ms. Tang Jianfang
is the settlor of the Trust. Therefore, Ms. Tang lJianfang is deemed to be
interested in 1,197,892,000 Shares and 32,480,300 Shares held by Healthy
Origin Holdings Limited and ZHY Holdings Il Company Limited, respectively.
Since Ms. Tang Jianfang owns 100% of ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited,
Ms. Tang Jianfang is also deemed to be interested in 122,527,140 Shares
held by ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited.

(3)  Cantrust (Far East) Limited is the trustee of Fuyu Family Trust established by Ms.
Tang Jianfang. The Trustee through indirect interest in each of ZHY Holdings
Il Company Limited and Healthy Origin Holdings Limited holds 32,480,300
Shares and 1,197,892,000 Shares, respectively. ZHY X, which is wholly-owned
by the Trustee, through direct interest in each of ZHY Holdings Il Company
Limited and Healthy Origin Holdings Limited holds 32,480,300 Shares and
1,197,892,000 Shares respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2023, the Directors and chief
executive of the Company are not aware of any other persons/entities, not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company, who has an interest
or short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

RESTRICTED SHARE UNITS SCHEME

Purpose

The Company adopted the Restricted Share Units Scheme on July 25,
2018 (the “"RSU Scheme”). The purpose of the RSU Scheme is to
incentivize Directors, senior management and employees of the Group for
their contribution to the Group, to attract, motivate and retain skilled and
experienced personnel to strive for the future development and expansion
of the Group by providing them with the opportunity to own equity
interests of the Company.

Participants

The participants under the RSU Scheme are those who accept the offer of
the grant of RSUs in accordance with the terms of the RSU Scheme, and
may be existing employees, Directors (whether executive or non-executive,
but excluding independent non-executive Directors) or officers of the
Group selected by the Board to be granted RSUs under the RSU Scheme
at the discretion of the Board.
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Maximum Number of Shares under The RSU Scheme

The maximum number of RSUs that may be granted under the RSU
Scheme in aggregate (excluding RSUs that have lapsed or been cancelled
in accordance with the rules of the RSU Scheme as amended from time
to time) shall be such number of Shares held or to be held by the trustee
of the RSU Scheme (the “Trustee”) for the purpose of the RSU Scheme
from time to time. The Trustee will not hold more then 30% of the total
Shares in issue of the Company in aggregate at any time after adoption
of the RSU Scheme. 49,346,995 and 35,797,248 Shares are held by the
RSU Trustee which was available for grant of RSUs as of January 1, 2023
and December 31, 2023, respectively. As at the date of this annual report
(i.e. March 27, 2024), 99,847,807 Shares are held by the Trustee for
future grant of RSUs, representing 4.19% of the total issued Shares of the
Company.

The total number of Shares underlying the RSUs to be granted under the
RSU Scheme in any financial year shall not exceed 3% of the total Shares
in issue of the Company as at the beginning of that financial year.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The total number of Shares underlying the RSUs to be granted to a
selected person under the RSU Scheme in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue at any time during this
12-month period.

Vesting

The Board can determine the vesting criteria, conditions and the schedule
when the RSUs will vest, and such criteria, conditions and schedule shall
be stated in the grant letter pursuant to which RSUs are granted to a
selected person.

Within a reasonable time after the vesting criteria, conditions and
schedule have been reached, fulfilled, satisfied or waived, the Board shall
send the vesting notice to each of the relevant participants. The vesting
notice will confirm the extent to which the vesting criteria, conditions and
schedule have been reached, fulfilled, satisfied or waived, and the number
of Shares (and, if applicable, the cash or non-cash income, dividends
or distributions and/or the sale proceeds of non-cash and non-scrip
distributions in respect of those Shares) involved.

Purchase Prices, Basis for Determining the Purchase Prices
and Payment Periods

The purchase price, which was defined as employee contribution price
under the management document of the RSU Scheme, is determined by
the Board at the time of each grant, based on a certain percentage of
average closing prices per Share for a specified period of time prior to the
grant date of the RSUs as approved by the Board.

The payment of purchase prices for the RSUs accepted are required to be
made within ten working days after the grant date.
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Duration

Subject to early termination by the Board, the RSU Scheme shall be valid
and effective for ten (10) years commencing on the date of the first grant
of the RSUs (i.e. April 20, 2020).

Details of RSUs Granted under the RSU Scheme

On April 20, 2020, the RSUs of the Company representing 4,580,900
Shares were granted to 24 selected persons under the RSU Scheme (the
"First Round Grant”), among which (i) RSUs representing 1,674,200
Shares were granted to two Directors, and (ii) RSUs representing 2,906,700
Shares were granted to 22 employees of the Group. For details of the First
Round Grant, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
April 20, 2020.

On March 25, 2021, the RSUs of the Company representing 8,233,507
Shares were granted to 160 selected persons under the RSU Scheme (the
“Second Round Grant”), among which (i) RSUs representing 1,653,544
Shares were granted to two Directors, and (i) RSUs representing 6,579,963
shares were granted to 158 employees of the Group. For details of the
Second Round Grant, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated March 25, 2021.

On March 31, 2022, the RSUs of the Company representing 12,141,500
Shares were granted to 220 selected persons under the RSU Scheme (the
“Third Round Grant”), among which (i) RSUs representing 2,029,000
Shares were granted to two Directors, and (ii) RSUs representing
10,112,500 Shares were granted to 218 employees of the Company. For
details of the Third Round Grant, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated March 31, 2022.

On April 3, 2023, the RSUs of the Company representing 16,182,500
Shares were granted to 260 selected persons under the RSU Scheme (the
“Fourth Round Grant”), among which (i) RSUs representing 2,530,500
Shares were granted to two Directors, and (ii) RSUs representing
13,652,000 Shares were granted to 258 employees of the Company. For
details of the Fourth Round Grant, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated April 3, 2023.

The vesting of the Fourth Round Grant is subject to the satisfaction of
performance and because such conditions are not satisfied in whole or in
part, the RSUs have lapsed automatically in respect of such proportion of
underlying shares as have not vested. Please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated March 27, 2024.
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As of the date of this annual report (i.e. March 27, 2024), pursuant to the
RSU Scheme, 191 selected persons had received the RSUs representing
24,593,693 Shares of the Company, among which (i) two selected persons
who are directors of the Company had received RSUs representing 6,188,680
shares; and (ii) 189 selected persons who are employees of the Group
had received RSUs representing 18,405,013 shares. The underlying shares
concerned represented 1.03% of the Company’s issued shares.

The table below sets forth details of RSUs granted to the Directors,
the five highest paid individuals during the financial year in aggregate
and other grantees in aggregate. Saved as disclosed below, to the best
knowledge of the Directors having made all reasonable enquiries, as at the
date of this annual report (i.e. March 27, 2024), (i) none of the Grantees
of the RSUs is a Director, chief executive officer or substantial shareholder
of the Company or an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of any
of them; (ii) none of the Grantees is a participant with RSUs granted and
to be granted exceeding the 1% individual limit under Rule 17.03D(1) of
the Listing Rules; (iii) none of the Grantees is a related entity participant or
a service provider (as defined under the Listing Rules).
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RSUs during the during the during the during the unvested
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Date of Vesting asof  December31,  December31,  December3,  December31,  December31,
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Mr. Zhang Yuchen April 20,2020, 12-48 months'" HK$0.83 for the 3,853,394 2,143,000 (1,288,766) 2,143,000 - 2,564,628
(Director)* March 25, 2021, First Round Grant;
March 31, 2022 HK$1.23 for the
and Second Round Grant and
Apiil 3,203 the Third Round Grant;
HK$0.89 for
the Fourth Round Grant
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* The details of RSUs granted to the Directors are also disclosed in the details of

RSUs granted to the Five Highest Paid Individuals in aggregate.

**  QOther Grantees are all employees of the Group other than the Directors, chief i

executive or substantial shareholders of the Company.
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Numberof ~ RSUsgranted  RSUsvested RSUs lapsed cancelled RSUs

RSUs during the during the during the during the unvested

unvested year ended year ended year ended year ended as of

Date of Vesting asof  December3!,  December3f,  December3,  December31,  December31,

Grantee grant period Purchase Price (per RSU) January 1, 2023 20239 20239 023 2023¢ 03
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Mr. Wen Yong April 20,2020, 12-48 months HK$0.83 for the 181 387,500 (258.402) (387,500 - 513,779
(Director)* March 25, 2021, First Round Grant;
March 31, 2022 HK$1.23 for the
and Second Round Grant and
April 3,203 the Third Round Grant;
HK$0.89 for
the Fourth Round Grant
&Rk CECEEMACHA. NEMERY  E-BRT0SET
(%) “EC-EZACtRA: FBRTRECR
“EooEZAZH-RR RF13%T
“E-Z#RMAZH EMERF089ET

Five Highest Paid Individuals April 20,2020, 12-48 months” HK$0.83 for the 7,185,793 4,109,500 (2410,255) (4,109,500) - 4,775,538
in Aggregate March 25, 2021, First Round Grant;
(indluding Director) March 31, 2022 HK$1.23 for the
and Second Round Grant and
Apiil 3,203 the Third Round Grant;
HK$0.89 for
the Fourth Round Grant
BlimEEH TECTENACTR. NEMERY E-SET08ET:
Aak ZET-ECRCHER S RETRE=S
(BiEEZ) “EoCEZAZH-RR RF13%T
“E-ZFMAZA EMERF089ET

Other Grantees in April 20,2020, 12-48 months HK$0.83 for the 14,397,269 12,073,000 (4,048,883) (13,418,026) - 9,003,360
Aggregate** March 25, 2021, First Round Grant;
March 31, 2022 HK$1.23 for the
and Second Round Grant and
April 3,203 the Third Round Grant;
HK$0.89 for
the Fourth Round Grant
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For the First Round Grant, the vesting period is as to 25% of the RSUs
granted on March 25, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024, respectively. For the
Second Round Grant and Third Round Grant, the vesting period is as to 25%
of the RSUs granted on the date ending 12 months, 24 months, 36 months
and 48 months after the date of grant of the RSUs (i.e. March 25, 2021 for
the Second Round Grant and March 31, 2022 for the Third Round Grant),
respectively. For the Fourth Round Grant, the vesting period is as to 25% of
the RSUs granted on April 3, 2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027, respectively.

The RSUs granted during six months ended June 30, 2023 was the Fourth
Round Grant. Please refer above for the details of the Fourth Round Grant.
The closing price of the Shares on March 31, 2023 (i.e. the business day
immediately before the date of grant of the Fourth Round Grant) was
HK$3.71 per Share. The performance targets set for the Fourth Round Grant
are as follows:

During each evaluation period, the Group will conduct performance appraisal
on the grantee and the performance appraisal criteria shall be determined
at the sole discretion of the Board. The vesting percentage of the RSUs of
the grantee in each evaluation period will be adjusted based on his annual
comprehensive performance score during the evaluation period.

Please see note 2.4 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements for details
on the fair value, accounting standard and policy adopted for the calculation
of the fair value of the RSUs at the date of grant of Fourth Round Grant (i.e.
April 3, 2023).

The RSUs vested during the year ended December 31, 2023 were RSUs
granted under the First Round Grant, the Second Round Grant and the
Third Round Grant, with purchase price per RSU of HK$0.83, HK$1.23 and
HK$1.23, respectively. The weighted average closing prices of the Shares
immediately before the date on which the RSUs granted under the First
Round Grant and the Second Round Grant were vested (i.e. March 25, 2023)
was HK$3.67 per Share. The weighted average closing prices of the Shares
immediately before the date on which the RSUs granted under the Third
Round Grant were vested (i.e. March 31, 2023) was HK$3.62 per Share.

No RSUs were cancelled during the year ended December 31, 2023.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2023, purchases from the Group's largest duck supplier in terms of
dollar amount accounted for approximately 3.6% of total purchase cost
and the aggregate purchases from its top five duck suppliers in terms of
dollar amount in aggregate accounted for approximately 15.0% of total
purchase cost.

None of the Directors, any of their close associates or any shareholders
that, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the issued
Shares had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers during
the year ended December 31, 2023.

In 2023, due to the nature of the Group's business, revenue derived from
its top five customers accounted for less than 30% of total revenue.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has
reviewed the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and
discussed the Group's risk management, internal controls and financial
reporting matters with the management. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2023.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association
of the Company, although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their respective holding of the Company’s
securities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at December 31, 2023, the Group employed a total of 4,498 full-time
employees (December 31, 2022: 4,217). The increase in the number of
employees was mainly due to the increase in store operations and sales
personnel as a result of the increase in the number of stores of the Group.

We currently recruit our employees primarily through on-campus recurring
programs and posting advertisements on recruitment websites. Our
success, to a considerable extent, depends upon our ability to attract,
motivate and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees, including
research and development, sales and management personnel. Therefore,
we place strong emphasis on providing training to our employees in order
to enhance their professional skills and we design and offer different
training programs for employees at various positions.
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We enter into labor contracts with all of our employees. We have
developed a performance evaluation system to assess the performance of
our employees annually, which forms the basis for determining the salary
levels, bonuses and promotions employees may receive. Our sales and
marketing personnel may also receive bonuses based on the sales targets
they accomplish, by taking into account the overall sales performance of
the stores in the same regional market in the relevant period. Under the
applicable PRC laws and regulations, we are subject to social insurance
contribution plans.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Particulars of the employee retirement benefits of the Group are set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report (i.e. March 27, 2024) and based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the minimum
public float of 25% as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. There is no change in the auditor since
the Company'’s listing date.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'’S SECURITIES

AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or
their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, nor did the Company enter into any equity-linked agreement.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report (i.e. March 27, 2024), none of the
Directors and directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates, had interests in businesses, which compete or are likely to
compete either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company
and its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report, there has been no change
in the Directors’ biographical details which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of 2023
interim report of the Company.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to restrict competition activities with the Company, the controlling
shareholders of the Company, namely Mr. Zhou Fuyu, Ms. Tang Jianfang,
Healthy Origin Holdings Limited, ZHY Holdings Il Company Limited and
ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited (the “Controlling Shareholders”),
entered into a deed of non-competition in favor of the Company on
October 24, 2016 (the “Deed"”). Pursuant to the Deed, the Controlling
Shareholders have undertaken, among others, not to compete with the
business of the Group, and details of the Deed are set out in the sub-
section headed “Non-competition Undertaking” in the section headed
"Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” of the prospectus of the
Company dated November 1, 2016.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written confirmation
to the Board in respect of their compliance with the undertakings in the
Deed (the “Undertakings”) during the year ended December 31, 2023
(the “Relevant Period”).

Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders,
the independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the same as part
of the annual review process. In determining whether the Controlling
Shareholder had fully complied with the Undertakings in the Relevant
Period for the annual assessment, the independent non-executive
Directors noted that: (a) the Controlling Shareholders declared that they
had fully complied with the Undertakings in the Relevant Period; (b) no
new competing business was reported by the Controlling Shareholders
during the Relevant Period; and (c) there was no particular situation
rendering the full compliance of the Undertakings being questionable. In
view of the above, the independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that, as far as they can ascertain, all of the Undertakings were complied
with by the Controlling Shareholders in the Relevant Period.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors of the Company shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices, pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company. Such provisions were in force
throughout the year ended December 31, 2023 and are currently in force.
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought against the
Directors.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND USE OF PROCEEDS FROM
THE GLOBAL OFFERING

On November 11, 2016, the Company’s Shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. A total of 488,140,500 ordinary shares
with nominal value of US$0.000001 each of the Company were issued
at HK$5.88 per Share for a total of approximately HK$2,870.3 million
under the global offering of the Company. The net proceeds raised by
the Company from the abovementioned global offering, after deducting
the underwriting commission and related expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$2,792.3 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group had utilized
approximately RMB17.3 million of the proceed from the IPO, comprising
RMB7.2 million in upgrading its ERP system and RMB10.1 million in
general replenishment of working capital. As of December 31, 2023, net
proceeds of RMB199.8 million (December 31, 2022: RMB217.1 million)
not utilized had been deposited into short-term deposits and money
market instruments, including structured deposits. The unutilized portion
of the net proceeds from the global offering is intended to be applied in
the manner as disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Use of Proceeds from the IPO” in this annual report.
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THE 2025 BONDS

On October 28, 2020, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with Credit Suisse (Hong
Kong) Limited (the “Manager”), pursuant to which the Manager has
conditionally agreed to subscribe and pay for, or to procure subscribers
to subscribe and pay for, the 2025 Bonds due 2025 to be issued by
the Company in an aggregate principal amount of HK$1,550 million,
bearing interest at the rate of 1% per annum, which entitle the Manager
to convert a maximum of 149,038,461 conversion shares at the initial
conversion price of HK$10.40 per conversion share. The 2025 Bonds
were issued to the Manager in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the Subscription Agreement on November 5, 2020. Immediately after
completion of the subscription and assuming no conversion of the 2025
Bonds, there were 2,383,140,500 Shares in issue, and as at December 31,
2023, the number of issued Shares remained the same.

The total budgets was adjusted from RMB1,243.4 million, which was the
original amounts of net proceeds received from the issuance of the 2025
Bonds, to RMB356.9 million, due to the Company’s partial repurchase of
the 2025 Bonds in 2022, and further adjusted to RMB279.0 million, due
to the Company’s complete repurchase and redemption of the remaining
2025 Bonds in 2023. As of December 31, 2023, there were no remaining
net proceeds from the 2025 Bonds to be used. Please refer to the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity and Capital
Resources — Use of Proceeds from the 2025 Bonds” for further details
about the 2025 Bonds.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Mr. Zhou Fuyu, being our executive Director and controlling shareholder,
and Ms. Tang Jianfang, being our controlling shareholder, are connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into
a master property lease agreement with Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang
Jianfang on October 24, 2016 to lease five commercial properties
owned by Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang (the “Original Five
Properties”). The lease of the five properties successively expired
between June 2019 and January 2021. The Company (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into the renewed master property lease
agreement with Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang on April 1, 2019
(the “2019 Renewal Agreement”). In addition to renewing the Original
Five Properties, the Company leased two new commercial properties from
Ms. Tang Jianfang under the 2019 Renewal Agreement. Please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated April 1, 2019 for details. The
leases of two properties under the 2019 Renewal Agreement with Ms.
Tang Jianfang were terminated early in January 2020 and December
2020, respectively, due to the operational adjustment of the Company.

The 2019 Renewal Agreement expired on March 31, 2022. The Company
(for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into the renewed
master property lease agreement with Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang
Jianfang on April 1, 2022 (the “2022 Renewal Agreement”). Under the
2022 Renewal Agreement and as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated April 1, 2022, if Mr. Zhou Fuyu, Ms. Tang Jianfang and/or
their associates acquire more commercial premises suitable for the Group's
retail stores, offices or warehouses, the Group intents to preserve the
flexibility in leasing those commercial premises on a market rate on arm's
length basis. Pursuant to the 2022 Renewal Agreement, the Company
renewed the leases of five properties and leased two new commercial
properties as a warehouse and a retail store from Mr. Zhou Fuyu and one
of his associates. The leases under the 2022 Renewal Agreement will
expire successively from March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2025. Please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated April 1, 2022 for details. As
of the date of this annual report (i.e. March 27, 2024), the commercial
properties leased under the 2022 Renewal Agreement were all located
in Wuhan City, Hubei Province, China, with a total area of approximately
27,264.8 square meters used as retail stores, offices and warehouses.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated April 1, 2022,
in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Lease”, the fixed rental payment will
be recognized as right-of-use assets on the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group, while the variable rental payment will
continue to be recognized as expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss of the Group. Therefore, the total proposed annual caps
for the leases from Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang and their
associate(s) for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2023 and year
ending December 31, 2024 are RMB8.6 million, RMB9.5 million and
RMB10.0 million, respectively, among which the annual caps for value
of right-of-use assets are RMB3.7 million, RMB3.0 million and RMB2.8
million, and the annual caps for variable rental payment are RMB4.9
million, RMB6.5 million and RMB7.2 million, respectively. The annual caps
of 2022 included the value of right-of-use assets and estimated variable
rental payment payable by the Company for the existing leases in the first
three months of 2022. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated April 1, 2022.

As of December 31, 2023, the balance of right-of-use assets was
RMB164,000, and for the year ended December 31, 2023, the variable
rental payment under the 2023 Renewal Agreement was RMB3,628,000.
The Company has followed the pricing policies as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated April 1, 2022 in relation to the
2022 Renewal Agreement. The transaction contemplated under the 2022
Renewal Agreement is classified as a continuing connected transaction
pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, and is only subject to
the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but is
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transaction contemplated under the
2022 Renewal Agreement also constitutes a related party transaction of
the Company under HKFRS. For details, see note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023, our independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group, and were conducted on
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Shareholders as a whole.

Based on work performed, the independent auditor has confirmed in a
letter to the Board to the effect that nothing has come to its attention
that causes it to believe that the above transactions:

(@) have not been approved by the Board;

(b) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(c) have exceeded the caps previously disclosed in the announcement.
The Company confirms that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect
of the connected transactions set out above.

Save as disclosed above, the other related party transactions as disclosed
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements do not constitute
connected transactions required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual
report form part of this annual report.

By order of the Board

ZHOU Fuyu
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 27, 2024
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Corporate Governance Report
EXRERIRE

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance by focusing on principles of integrity, accountability,
transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness. The Company has
developed and implemented sound governance policies and measures,
and the Board is responsible for performing such corporate governance
duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor the corporate
governance of the Company with reference to the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code"”) set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules so as to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance of the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company has complied
with the applicable code provisions of the Code as set out in Part 2 of
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

CULTURE AND VALUES

The Company adheres to the corporate mission of “Make Life Enjoyable”
and sets the corporate vision of “Bring Delicious Food to the World".
Guided by our values of “Open-minded, Down to Earth, Honest and
Trustworthy”, we will make all-out and concerted efforts to create
unique braised Chinese food and providing more delicious, healthy and
convenient braised food for our consumers.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs and ensuring the consistency between
the Company’s culture and mission, vision and values. The Board has
general powers for the management and conduct of the Company’s
business. The day-to-day operations and management are delegated by
the Board to the management of the Company, who will implement the
strategy and direction as determined by the Board.

The Board will continue to review the structure and composition of the
Board from time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order
to maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. The Company has also
adopted a board diversity policy to set out the approach adopted by the
Board regarding diversity of Board members.

No Board member has relationship with the other Board members and the
chief executive officer of the Company. For details of the composition of
the Board, please refer to the subsection “Directors” under the Directors’
Report of this annual report. The biographies of the Directors are set out
on pages 31 to 35 of this annual report.
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Except for Mr. Zhang Yuchen, who entered the service contract with the
Company on November 15, 2022, each of the other executive Directors
has entered into a service contract with the Company on October 24,
2022, and the Company has issued letters of appointment to each of
the non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors.
Mr. Pan Pan resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from March
27, 2024. The principal particulars of these service contracts and letters
of appointment are (a) for a term of 3 years commencing from the date
the service contract or letter of appointment is entered and (b) subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The term of
the service contracts and the letters of appointment may be renewed
in accordance with our articles of association of the Company and the
applicable Listing Rules.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to
pension schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other allowances and other benefits in kind)
payable to the Directors for the year ended December 31, 2023 was
approximately RMB13.7 million.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and performance of the Group. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management for 2023 are set out in note
8 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to
code provision E.1.5 in Part 2 of the Code, the annual remuneration
of members of the senior management by band for the year ended
December 31, 2023 is set out below:
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Remuneration to the senior management by band senior management
REESENSREEEFMH BREEEBAY
Nil - HK$1,000,000 TIL%1,000,00087T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00187CZ1,500,000/% 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7C.22,000,0007% 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 2,000,001;%7T%4,000,0007% 7T 2

HK$4,000,001 to HK$6,000,000

From January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023, the Company has three
independent non-executive Directors, which meets the requirement of
the Listing Rules that the number of independent non-executive directors
must represent at least one-third of the Board and should not be less than
three.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, and considers them to be independent of the Company.
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Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to ensure
that the Board procedures are followed. During the year ended December
31, 2023, the company secretary of the Company was Mr. Cheung Kai
Cheong Willie (“Mr. Cheung”). Mr. Cheung is a senior manager of
SWCS Corporate Service Group (Hong Kong) Limited, and has more than
20 years of professional experience in company secretarial, accounting
and finance matters. His primary corporate contact person was Mr. Zhou
Fuyu, the executive Director of the Company. In compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Mr. Cheung has undertaken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended December 31, 2023.

Each of the Directors (being Mr. ZHOU Fuyu, Mr. ZHANG Yuchen, Mr.
WEN Yong, Mr. PAN Pan (resigned as a non-executive Director with effect
from March 27, 2024), Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul, Mr. LU Weidong
and Mr. CHEN Chen) attended various trainings in 2023, including the
trainings for connected transactions, for the amendment of the Listing
Rules, for the directors’ duties, responsibilities and continuous obligations,
for the Model Code, etc. The Company will arrange suitable training for
all Directors in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as
part of their continuous professional development.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Board held 4 meetings,
at which the Board discussed and approved the proposals of Company’s
overall strategy and connected transaction issue, considered and approved
the proposals of Company’s 2022 annual report, 2022 annual results
announcement, 2023 interim report, 2023 interim results announcement,
the payment of 2023 interim dividend and 2022 Environmental, Social
and Governance report.

The table below sets out the details of Board meetings attendance of each
Director during the year ended December 31, 2023.
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Number of Board

meetings requiring Number of Board

attendance meetings attended
BHEEEY FEHEESE
Director B2=E BEXH BEXE
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. ZHOU Fuyu (Chairman) BEREE(FE) 4 4
Mr. ZHANG Yuchen (Chief Executive Officer) SRF R4 (7THAEEE) 4 4
Mr. WEN Yong NEBRE 4 4
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. PAN Pan (resigned as a non-executive BEREA (R -FE—pyF
Director with effect from March 27, 2024) = H =1+ HEHTHH i 7EE) 4 4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES
Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul PREJIZSTAE 4 4
Mr. LU Weidong EEHRLE 4 4
Mr. CHEN Chen BR= S E 4 4
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In 2023, the Company convened and held one general meeting, being the
2023 annual general meeting held on June 6, 2023. All of the Directors
by then namely Mr. ZHOU Fuyu, Mr. ZHANG Yuchen, Mr. WEN Yong, Mr.
PAN Pan (resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from March
27, 2024), Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul, Mr. LU Weidong and Mr. CHEN
Chen, attended the general meeting.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure independent views

and inputs are available to the Board and such mechanisms will be
reviewed annually by the Board. In March, 2024, the Board has reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the following mechanisms at the
Board meeting:

(a

Three out of the seven Directors are independent non-executive
Directors, which exceeds the requirement of the Listing Rules that
at least one-third of the Board are independent non-executive
directors.

The Nomination Committee will assess the independence of a
candidate who is nominated to be a new independent non-executive
director before appointment and the continued independence of
the current long-serving independent non-executive Directors on an
annual basis. All independent non-executive Directors are required to
submit a written confirmation to the Company annually to confirm
the independence of each of them and their immediate family
members, and their compliance with the requirements as set out in
the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors are entitled to retain independent professional advisors
as and when it is required.

All Directors are encouraged to express their views in an open and
candid manner during the Board/Board Committees meetings.

The Chairman of the Board will meet with the independent non-
executive Directors at least annually without the presence of the
executive Directors.

A Director (including independent non-executive Directors) who has
material interest in any contract, transaction or arrangement shall
abstain from voting and not be counted in the quorum on any Board
resolution approving the same.

No equity-based remuneration with performance-related elements
will be granted to independent non-executive Directors.
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DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board continuously seeks to enhance its effectiveness and to maintain
the highest standards of corporate governance and recognizes diversity at
Board level as an essential element in maintaining competitive advantage
and sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
industry experience, technical and professional skills and/or qualifications,
knowledge, length of services and time to be devoted as a director. The
Company will also take into account factors relating to its own business
model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board, having due regard to the needs of the Board without
focusing on a single diversity aspect. The Board will take opportunities to
increase the proportion of female members when selecting and making
recommendation on suitable candidates for appointments of directors and
targets to appoint at least a female director no later than December 31,
2024, with the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity. We will ensure
that there is a gender diversity when recruiting staff at mid to senior
level and are committed to providing career development opportunities
for female staff so that we will have a pipeline of potential successors
to our Board both within such timeline and in the future. The Board
also aspires to have an appropriate proportion of Board members with
different industry backgrounds, such as legal, financial and investment
professionals.

The Board strives to ensure that it has the appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives that are required to support
the execution of its business strategies and in order for the Board to be
effective.

The Nomination Committee of the Company will report annually on
the Board's composition under diversified perspectives, monitor the
implementation of the policy and review the effectiveness of the policy.
The Nomination Committee will discuss any policy’s revisions that
may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.
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As at December 31, 2023, the ratio of male and female employees of the
Group was 3:7 and all of the Company’s senior management were male.
As mentioned above, we will ensure that there is a gender diversity when
recruiting staff at mid to senior level and are committed to providing
career development opportunities for female staff so that we will also
have a pipeline of potential successors to our senior management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 in Part 2 of the Code. The Board reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and written employee
guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has four principal Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Strategic Development Committee. Each of the Board committees
operates under its terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are available on the website of the Company and that of the
Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Code
as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
consisted of three members, namely Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul, Mr. LU
Weidong and Mr. CHEN Chen, our independent non-executive Directors;
in which Mr. CHEN Chen was the chairman of the Audit Committee
who possessed the appropriate professional qualifications. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in providing an
independent review and supervision of the effectiveness of the Group’s
financial and accounting policies, to review the financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems of the Company, to oversee
the audit process, and to perform other duties and responsibilities as
delegated by the Board.
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During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Audit Committee held
three meetings, at which the Audit Committee considered and approved
the proposals of Company’s 2022 annual report, 2022 annual results
announcement, 2023 interim report, 2023 interim results announcement
and the report on audit plan for the year of 2023 by Ernst & Young, the
external auditor of the Company. The Audit Committee also assessed
the risk management and internal control measures, as well as the
effectiveness of the internal audit function, of the Company.

The table below sets out the details of meetings attendance of each
member of the Audit Committee during the year ended December 31,
2023.

HE-_ZT-_=—F+-_A=t+—HILtFE HEZELEC
BITZREF ERERZESEZUBBRTAAR
T CFFHR - CEIFFEEERNE  ZE
CoFRERE R = FhE AN ERARAT
INEERZH AN K SRR EBFTE — S = FFEEZ
FEIMMESHE - ERZEgNETEAREZE
SR I NP IA R NSRRI RO SAE o

[
Number of meetings Number of
requiring attendance meetings attended
Director = FELHEERRE eHEERRH
Mr. CHEN Chen FRETE 3 3
Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul PREBIZSCAE 3 3
Mr. LU Weidong EEEEE 3 3
Nomination Committee REEEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, being Mr. LU Weidong and Mr. CHEN Chen, and
one executive Director, being Mr. ZHOU Fuyu, who is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to make recommendations to our Board on the appointment and
removal of Directors.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting, at which the Nomination Committee reviewed
the proposals of the Board structure, the diversity policy of the Board
members, the independence of the non-executive Directors, the
recommendation of re-election of the retiring Directors.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and assessing
the composition of the Board and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations to the Board on
appointment and removal of Directors. In recommending candidates
for appointment to the Board, the Nomination Committee will consider
candidates on merit against objective criteria and with due regards
to the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Company has adopted
a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”), which sets out the
approach to guide the Nomination Committee in relation to the selection,
appointment and re-appointment, and diversification of the Directors.
Diversity of the Board will be considered from a number of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, industry experience, technical and professional skills and/
or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time to be devoted
as a director. The Company will also take into account factors relating
to its own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The table below sets out the details of meeting attendance of each
member of the Nomination Committee during the year ended December
31,2023
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[
Number of meetings Number of
requiring attendance meetings attended
Director B=E EHEERRE SHESERIH
Mr. ZHOU Fuyu EEHEE 1 1
Mr. LU Weidong EREREE 1 1
Mr. CHEN Chen BREEAE 1 1
NOMINATION POLICY RAEBR
This nomination policy adopted by the Company that has become ARARAEMAHRZBRECR-_E—NF—A—H4LE

effective on January 1, 2019 aims to set out the approach to guide the
Nomination Committee in relation to the election, appointment and
re-appointment of the Directors. It aims to ensure that the Board has
a balance of skills, experience, knowledge and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.
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Nomination Process
The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the

appointment of a Director in accordance with the following procedures
and process:

(a

The Nomination Committee will, giving the consideration to the
current composition and size of the Board, develop a list of desirable
skills, perspectives and experience at the outset to focus the search
effort on suitable candidates;

The Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertisements, recommendations
from an independent agency firm and proposals from shareholders
of the Company with due consideration given to the criteria;

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as
conducting interviews, background checks, presentations and third-
party reference checks;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the
Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of written
resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation to the
Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the recommendation
to the Board in relation to the proposed appointment and the
proposed remuneration package; and

The Board will have the final authority on determining the selection
of nominees and all appointment of Directors will be confirmed by
the filing of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director
(or any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director to
acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as the case
may be).
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. The Remuneration
Committee consisted of three members, being two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. CHEN Chen and Mr. LU Weidong, and
one executive Director, namely Mr. ZHOU Fuyu; in which Mr. CHEN Chen
was the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of
the Remuneration Committee are to establish and review the policy and
structure of the remuneration for the Directors and senior management
and make recommendations on employee benefit arrangement.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model described in code
provision E.1.2(c)(ii) in Part 2 of the Code in its terms of reference.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting, at which the Remuneration Committee reviewed and
approved the proposals of remuneration of the Directors and senior
management, the policy and structure of the remuneration for the
Directors and senior management and the modification of its terms of
reference to comply with the latest Code, etc.

The table below sets out the details of meeting attendance of each
member of the Remuneration Committee during the year ended
December 31, 2023.
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Number of meetings Number of
requiring attendance meetings attended
Director = FELHEERRE SHEERRH
Mr. CHEN Chen BRELLE 1 1
Mr. LU Weidong EERLE 1 1
Mr. ZHANG Yuchen® RFERAED 1 1
Note: BgsE :
(1) On March 27, 2024, Mr. ZHANG Yuchen ceased to be a member of the (1) RZZE_ME=A-++tH KFRELTHEEH

Remuneration Committee and Mr. ZHOU Fuyu was appointed as a member
of the Remuneration Committee. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated March 27, 2024 for details.

Strategic Development Committee

The Company also established a Strategic Development Committee
and the Board has adopted the terms of reference for the Strategic
Development Committee. The Strategic Development Committee has
three members, namely Mr. ZHOU Fuyu, Mr. WEN Yong and Mr. ZHANG
Yuchen, our executive Directors, in which Mr. ZHOU Fuyu has been
appointed as the chairman of the Strategic Development Committee. The
primary duties of the Strategic Development Committee are to review and
advise on the mid to long term strategic positioning, development plans
and investment decisions of the Company and make recommendations to
the Board, to monitor and review the implementations of strategic plans,
to advise on major investment projects, merger and acquisitions, brand
strategies or any other material matters which will affect the Company’s
long term development.
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During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Strategic Development
Committee held one meeting, at which the Strategic Development
Committee considered proposals for mid to long term strategic
positioning, development plans and investment decisions of the Company,
brand strategies, etc.

The table below sets out the details of meeting attendance of each
member of the Strategic Development Committee during the year ended
December 31, 2023.
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TRBINRBERZESS
T A=+ RALEEHESHENFS -

[ m—
Number of meetings Number of
requiring attendance meetings attended

Director 2= EEHEESERE EHEERRH

Mr. ZHOU Fuyu A=t 1 1

Mr. WEN Yong MBS 1 1

Mr. ZHANG Yuchen RFERTE 1 1

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY ESETESFRINWELESTE

DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the Model Code during the
year ended December 31, 2023.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Ernst & Young is appointed as the external auditor of the Company.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the remuneration paid to Ernst
& Young in respect of audit services and non-audit services amounted
to RMB2,400,000 and RMB831,000, respectively. The main non-audit
services provided by the external auditors include advisory service related
to environment, social and governance.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow during
the reporting period. A statement from the auditor about its reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out on
pages 79 to 81 of this annual report. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
control and risk management systems in order to safeguard the Group's
assets and its shareholders’ interests and reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control and risk management systems on an annual
basis so as to ensure that internal control and risk management systems
in place are adequate. The internal control and risk management systems
are implemented to manage, rather than eliminate, the risks to which
the Group is exposed. The systems therefore serve to provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatements or losses. The
Company also has an internal audit function which primarily carries out
the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the issuer’s risk management and internal control systems, and reports
their findings to the Board on, at least, an annual basis. Any material
internal control defects, should they be identified, are required to be
promptly escalated to senior management or the Board as appropriate,
and remediation plans executed accordingly.

The Group's internal control system includes a well-established
organizational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and
authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are entrusted to
individual department which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance and is required to operate its own department’s business
within the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and strictly
adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company from time to
time. Each department is also required to keep the Board informed of
material developments of the department’s business and implementation
of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular basis.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Board has reviewed
once on the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and
operated by the management in compliance with the agreed procedures
and standards. The review covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. In particular, the Board considered the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programs and budget
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions. The review was made by discussions with the management
of the Company, its external and internal auditors and the assessment
conducted by the Audit Committee. The Board believes that the existing
internal control and risk management systems are adequate and effective,
in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company takes seriously of its
obligations under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a Continuous Disclosure
Compliance Policy which sets out guidelines and procedures to the
Directors and officers of the Group to ensure inside information of
the Group is to be disseminated to the public in equal and timely
manner. Briefing session is held regularly for officers to facilitate their
understanding and compliance with the policy.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Board may
whenever it thinks fit to convene general meetings. Pursuant to the
articles of association of the Company, general meetings shall also be
convened on the written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company of any one or more members of the Company holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company. Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene the general meeting in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are and will be proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors.
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The procedures for Shareholder to propose a person for election as a
director are available on the Company’s website (www.zhouheiya.cn).
Shareholders may lodge their written proposals to the company secretary
of the Company at 40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, No. 248
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, provided that the minimum
length of the period, during which such written notice is given, shall be at
least seven days and that the lodgment of such notice shall commence no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the
date of such general meeting. In order to ensure that other Shareholders
would have sufficient time to receive and consider the information of
the person proposed for election as a Director, Shareholders are urged
to lodge their written notice of their intention to propose a person for
election as a Director as early as practicable in advance of the relevant
general meeting and, in any case, not less than 12 business days (as
defined in the Listing Rules, i.e. day(s) on which the Stock Exchange is
open for business of dealing in securities) before the date scheduled for
holding the relevant general meeting, so that the Company can complete
the verification procedure with the Company’s share registrar, and
procure the publication of an announcement and/or the dispatch of a
supplementary circular to Shareholders in compliance with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules. In the event that any such written
notice is received by the Company later than the 12th business day
before the date of holding the relevant general meeting, the Company
will need to consider whether to adjourn the relevant meeting so as to
give Shareholders a notice of at least 10 business days of the proposal in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company is committed to promoting and maintaining transparent,
accurate and open communication with its shareholders and other
stakeholders. It has adopted the Shareholders Communication Policy
to streamline policies and procedures for provision of appropriate and
timely information about the Company to the shareholders, as well
as for them to engage actively with the Company and to exercise
their rights as shareholders in an informed manner. According to the
Shareholders Communication Policy, information of the Company shall be
communicated to its shareholders mainly through annual reports, interim
reports, annual general meetings and other general meetings that may be
convened, as well as other publications and corporate communications on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange. The
Shareholders Communication Policy is available on the Company’s website
(www.zhouheiya.cn).
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Enquiries about the Company may be put to the Board by contacting the
Company or directly by raising the questions at an annual general meeting
or extraordinary general meeting of the Company. The contact details of
the Company are set out in the Company’s website (www.zhouheiya.cn).
Shareholders can also direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, whose address is Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. These
channels allow the Company to receive feedback from its shareholders
and investment community.

The Board regularly reviews the Shareholders Communication Policy to
ensure its implementation and effectiveness and to reflect current best
practices in communications with the shareholders and the investment
community. The most recent review was conducted in March 2023
and the effectiveness of the Shareholders Communication Policy was
confirmed.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, the Company has amended its memorandum
and articles of association. Details of the amendments are set out in the
circular of the Company dated April 27, 2023 to the shareholders. Save
for the aforementioned changes, there was no other changes to the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report (i.e. March
27, 2024). The Company’s memorandum and articles of association are
available on the website of the Company (www.zhouheiya.cn) and that of
the Stock Exchange.
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Ernst & Young TG TR B Tel&E 5% : +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place BEBLBREEITN Fax{#H& : +852 2868 4432
979 King’s Road Rdh— 2718 ey.com
§* Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
Independent auditor’s report B RS

To the shareholders of Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings
Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhou Hei
Ya International Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 203, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)
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WRELEE )
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERBELRNARERRERSE

Revenue recognition

Yoz HERR

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sale
of casual braised food. The timing of revenue recognition of
the sale of goods is when the performance obligation of the
sale or delivery of goods are satisfied at a point in time. There
are inherent risks in revenue recognition based on the fact
that the Group earns revenue primarily through an extensively
self-operated and franchised retail store network. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s consolidated revenue
amounted to RMB2,743,628,000. Revenue recognition was
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year.
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The accounting policy relating to revenue recognition is
disclosed in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements
and the details of revenue are disclosed in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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We reviewed and assessed the Group's revenue recognition
policy across various sales channels, including the franchised
network, based on review of customer contracts.
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We also obtained an understanding of the transaction process
of revenue recognition and tested the relevant controls
relating to the process to substantiate our reliance of internal
controls for revenue recognition.
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We performed analytical procedures on the Group’s revenue
by different channels, by type of retailing store, by major
category of products and by month. And we recalculated the
franchise fees recognised during the year.
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We performed revenue cut-off procedures as well as tests
of details across various sales channels, including franchised
network, on a sampling basis, as part of our substantive audit
procedures.
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We sent confirmations to franchisees on a sampling basis to
check the revenue from goods sold to the franchisees.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report ¥ 3 #Z EEH R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor's Report Y& 3 #Z 2Bl ¥R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 #Z S EM 3R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is LAM Wai Ming, Ada.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income

FeR=EREMEENGER

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZT - =F+-A=+—RHIEE

|
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt s AR¥T T ARBFT

REVENUE g 5 2,743,628 2,343,353
Cost of sales S E AN (1,305,467) (1,053,869)
Gross profit EF 1,438,161 1,289,484
Other income and (gains)/losses, net Hi AR () /B8 FHE 5 98,473 56,617
Finance costs W5 E M 6 (23,640) (58,403)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAX (982,970) (930,509)
Administrative expenses TR (316,961) (310,416)
Share of profits and losses of associates %3 Hi 44 2~ &% | B2 548 1,086 7,958
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AR A 7 214,149 54,731
Income tax expense FTiSif s 10 (98,573) (29,448)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 115,576 25,283
Attributable to: AR B -

Owners of the parent UNGIEZY=PN 115,576 25,283
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE &4 B ERERIEHE AEWN

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF #&IRZEF|

THE PARENT 12
Basic and diluted (RMB) EANEEARE) 0.05 0.01
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hib2mEWA
Other comprehensive loss that may REEREIEa e EF DS

be reclassified to profit or loss in B HA 2 EEE ¢

subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of & EHNEFSENE 3 =58

foreign operations (20,758) (10,390)
Net other comprehensive loss that may — HAB&& BRI AT aeEF D IEE

be reclassified to profit or loss in BRI EMEEEEFE

subsequent periods (20,758) (10,390)
Other comprehensive income that will BT ERERAEENSRE

not be reclassified to profit or loss in BRrHEMEERA

subsequent periods:
Translation from functional currency to ~ EIMIEEE KM E T 25|51

presentation currency 31,018 63,097
Net other comprehensive income that B AgRERAMEEHHEE

will not be reclassified to profit or loss BarE M2 EWRAFEE

in subsequent periods 31,018 63,097
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMZEEA

FOR THE YEAR 10,260 52,707
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FAZAKRALE

FOR THE YEAR 125,836 77,990
Attributable to: AR B -

Owners of the parent UNGIEZY=PN 125,836 77,990

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2023



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARE RN R

31 December 2023 —Z - =F+_-F=+—H

EEET
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b ARBT T AREEFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MK 13 1,391,225 1,446,270
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14(a) 385,213 438,809
Prepayments, other receivables and B RIE - HMERRIER
other assets HEmEE 15 19,840 29,047
Rental deposits HEZES 95,175 94,195
Other intangible assets HibhmpgeE 16 13,266 19,034
Investments in associates REEZ N R NRE 17 631,501 633,246
Other financial assets at fair value BAFERTABZEN
through profit or loss B emEE 22 120,000 120,000
Equity investments designated at fair value  $87E AR A FEFAH M2
through other comprehensive income WA Z BRI & 18 2,500 2,500
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 29 103,714 105,106
Total non-current assets EREEELTE 2,762,434 2,888,207
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 19 315,320 280,726
Trade receivables Z 5 WA 20 61,260 56,037
Prepayments, other receivables and other JEA}FRIE - E it FE W18 2
assets HihEE 21 161,019 136,066
Structured deposits EBIETER 22 514,749 307,546
Other financial assets at fair value through /A BT A B A
profit or loss EfhemEE 22 - 717,189
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 23 4,000 100,000
Cash in transit TERRE 23 - 700
Cash and bank balances & RIRITIF AR 24 1,074,477 1,245,248
Total current assets REEELE 2,130,825 2,843,512
CURRENT LIABILITIES Dk b=V
Trade payables & SN FRIA 25 96,402 107,444
Other payables and accruals Hib N REREER 26 376,102 395,426
Derivative financial instruments TSR T A 27 - 16,857
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHERITER 28 - 160,000
Government grants T B 30 2,283 2,283
Lease liabilities HEBE 14(b) 168,183 199,543
Income tax payable FERTPRISEL 41,214 33,016
Total current liabilities REBEEEE 684,184 914,569
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 1,446,641 1,928,943
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAE
LIABILITIES 4,209,075 4,817,150

ERBEREZERERAR 83
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 425 B #SAR R TR
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2023

[
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
g AR¥F T AREFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Other payables and accruals HAb R RERERT B A 26 19,673 32,850
Convertible bonds AR ES 27 - 439,679
Government grants TRTHE B 30 47,191 49,474
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBRE 29 92,165 56,134
Lease liabilities HEBE 14(b) 114,636 150,704
Total non-current liabilities FREBEERE 273,665 728,841
NET ASSETS BEERE 3,935,410 4,088,309
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of BAREE AELER
the parent
Share capital fi& 7 31 16 16
Treasury shares EFERD 31 (350,181) (324,459)
Reserves [EL 33 4,285,575 4,412,752
TOTAL EQUITY MR 3,935,410 4,088,309
Director Director
EE EE
Zhou Fuyu Zhang Yuchen
AEW® RFE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e tE R BBk

Year ended 31 December 2023 HiE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

G LN
Share-based  Exchange
Share  Treasury Share Merger ~ Statutory  payment fluctuation  Retained Total
capital shares  premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* equity
HRBRER  EXRD
ke EBERG ROEE+  AHEE  IEEE AREE fifr  REERK agi
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥TR  ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARBTR  AR¥TR ARMTR ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2023 RZBZ=E-5-A 16 (324459) 1,203,698 12,500 124,101 .27 (6,352) 3,036,988 4,088,309
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - - - 15576 115,576
Bxchange differences related to  [E5\ EBHENELEE
foreign operations - - - - - - 10,260 - 10,260
Total comprehensive income EnEERNEE
for the year - - - - - - 10,260 115,576 125,836
Interim 2023 dividend paid BRAZE-=FPERE - - (251959 - - - - - (257959
Equity-settled share-based IEREERN AR
payment arrangement REVe - - - - - 24,401 - - 24,401
Exercise of share-based awards (B DLR(A T (H #1288 - 25,987 6,469 - - (25,928) - - 6,528
Repurchase of shares BERD - (51,709) - - - - - - (51,709)
Transfer from retaned profits B BREEF - - - - 5,409 - - (5,409) -
At 31 December 2023 R-BZ=ZF
+ZA=t-8 16 (350,181) 952,212 12,500 130,110 39,690 3908 3147155 3935410
BARBERZERERAR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity AR S fEm &2 B &
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE —_ZE_=F+_A=+—HILFE

|
Attributable to owners of the parent
SRARERARR
Share-based Exchange
Share Treasury Share Merger Statutory payment —fluctuation Retained Total
capital shares premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* equity
HRhAEE  ERED
kx BRRG  ROEEr  AERE EERE JNREE R REERN s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  AR¥TT  ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2022 “E-CE-f-H 16 (341,445) 1434892 12,500 110,531 26,998 (59,059) 3025875 4,210,308
Profit for the year E@gH - - - - - - - 25,283 25,283
Bxchange differences related to  JE5 EBHENELEE
foreign operations - - - - - - 52,707 - 52,707
Total comprehensive income EnEERNEE
for the year - - - - - - 52,707 25,283 77,990
Final 2021 dividend paid BRA-E--558RE - - (23628 - - - - - (36289)
Fquity-settled share-based EREE MR AR
payment arrangement BN - - - - - 3,768 - - 3,768
Brercise of share-based awards ~ /TEMRG L EIRE - 16,986 5,092 - - (18,549) - - 3529
Transfer from retained profits ~ EEBREBET - - - - 14,170 - - (14,170) -
At 31 December 2022 R-E--k&
+ZB=1-8 16 (324459) 1,203,698 12,500 124,701 49,217 (6352) 303698 4088309

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEHEBEReEER_Z
RMB4,285,575,000 (2022: RMB4,412,752,000) in the consolidated statement

of financial position as at 31 December 2023.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

II‘ITAEE$ I)Ibzi

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZT - =F+ - A=+—RHIEE

T
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b ARMFT AREEFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHABRSKE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BRB AR T 214,149 54,731
Adjustments for: BATEIEH
Finance costs H5E A 6 23,640 58,403
Share of profits and losses of associates 5> {f B4 /A 73 | B 5 18 (1,086) (7,958)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEMERETE
equipment 13 117,291 129,556
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 14 217,243 253,427
Covid-19-related rent concessions from & &5 H 70 A B ERETE i A 1B
lessors FERNESESR 14 - (34,790)
Gain on modification of lease,net MEETTW TR 14 (16,626) (13,458)
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE 14 13,784 20,312
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ Efh 4= 24 = #E 5 16 10,474 12,551
Interest income from bank deposits RITF R S WA 5 (43,957) (34,276)
Interest income from structured deposits 45 MR U A 5 (20,060) (13,796)
Interest income from other financial BEATERABEAEMD
assets at FVTPL BEVEERF SRA 5 (8,080) (19,606)
Interest income from AR A RELERA
a loan to an associate FLEMA 5 (360) (158)
Fair value loss/(gain) on structured RN ER A BT B A
deposits measured at FVTPL MEROAFEEE
(Yrzs) 5 2,796 (1,421)
Fair value loss on other financial assets ~ Z A (A AIBZET B HM
at FVTPL TR EER N ERE 5 595 6,408
Fair value loss on derivative SR TENQFEEE
instruments — embedded derivative — o[ RESHTR AR
component of convertible bonds DTS 5 - 2,731
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of REWME WENKZHEIEEB
property, plant and equipment, net 518, (Uess ) F58 5 3,383 (1,673)
(Gain)/loss on foreign exchange [E 525 (0es),kiE
differences 5 (2,166) 109,074
Equity-settled share-based payment LARE 25 A5 E LARR 1) A B 1Y
(B¢ 7 24,401 32,768
Impairment of trade receivables Z S IEWGRIE 2 RE 20 9,739 5,925
Gain from early redemption of IZRIE B Al R A5 Y
convertible bonds s (8,559) (50,913)
Government grants AT D 30 (2,283) (2,372)
534,318 505,465
BRBERERERART
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Zr IR & RER

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE —_ZE_=F+_A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—EC-=HF —E-—F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
g ARET T AREFT
Decrease in cash in transit ERIBERD 700 392
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 2 5 fEWFIA (L N) FL (14,962) 11,609
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TESRIE - EEUREIE R
other receivables and other assets Ha&EOgm (31,271) 17,453
(Increase)/decrease in rental deposits HBERe LM, SR (980) 380
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEEM,FH (34,594) 41,211
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables BB REMNFBECRD),/H#hn (11,042) 29,511
Decrease in other payables and accruals — E b fEf 38 N fET B AR A (15,498) (58,371)
Cash generated from operations REELENIRS 426,671 547,650
Interest paid EASHLE (12,539) (16,997)
Income tax paid BIFER (52,952) (63,014)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING K& EZEfiSHEHRETE
ACTIVITIES 361,180 467,639
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFEHFEHRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Receipt of government grants U ER R 5 48 B 30 - 459
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERAFEF AR EA
instruments at FVTPL SR T AERFTSHRIA 722,781 3,878,465
Proceeds from disposal of structured HE SR RB TS RIA
deposits 1,160,001 598,374
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME  BEMREHEERN
property, plant and equipment Fr{S 308 8,882 17,629
Interest received from bank deposits B R TIF SRUREN Y 7] B 36,518 38,539
Interest income from structured deposits &5 1473 2R B U 5 20,060 13,796
Interest income from other financial BAFEFABEMEM SR
instruments at FVTPL TEMFSHEA 5 8,080 19,606
Purchase of structured deposits BEABETR (1,370,000) (450,000)
Purchase of other financial instruments at & Bz AT EET A B EM
FVTPL $RTA (6,187) (3,939,253)
Purchase of items of property, plantand BEEW% - BE R &EEEE
equipment (89,933) (157,986)
Additions to other intangible assets HihEREERE (2,445) (2,436)
Contribution to investments in AN —HBE A RIEE
an associate (1,080) (77,401)
Advances loan to an associate m—EBE AR ER - (6,000)
Contribution to equity investments MEE AR AT ER A EAD
designated at fair value through other 22U A 2 BEAEIR EILE
comprehensive income - (2,500)
Capital withdrawal from investments in B L A FIHIRERE
associates 5,116 22,500
Decrease in term deposits of maturity R=1E A A - EIEIH E HATE R
over three months B 71,358 1,090,570
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBFISRESHETFE
ACTIVITIES 563,151 1,044,362

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #Zr S IREMER
Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—ZE-_=F+—-_A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
b ARBT T AREEFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RS EIHFEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Interest-bearing bank T ERITIERB S RIA
borrowings 60,000 160,000
Repayments of interest-bearing bank BEFTBIRITER
borrowings (220,000) (50,000)
Dividends paid EIRTAR S (257,955) (236,286)
Early redemption of convertible bonds R RTIE [0 AT AR (E 5 (464,960) (886,534)
Interest paid BEARFE (4,846) (16,125)
Repurchases of the Company’s shares A ERN/NETE$5) (51,709) -
Proceeds from award of shares under the 1B155[R HIMRD BELIsT 2% E
restricted share unit scheme A& 15 E’]ﬁﬁ?gf?ﬁ\ 11,878 10,614
Principal portion of lease payments HENRAS (214,895) (199,963)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank BIEMIRITETOR / (1)
deposits 96,000 (100,000)
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN RMETEHTARSRETH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1,046,487) (1,318,294)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN RERRESEEMORD),/
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B IFE (122,156) 193,707
Cash and cash equivalents at FUIHRe LIRS EEYD
beginning of year 487,541 271,493
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXSFHNTE  FHE
changes, net 19,092 22,341
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT  FRKERESRALZEY
END OF YEAR 384,477 487,541
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRESEYERIM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash at banks e RIRTT/EEIFER 24 384,477 487,541
BRBERERERART
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 35 ek b 5E

31 December 2023 —Z - =F+_-F=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands on 13 May 2015. The registered and correspondence office
of the Company is an office of Intertrust Corporate Services (Cayman)
Limited, located at One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
KY1-9005, Cayman Islands. The Company was listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 11 November 2016 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the business of casual braised duck-related
food production, marketing and sales (“Zhou Hei Ya Business”) in
the mainland of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the ultimate controlling shareholders of the Company are Mr. Zhou
Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang (together known as the “Controlling
Shareholders”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Healthy Origin Holdings Limited, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Contd)
Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

1. RARIREEER®)
BREMBARZER
RABINFEMBARIGIBWMT ¢

EE
Percentage of
equity interest
Place of attributable to
incorporation/ the Company
registration KA R
and business Paid-in fEZBESL  Principal
Name MR, AR capital Direct Indirect activities
=1 EE SR BHRE B B IEXK
Mt R REE AR AT PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Hubei Shiji Yuanjing Commerce  Chinese Mainland 10 million
& Trade Co., Ltd. (“Hubei Shiji
Yuanjing”)
Mt R REmE AR AT B R E AREE - 100 BmZTE
([t FES ) 10B8&7T
ATt L EREE AR DA PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Shenzhen Shiji Development Chinese Mainland 80 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd.
ATt L EREERRDA] B BN AR - 100 BmZTE
B0HEETT
MILARBRRIEXERRAR  PRCU/ RMB - 100  Food
Hubei Zhou Hei Ya Foods Chinese Mainland 62.5 million manufacturing
Industrial Park Co., Ltd.
WIEEZERRIERARAR  RE RERM AREE - 100 BmAEE
625HETT
FERAREREAERAA PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Shanghai Zhouheiya Chinese Mainland 5 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd.
FEAREEEERAQA B BN AR - 100 BmZTE
SEETT
AT EREEBERAT PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Hunan Quanfuyu Chinese Mainland 5 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd.
HEEEREEARAQR BB A AR - 100 BRMEE
SHETT
ARRERZERERATH
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Contd) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

BREMBARZER ()

RRAFNEEMBARFENT : (&)

(Cont’d)
[
Percentage of
equity interest
Place of attributable to
incorporation/ the Company
registration AT AR
and business Paid-in ER=BESDE  Principal
Name MR, TR capital Direct Indirect  activities
=L =Sk BHRA HiE B FEER
IR ARBEEERAR PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Beijing Zhou Hei Ya Chinese Mainland 5 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd.
IR ARBEEERAR P R EIAH, AREE - 100 RmZTE
SHETT
MILBERAE FRI%ER AT PRC/ RMB - 100  Online business
Hubei Huanle Shike Chinese Mainland 1 million
E-commerce Co., Ltd.
MBS RBEFRFERAT  FE FEAL AR - 100 #HEEB
TRET
N EAREEEERAT PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Henan Zhou Hei Ya Chinese Mainland 5 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd.
N EAREEEERAT FRE R B A AREE - 100 BmZTE
SEETT
EBREREEEER AR PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Guangdong Zhou Hei Ya Chinese Mainland 5 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd.
BRERREEERAT B R E A AR - 100 EB@mTE
SEHETT
IEREAEE AR AR PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Jiangsu Dashike Commerce & Chinese Mainland 2.6 million
Trade Co., Ltd.
TEFREAEEHERAA] R B A AR - 100 BmTE
26BHE7T

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2023



CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (cont'd)
Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

1. RARIREEER®)
BREMBARZER ()
AARNTEWBARGEBOT « (&)

(Cont’d)
|
Percentage of
equity interest
Place of attributable to
incorporation/ the Company
registration AT AR
and business Paid-in ER=BESDE  Principal
Name MR, TR capital Direct Indirect  activities
=L =Sk BHRA =k B IEXK
BRI AR AE British Virgin Islands USD5,000 100 —  Investment
Zhou Hei Ya Holdings Company holding
Limited
AEBIERER AT EEELHE 5,000% 7T 100 - REER
LA RBEEERAT PRC/ RMB - 100 Investment
Hubei Zhou Hei Ya Management Chinese Mainland 10 million holding
Co., Ltd.
WL A REEEERAR B R g AR - 100 REER
10AETT
ERAXRBRRIXERRAR PRC/ RMB - 100  Food
Guangdong Zhou He Foods Chinese Mainland 28.1 million manufacturing
Industrial Park Co., Ltd.
ERERERLIXEARAR HE HERD AR - 100 RMEE
281BETT
mIEARSRAER DR PRC/ RMB - 100  Food
Sichuan Zhouheiya Foods Chinese Mainland 50 million manufacturing
Co., Ltd.
MINEARERBERAF FREL R B gD AR - 100 BmAEE
50A&TT
IFEARERRIEENANT PRC/ RMB - 100  Food
Jiangsu Zhou Hei Ya Foods Chinese Mainland 300 million manufacturing
Industrial Park Co., Ltd.*
TEFBEERBRREMIERANF FRED R B g, AR - 100 BmAEE
300B&7T
BARBERZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE

31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

BEMBLRZER(#)

RRAFNEEMBARFENT : (&)

(Cont’d)
|
Percentage of
equity interest
Place of attributable to
incorporation/ the Company
registration AT AR
and business Paid-in ER=BESDE  Principal
Name MR, TR capital Direct Indirect activities
=L =Sk BHRA =k B IEXK
AERERMIEXREARAR  PRU/ RMB - 100  Food
Hebei Zhouheiya Foods Chinese Mainland 50 million manufacturing
Industrial Park Co., Ltd.
MEAZBRERIEREGRAT FE FEAH AR - 100 BimiEE
50A 8T
ML AR EEERAGR AR PRC/ RMB - 100  Investment
Hubei Zhou Hei Ya Enterprise Chinese Mainland 150 million holding
Development Co., Ltd.*
AR EERAGRAT RE B A AR - 100 WEER
150B & 7T

* Hubei Zhou Hei Ya Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu Zhou
Hei Ya Foods Industrial Park Co., Ltd. are registered as wholly-foreign-

owned enterprises under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year

or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“"HKICPA"), and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for structured deposits, other
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), equity
investment designed at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI") and derivative financial instruments which have
been measured at fair value. These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contd)

Basis of consolidation (Contd)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The consolidated financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interest having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the
related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling
interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the
fair value of any investment retained and any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar

Two Model Rules

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(@) Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other information
included in an entity’s consolidated financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose consolidated financial statements
make on the basis of those consolidated financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The
Group has disclosed the material accounting policy information
in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The
amendments did not have any impact on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

(b) Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in consolidated financial statements that are subject
to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. Since the Group’s approach and policy
align with the amendments, the amendments had no impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont'd)

(0)

(d)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow the scope
of the initial recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient
taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments had no impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The adoption of amendments to HKAS
12 did not have any material impact on the overall deferred tax
balances presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the related deferred tax balances qualified for
offsetting under HKAS 12.

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary exception from
the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from
the implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.
The amendments also introduce disclosure requirements for
the affected entities to help users of the consolidated financial
statements better understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar
Two income taxes, including the disclosure of current tax
related to Pillar Two income taxes separately in the periods
when Pillar Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of
known or reasonably estimable information of their exposure
to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the legislation
is enacted or substantively enacted but not yet in effect. Since
the Group did not fall within the scope of the Pillar Two model
rules, the amendments did not have any impact to the Group.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated financial
statements. The Group intends to apply these revised HKFRSs, if
applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)’ 4

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)"

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements’
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding
wording with no change in conclusion
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Contd)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the
sale or contribution of assets constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA. However,
the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-
lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and
leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise
any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it
retains. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to
sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Contd)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current, including what is meant by a
right to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist at the
end of the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected
by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled
in its own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion option in
a convertible liability is itself accounted for as an equity instrument
would the terms of a liability not impact its classification. The 2022
Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of a liability
arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity
must comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification
of that liability as current or non-current. Additional disclosures
are required for non-current liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period. The amendments shall be applied retrospectively
with early application permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022
Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the amendments and whether existing loan agreements
may require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the characteristics of
supplier finance arrangements and require additional disclosure of
such arrangements. The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of consolidated financial statements in
understanding the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an
entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier
application of the amendments is permitted. The amendments
provide certain transition reliefs regarding comparative information,
guantitative information as at the beginning of the annual reporting
period and interim disclosures. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.
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31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Contd)
Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess whether
a currency is exchangeable into another currency and how it
shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require disclosures of
information that enable users of consolidated financial statements
to understand the impact of a currency not being exchangeable.
Earlier application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or to the
cumulative amount of translation differences accumulated in a
separate component of equity, where appropriate, at the date of
initial application. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it has significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments in associates (Cont'd)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other case, Upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and
the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investments in structure deposits products,
private equity fund, wealth management products and derivative
financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Fair value measurement (Cont’d)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for a non-financial asset is required (other
than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, investment
properties and non-current assets/a disposal group classified as
held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ili) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group; and the sponsoring employers of
the post-employment benefit plan;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

3.2% t0 33.3%
Plant and machinery 9.5% t0 31.7%
Operating tools 19.0% to 47.5%
Motor vehicles 19.0%
Office equipment 19.0% to 31.7%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter

Buildings

of the lease terms
and useful lives

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Cont'd)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Trademarks

Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Software and patents

Purchased software and patents are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 2 to 10 years.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a

period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments

and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying

assets.

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Properties
Leasehold land

12 months to 7 years
50 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Leases (Cont'd)
Group as a lessee (Cont’d)

®)

(©

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of stores and plant premises (that is
those leases that have a lease term of less than 12 months
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI"”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Initial recognition and measurement (Cont’d)

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit
or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains
are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)
Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on the equity
investments are also recognised as other income in profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted
for as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of
the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be
classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 ERETHE 2

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 30-90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

General approach (Cont’d)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case
of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables
and accruals, derivative financial instruments, lease liabilities,
convertible bonds and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other payables, and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits characteristics
of an embedded derivative, it is separated from its liability
component. On initial recognition, the derivative component of
the convertible bonds is measured at fair value and presented as
part of derivative financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds
over the amount initially recognised as the derivative component is
recognised as the liability component. The Group chooses to allocate
all the transaction costs exclusively to the liability component in its
initial measurement.
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly
in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity
instruments.

Inventories

Inventories comprising raw materials, work in progress, finished
goods and packaging materials, are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling price less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly liquid
deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences;
and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments
or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to
profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont’d)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(@) Sale of food
Revenue from the sale of food is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the food.

(b)  Franchise fees of retail stores
Revenue from franchise fees of retail stores is recognised over
the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Some contracts for the sale of casual braised food provide
customers with rights of return and volume rebates. The rights
of return and volume rebates give rise to variable consideration.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Revenue recognition (Cont'd)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont’d)
(b)  Franchise fees of retail stores (Cont’d)

U]

(ii)

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will
not be returned because this method best predicts the
amount of variable consideration to which the Group
will be entitled. The requirements in HKFRS 15 on
constraining estimates of variable consideration are
applied in order to determine the amount of variable
consideration that can be included in the transaction
price. For goods that are expected to be returned, instead
of revenue, a refund liability is recognised. A right-of-
return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost of
sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products
from a customer.

Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased
during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the
contract. Rebates are offset against amounts payable
by the customer. To estimate the variable consideration
for the expected future rebates, the most likely amount
method is used for contracts with a single-volume
threshold and the expected value method for contracts
with more than one volume threshold. The selected
method that best predicts the amount of variable
consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume
thresholds contained in the contract. The requirements
on constraining estimates of variable consideration are
applied and a refund liability for the expected future
rebates is recognised.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a restricted share unit scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services in
exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
Further details of which are given in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statement.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Share-based payments (Cont'd)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Share-based payments (Cont'd)
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The subsidiary
operating in Chinese Mainland is required to contribute a certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currencies

The Company's functional currency is Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$").
Because most of subsidiaries’ functional currencies are RMB, the
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the consolidated financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currency of the Company and certain overseas
subsidiaries is the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated to RMB at
the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve, except to the extent that the differences are attributable to
non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of
contracts with renewal options

The Group has certain lease contracts that include extension
options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether or not
to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for
it to exercise the renewal or termination. After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant
event or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew
or to terminate the lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the lease term
for leases of properties due to the significance of these assets to its
operations. These leases have a short non-cancellable period (i.e.,
less than two years) and there will be a significant negative effect on
operation if a replacement is not readily available.
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are available
(such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions)
or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required
to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The
carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses
at 31 December 2023 was RMB64,339,000 (2022: RMB63,847,000).
Further details are contained in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The Group’'s other financial assets at FVTPL amounting
to RMB634,749,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB1,144,735,000) are measured at fair values with fair values
being determined based on observable inputs using valuation
techniques. Judgement and estimation are required in establishing
the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the
reported fair values of these instruments. Further disclosures are
detailed in note 40.

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value for the embedded derivatives
in convertible bonds are established by using valuation techniques.
The valuation model is sensitive to changes in certain key inputs
including volatility of share prices, risk-free rate and dividend yield
that require significant management estimates. Any changes in
the estimates and assumptions will affect the fair values of the
embedded derivative in convertible bonds. The carrying amount of
embedded derivatives is disclosed in note 27.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments, which were acquired
in January 2023 and classified as equity investments designated at
FVTOCI, have been estimated using a recent transaction price based
on assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices
or rates. The Group classifies the fair value of these investments
as Level 3. The fair value of the unlisted equity investments at
31 December 2023 was RMB2,500,000. (2022: RMB2,500,000).
Further details are included in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s principal business is the sale and service of casual
braised food. For management purposes, the Group operates in
one business unit based on its products, and has one reportable
segment which is the sale of casual braised food and the
provision of related services.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
above reportable operating segment.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 4. BETWER @)
Information about geographical areas BREtEESNER
Since all of the Group’s revenue was generated from the production, AR ARNE B RIS 2 203 B 3 B A b B8 58 4K 155
marketing and retailing of casual braised duck-related food in DUEAMAEE « FHEETE - BAEE2IIERD
Chinese Mainland and all of the Group’s non-current assets were BEMPPBRAL - BRI GRS %E
located in Chinese Mainland, no geographical information in RIZEQ5E — A& S 2R ER} o
accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is presented.
Information about major customers EBREXEEREFHNER
Since none of the Group's sales to a single customer accounted for AN EEEAEESE — PSS RED
10% or more of the Group's total revenue, no information about REBMBIZE10% A F - MW EIRIBEES
major customers in accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is BRI ESER|ERE — AL S H 2NN T ERFE
presented. #} o
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND (GAINS)/ 5. W > At AR (W) BB FE
LOSSES, NET
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WEEDITIT -
|
2023 2022
—E-=F —TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFE MRS 2,743,628 2,343,353
Revenue from contracts with customers KERXFESHANKE
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) WHEIEER
|
2023 2022
—E-=F T F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT
Types of goods or services ERSREHER
Modified-Atmosphere-Packaged products 5386 % &E & 2,388,291 2,027,998
Vacuum-packaged products BEREEMR 261,636 210,271
Franchise fees of retail stores TEERTRE 35,205 33,608
Other products EfhEm 58,496 71,476
Total revenue from contracts with RERFALHR AT
customers 2,743,628 2,343,353
[
2023 2022
—E-=F - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Timing of revenue recognition WS R
Goods transferred at a point in time RE—SEZEESER 2,708,423 2,309,745
Service transferred over time BiE = R F 8 R AR S 35,205 33,608
Total revenue from contracts with RERFAE LR
customers 2,743,628 2,343,353

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND (GAINS)/
LOSSES, NET (Cont'd)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregated revenue information (Cont’d)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

5. Ui EMWAR (W) B5iESE
T EEE AN E)
(a) WBEDEEE(E)
TRIRAARRE BT ARSI NBERN

in the current reporting period that were included in the DRSS EE
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
[ S
2023 2022
—E-=E —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Revenue recognised that was included in - st ASREEAFIA DB ER
contract liabilities at the beginning of BRI
the reporting period:
Sale of casual braised food HERBRE M 28,513 25,380
Franchise fee of retail stores LSS = 19,737 13,869
48,250 39,249
Performance obligations (b) BB

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of casual braised food

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods and payment is generally settled once the goods are
delivered, except for franchisees and distributors, where
payment in advance is normally required.

Franchise fees of retail stores

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and advances are normally required before rendering
the services. Generally, franchise fee contracts are for periods
of more than one year, and the franchise fees are billed
according to the contracts.

ERAEENBEOETERBELINT :

HERRE R G
BABEDRRERAETE - —RIER
T —EXREHEEEN - it ERTE

BEREHEEMARRS - HBERBENER -

FELIIRE

AR ERIEHIRFRIEERREEN - M
RERGAIEEFEAMNKIE - —RER
T HEFRESONBMRAE—FULE X
BRFFEBRIBEAHGE -

ERBEREZERERAR
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31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND (GAINS)/ 5. W > HWAR (W) BEEE
LOSSES, NET (Cont’d) (#&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd) REEFESHMWZE2&)
(b) Performance obligations (Cont’d) (b) BHEEE)
Franchise fees of retail stores (Cont’d) TELEFEE(E)
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining RTZA=+—HAREHTEHNEE(CR
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as ERSRE D RIEKNIR S ERESEINT ¢

at 31 December are as follows:

|
2023 2022
—EZ=H T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Amounts expected to be recognised as  FEEASFER BN S5

revenue:
Within one year —FE R 46,531 48,250
After one year —F1% 19,673 32,850
66,204 81,100

1 34 Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND (GAINS)/ 5. W& HtA R () BiEFeE
LOSSES, NET (Cont’d) (%)
An analysis of other income and (gains)/losses, net is as follows: EMUA R (M), EiEEmEo T
[ =
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
B sE AR¥T T AREEFIT
Other income Hitl A
Interest income from bank deposits RITIFF B 43,957 34,276
Interest income from structured deposits 451 #1721 K9 F B Uk A 20,060 13,796
Interest income from other financial BAFERABENEM
assets at FVTPL EREENT WA 8,080 19,606
Interest income from advanced to an B A RIHEREI LB MA
associate 360 158
Government grants related to assets (i) & 7z 88 HO BT 48 B (i) 2,283 2,372
Government grants related to income (ii) 4 A BB H BT #5 B (i) 10,447 43,647
85,187 113,855
Gains/(Loss), net W, (&8)FE
Fair value (loss)/gain on structured BRAFEFABTIIENG
deposits measured at FVTPL BMIFRBATE
(F518), W (2,796) 1,421
Fair value loss on other financial assets 1A {EFT AIER
measured at FVTPL AENEMESREER
NFERE (595) (6,408)

Fair value loss on financial instruments £ &t T B89 A F{EEE —
— embedded derivative component of AR E S

convertible bonds MARLTEZ D 27 - (2,731)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of items of REWE BB NEE
property, plant and equipment, net BE (&)W FE (3.383) 1,673
Gain on modification of lease, net MEET W= FE 14 16,626 13,458
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE 14 (13,784) (20,312)
Gain/(loss) on foreign exchange HNEZFEW RS (B8 ) /F58
differences, net 2,166 (109,074)
Gain from early redemption of IERTEE B AT AR E AR IS
convertible bonds 8,559 50,913
Others EHAh 6,493 13,822
13,286 (57,238)
Total FEE 98,473 56,617

ERBEREZERERAR
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31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

3 &F

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND (GAINS)/ 5. W& HtA R () BiEFeE
LOSSES NET (Cont'd) )
The Group has received certain government grants related to the i $%Eﬁﬁﬁéiélﬁz&ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁ
investments in production plants. The grants related to assets were s ZEREMBHBERBEENERSDR
recognised in the profit or loss over the useful lives of relevant assets. 75/%@ SR - X EERBEEEEIN M
Details of these grants related to assets are set out in note 30. £¥30 °
ii. There were no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching ii. 2 FE SR Y IR 480 B 7 4 AT 85 R A R R H A 3
to the government grants that had been recognised. SREIF o
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. MKEA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERBESTWOT :
EEE
2023 2022
—EC-=HF - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBFT
Interest on bank borrowings TEZRE 2,485 5,695
Interest on convertible bonds T?;@Hx%%%lj,%\ 8,616 35,711
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEMNE 12,539 16,997
Total HEET 23,640 58,403
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31 December 2023 —E-—=4+_-F=+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBADEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AREFBRBADERN &G (5T A) AT &IE%
ERC
N
2023 2022
ot Seg - —E-fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
fiosE AR¥TR AREFT
Cost of inventories sold BEFENAR 928,233 863,864
Depreciation of property, Wi - BEREETE
plant and equipment 13 117,291 129,556
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELERE 14(c) 217,243 253,427
Amortisation of other intangible assets HivmEESH 16 10,474 12,551
Auditor's remuneration RGeS 2,400 2,400
Minimum lease payments under short HPERBEDEN
term leases in respect of stores and REERTHAIE T &I
plant premises HERMZ 14(c) 85,474 56,737
Employee benefit expense (including EERFAZ(RE
directors' and chief executive's BERFERTEAR
remuneration) (note 8): B (FizEs)
Wages and salaries IERE® 432,609 372,405
Pension scheme contributions** BREE B 69,269 63,893
Equity-settled share-based PMER B R BEATRS
payment expense INEF 32 24,401 32,768
Other welfare HA a7 29,435 26,684
555,714 495,750
Advertising and promotion expenses BE R EERY 39,245 38,302
E-commerce and online ordering platform &7 &IME T S EERE L REE
related service and delivery fees 142,295 143,247
Fuel cost YRR 13,736 13,839
Utility expenses KERY 43,190 39,188
Share of profits and losses of associates DIGEEE N RN EEE (1,086) (7,958)
Finance costs H%ER 6 23,640 58,403
Transportation expenses BE 49,883 67,033
Interest income from bank deposits FATFHHEHA 5 (43,957) (34,276)
Interest income from structured deposits BRIEFROFSHRA 5 (20,060) (13,796)
Interest income from other financial assets A F(EFF ABENEMEE
at FVTPL BENMEWA 5 (8,080) (19,606)
Interest income from loan to an associate Al — B4 A B B E Y
FLBHA (360) (158)
Fair value loss/(gain) on structured deposits — Z A F(EFT BT EMERME
measured at FVTPL BRAAFEESE/ (W) 5 2,796 (1,421)
Fair value loss on other financial assets BATEF ABRET 2R EM
measured at FVTPL SREENATEEBE 5 595 6,408
Fair value loss on financial instruments SRIENAFERE
— embedded derivative component of — AR EERALR
convertible bonds PTHER D 5 - 2,731
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, B - BE RE
plant and equipment, net BEEE,/ (K FE 5 3,383 (1,673)
Gain on modification of lease, net MEET T 5 (16,626) (13,458)
Impairment of right-of-use assets FRREEZANE 5 13,784 20,312
Impairment of trade receivables B S EWHIE A 9,739 5925
(Gainloss on foreign exchange differences [} £ (Izs) /BB 5 (2,166) 109,074
Gain from early redemption of convertible — $2 A& B AR {E 5
bonds Eoflie: 5 (8,559) (50,913)
Government grants related to assets & AR T B 5 (2,283) 2,372)
Government grants related to income WA BB BT B 5 (10,447) (43,647)
Covid-19-related rent concessions REHAANENTBIHARE
from lessors HENHSES - (34,790)
BRBERERERART
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont'd)

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment and depreciation of
right-of-use assets for the year are included in “Cost of sales” in profit
or loss.

**  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as
the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

BREL AT (4
o REEWE - BERSMAEARERRAER
AT S5 R 5 A SRS ©

** AREFREE IR BRI
IR IR B RO KK

EERESITTHAEHH

RIE LR - BERAEPIZE383(1)@) * (b) »
ORMERAR(REEENRER)RHIE2E
BREZEFNEERRSITHRABHHMMOT

as follows:
[~
2023 2022
—E:-=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETF T
Fees ok 1,449 1,421
Other emoluments: Hibf 4 -
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ —#4& -« 2B R EYWEF 7,153 7,190
— Performance related bonuses —RIRIEETELL 1,158 2,591
— Equity-settled share-based payment — DA SS A B AR 1) R LR Y
expense* NS> 3,558 7,179
— Pension scheme contributions RIRSETEIHFR 347 318
12,216 17,278
13,665 18,699

* During the year, certain directors were granted restricted share units, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the restricted unit scheme
of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of such shares,
which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
consolidated financial statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 8. EENRBSITHAEHFMw)
REMUNERATION (Cont'd)
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BYFEHITESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during ERNT T IEHITESHNELINT
the year were as follows:
[
2023 2022
—E-=H —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT
Mr. Chen Chen BRi=EE 180 173
Mr. Chan Kam Ching PREFIZSTAE 180 173
Mr. Lu Weidong EEREEE 180 173
540 519
On 10 December 2021, Mr. Chen Chen was appointed as an RZZE-—F+-A+H BELLEZTAK
independent non-executive director of the Group to fill the SEBIIERITES - DUEHIAERT AN
vacancy of Mr. Wu Chi Keung (passed away on 12 October (R=ZZE-—F+A+-HEH) -
2021).
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FAWEENBLIFNTESNAMIE (=T
non-executive directors during the year (2022: Nil). T M) o
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and (b) BITES - kHITEERRSTH
the chief executive AE
[
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances  Performance  share-based Pension
and benefits related payment scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
NEREE
& 28R R URGRER e
e BNEF HERAL  HAREX HE 5 ame
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR¥TR ARMTR AR¥ETR AR¥Tr  ARETR
2023 -g-zf
Executive directors: HTEs:.
Mr. Zhou Fuyu AEtE 360 1,325 400 - 89 2,174
Mr. Zhang Yuchen RFREE 180 4,622 758 2,964 151 8,675
Mr. Wen Yong NERE 360 1,206 - 594 107 2,267
900 7,153 1,158 3,558 347 13,116
Non-executive director: FUTES !
Mr. Pan Pan R 9 - - - - 9
909 7,153 1,158 3,558 347 13,125
BRBERERERART
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31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERBEITHRAEHM =)

REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and (b) HITEE  IPTEERRESTH
the chief executive (Cont'd) AB(#E)
I

Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances  Performance  share-based Pension
and benefits related payment scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
NEREE
¥4 BHR 7H o URHAER Bike
itk ENER RERL  OFRES HE5 @hs
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
2022 —ECCE
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Zhou Fuyu BEhts 360 1,281 800 - 8 2,525
Mr. Zhang Yuchen RERILE 173 4,743 1,791 5,981 140 12,828
Mr. Wen Yong YEEE 360 1,166 - 1,198 94 2818
893 7,190 2,591 7,179 318 18,171
Non-executive director: FUTES !
Mr. Pan Pan EREE 9 - - - - 9
902 7,190 2,591 7179 318 18,180
There were no arrangements under which a director or the FA - BEEFIGRSITRABRELRENE
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration FAH MR Z 5 -

during the year.
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
directors including the chief executive (2022: two directors including
the chief executive), details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the remaining three
highest paid employees for the year ended 31 December 2023, who
are neither a director nor the chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T

31 December 2023 —E-—=4+_-F=+—H

FEERESEHEMAL
FRNANSSHMES

BAE)
BT CF+ A=

BREMUER(BRE&S
TRABN - —F : Mu&ESE -
BENMESFFBEN X8 - &

BR&S1T

HIEFEHT =&

SHHES (LA RFEFARITRABRN

MERFBESIAT

|

2023 2022
—EC-=H T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETFTT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYER 6,119 6,125
Performance related bonus FRIREBEA 738 2,222

Equity-settled share-based payment expense LAME %S 4% & ARK D ABERER)
R 1,964 4,034
Pension scheme contributions BIREETEIH R 284 198
9,105 12,579

The number of non-director and non-chief executive, highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

FMETIISREANIFERIIFRRHTHRARN

REFHESNAZBMT

follows:
| —
2023 2022
—EC-=H T _F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7C£2,000,0007% 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 2,000,001/ T4 4,000,000 7T 3 -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 4,000,0018 026,000,000/ 7T - 3
3 3

In prior years, restricted share units were granted to non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect of their
services to the Group, further details of which are included in the
disclosures in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. The
fair value of such restricted shares unit granted, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in
the consolidated financial statements for the current year is included
in the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

=
DN - BRIE—
R ZEWER -

SEMBRERE
P HEERHRA BOATEE

RBEFE - FFEERIFRDITHRABRDHH
Bt RS AREERMHMIRGER TR

AT IRR M

REBRARAERSRARR) ERDAMETE -
MAFEHFAVERERAB BB E LA
EXZNIERSTHRABRSHMIES 2 HEHmE

A o
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10. INCOME TAX

The major components of income tax expenses are as follows:

10. FriE®i

FEREMEBARSBHMT -

.

2023 2022
—EC=F T F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT

Current — PRC EH—FEH
Charge for the year FRAZH 56,896 49,029
Underprovision in prior year BEFEREBIR 4,254 655
61,150 49,684
Deferred tax (note 29) IRAER I (FI5E29) 37,423 (20,236)
Total tax charge for the year FABIES P 48%E 98,573 29,448

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the
Group are domiciled and operate.

The provision for current income tax in the PRC is based on a
statutory rate of 25% (2022: 25%) of the assessable profits of the
subsidiaries of the Group as determined in accordance with the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law. Hubei Zhou Hei Ya Limited Foods
Industrial Park Co., Ltd. is accredited as “High and New Technology
Enterprise”, and therefore was entitled to a preferential income tax
rate of 15% for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 15%).
Such qualifications are subject to be reviewed by the relevant tax
authority in the PRC for every three years.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a
qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
first HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of
this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2022: 8.25%) and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%).
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¥ | AN E—E-=F+-_A=+—AH1IF
FEEZHIS%MERMERME(ZZ ==

15%) c ZEEBBTPBEEETGEHETS=F%

Z—iR o

BAFISTTIIRIRF RS BEU h 5 FERRL
HAE16.5%(Z T2 : 16.5% ) BLE R -
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10. INCOME TAX (Contd)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rate for the country in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
effective tax rate is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

10. FrE®i(#)
BRRBHAENRAR R RERS M E R F
PR BIZR AR TE B R 5T OB IR B ST B IR B R AR
K EMBHER RN T -

[
2023 2022
—EC-=HF - F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Profit before tax B 55 Al i 7 214,149 54,731
Tax at the PRC statutory tax rate of 25% B25%(—Z - —4F : 25%)
(2022: 25%) AP BDE FE B R AR e AR IR 53,537 13,683
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the S B P BT B A R BRI
distributable profits of the Group’s 5% TR TG B
PRC subsidiaries 35,000 -
Income not subject to tax AR 2 WA (6,437) (15,659)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods BTHMEESRATRIEESE (1,172) (503)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BAHRE S AR IE R
previous periods 4,254 655
Lower tax rates for specific provinces or FEEAMEE M TR B R
enacted by local authority BURFH R (14,823) (15,228)
Research and development super-deduction F2ZERTEEE (1,333) (6,626)
Expenses not deductible for tax TRAEBS I E A 29,547 53,126
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BAEBEERRERAENTHER L 98,573 29,448
BRBERERERART
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31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

11.

12.

DIVIDENDS 11. BE
|
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT
Interim-HK$0.12 thE — G EAR0.12/8 T
(equivalent to RMBO.11 per share) (FHERFRARE0.11T)
per ordinary share (2022: Nil) (ZB2-_—F: &) 263,119,000 -
Final-HK$0.05 RE—EARE@A%0.058 T
(equivalent to RMBO.05 per share) (FHER SR ARE0.057T)
per ordinary share (2022: Nil) (=B =F &) 108,073,000 -

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Group’s shareholders at the forth coming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,316,332,731(2022: 2,311,223,096) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, adjusted to reflect the interest on the convertible bonds
(when applicable). The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

12. BAREEREFAEARGERER

(Cont’d)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based SRERAREERTINTETIER
on:
| e
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Earnings EF
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders IR EtESRREARRF| 2 £ F]
of the parent used in the basic earnings LiRER A A ER
per share calculation 115,576 25,283
Add: Interest on convertible bonds e R ES LA - 35,711
Fair value loss on the derivative AR ESFITAER D 2 A FE
component of the convertible bonds 518 - 2,731
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders 0B RJ &% 2 FI ST A A
of the parent before interest on convertible E@BEZIFH AL EF
bonds 115,576 63,725*
|
Number of shares
RO HE
2023 2022
—E-=HF T —F
Shares & 17
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EERERBIZFA
shares in issue during the year used in BETE @R 2 IEF
the basic earnings per share calculation 2,316,332,731 2,311,223,096

Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:

BEPE - LRBRIMETIOR

Restricted share unit scheme 2R IR 0 BRI FT & 1,709,199 6,966,626
Convertible bonds AR ES - 121,649,368*
2,318,041,930 2,439,839,090
Earnings per share: BRRARMN :
Basic (RMB) ER(ARET) 0.05 0.01
Diluted (RMB) BE(AR%T) 0.05 0.01

* For the year ended 31 December 2022, because the diluted earnings
per share amount increased when taking convertible bonds into
account, the convertible bonds had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic
earnings per share and were ignored in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share.

The diluted earnings per share amounts are based on the profit
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent of
RMB115,576,000 (2022: RMB25,283,000), and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 2,318,041,930 (2022: 2,318,189,722) in
issue during the year.

* HE-_Z-_—F#+-A=+—BUFE  AR:t
LAa#EHF2BERT  SREERTSHEE
e AR ESEERERRF EE REER
fE - B E ORI EATERTIUERE -

BRESENSENENG AR EERBEAA
JEAEF A% FI AR #115,576,000( -2~ —
F: AR¥25,283,00070) * UMRFARNEEHITE
A NE P19 28 52,318,041,930 (- F — —
£ :2,318,189,722% )5+ 4 -

ERBEREZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R MiEE

31 December 2023 —ZE-—=4F+_-F=+—H

Plant and Operating Motor Office Leasehold  Construction
Buildings machinery tools vehicles  equipment improvements in progress Total
BF  HREREE EETR HE HORE HE%E HEIR a3t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETL  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARBTz  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR
31 December 2023 “ECSETCRC1-f
At 1 January 2023: R-E-=F-f-H:
Cost i 970,253 426170 87,157 2344 51,580 170,39 317,521 2,047,420
Accumulated depreciation  Z5H7E (166,872) (178,741) (62,22 (11.710) (38,028) (143,577) - (601,150)
Net carrying amount EHAE 803,381 247429 24,935 12,634 13,552 26,818 317,52 1,446,270
At 1 January 2023, net of W-E-=F-f-H-
accumulated depreciation ThE:nE 803,381 247429 24,935 12,634 13,552 26,318 317,51 1,446,270
Additions TE 6,048 6,393 3,012 515 4,855 18,887 37,037 76,807
Depreciaton provided ERitiRnE
during the year (40,773) (40,314) (8,558) (3,108) (8615) (15,923) - (117.91)
Disposals e - (3.936) (2.163) (192) (184) (5,790) - (12,265)
Transfers B 202,048 4307 1 - - 1,406 (207,113) -
Transfers to intangible assets ~ EREEREE - - - - - - (2,29) (2,29)
At31 December 2023, netof  W-E-=E+-fA=t-R-
accumulated depreciation TRZ:E 970,704 13879 17,298 9,849 9,608 25398 144,489 1,391,225
At 31 December 2023; RoEZZE+2R=-R:
Cost i 1,178,349 424526 71,749 23,148 54,148 111,583 144,489 2,013,952
Accumulated depreciation  ZHTE (207,645) (210,647) (60,451) (13,299) (44,540) (86,145) - (622,72)
Net carmying amount EmAE 970,704 13879 17,298 9,849 9,608 25,398 144,489 1,391,225

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T

31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

13. 1% - BERRB#)

EENT
Plant and Operating Motor Office Leasehold ~ Construction
Buldings machinery tools vehicles equipment  improvements In progress Total
B FRRME BEIE i BO%E BERE FRIR )
RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARETR  ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETR
31 December 2022 “ECCEtCACE-R
At 1 January 2022: WoF--F-A-8:
Cost i 952,002 424178 83,485 17,445 51,365 147,659 242,676 1923810
Accumulated depreciation  Z5H7E (123413) (143,067) (58,187) (11,653) (30.253) (119,052) - (485,625)
Net carying amount EHAE 828,589 281,111 30,298 5792 PRIV 28,607 242,676 1438185
At 1 January 2022, net of R-E--5-F-8
accumulated depreciation MhEiTE 828,589 281,111 30,298 5792 nm 28,607 242,676 1438185
Additions hE 10,084 7,154 1371 9,924 879 21,689 91323 148,430
Depreciaton provided ERitiRmnE
during the year (43,463) (39,984) (11,656) (2993) (8476) (22,984) - (129,556)
Disposals e (192) (6,201) (1,084) (571) (3 (49d) (118 (8,663)
Transfers i 8,363 5,349 - 48 4 - (14234) -
Transfers to intangible assets  EREERHEE - - - - - - (2,126) (2,126)
At31 December 2022, netof  W-E--E+-A=+-R-
accumulated depreciation TREHTE 803,381 247429 24,935 12,634 13552 26,318 317,521 1,446,270
At 31 December 2022: RoE-ZE+2R=-R:
Cost A 970,253 426,170 87,157 24,304 51,580 170,395 317,521 2047420
Accumulated depreciation 17 (166,872) (178,741) (62,222) (11,710) (38,028) (143577) - (601,150)
Net carmying amount EmAE 803,381 27429 24,935 12,634 13552 26,318 317,521 1,446,270

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has yet to obtain property
ownership certificates for certain buildings with an aggregate net
book value of RMB6,478,000 (2022: RMB6,679,000). The Group is
still in the process of applying for the property certificates.

The current year additions of construction in progress included an
amount of approximately RMB419,000, which was the amortisation
of land lease payments during the construction period in 2023 (2022:
RMB677,000).

R-ZE-_ZF+-A=+—"H AEETER
SR FEREE AREE6,478,0000(— - — 4 :
AR#6,679,00070) & TEFIISEEFT AR
F o AEENIERBEYERSE -

AEEABEERTIIEPRE S -_=FiETHH
B+ E BRSO ARE419,000, T(=F
——F: AR¥677,0000T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

14. LEASES 14. HE

148

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of properties used
in its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods of 50
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of
these land leases. Leases of properties generally have lease terms
between 12 months and 7 years. Motor vehicles generally have lease
terms of less than 12 months and/or are individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the
leased assets outside the Group. There are certain lease contracts
that include extension and termination options and variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below.

REBEREBEA
AEETAREEFANZENENEESLN -
AEEDRAMEH AN FAMETRBEE
T MHAR50F - MREZE L AERF
K BT ERES AR - MEEEHES
BENTFREAZETE - AENEIEER12ME
AT R/ SMESIBERE - —Kf=E - AEH
PR AAEBAINTEZROHEEEEE - B
FIRIAE TSR M IR EEANAT SR EN
RHERY - BRFEE—FwmdanT -

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) ERESE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and FR - ANEEFHAEESENERERE
the movements during the year are as follows: NN
[
Leasehold land Properties Total
HELTH LY ES BEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
As at 1 January 2022 R-ZE-——_F—HF—H 124,024 357,002 481,026
Additions NE - 373,442 373,442
Depreciation charge wEER (2,856) (251,248) (254,104)
Reassessment of a lease term AT BRI RE T
arising from a decision notto  EAMFHEHIEH TG
exercise the extension option - (39,158) (39,158)
Revision of a lease term arising A& HAR A AT HdE 2
from other changes in the non-  E th & B i & B 1)
cancellable period of a lease FHHERE - (102,085) (102,085)
Impairment A - (20,312) (20,312)
As at 31 December 2022 and R —F
1 January 2023 +TZA=+—HK
—F-=%—HF—H 121,168 317,641 438,809
Additions NE - 236,368 236,368
Depreciation charge WEER (2,856) (214,806) (217,662)
Revision of a lease term arising A& HAR A AT HSE 2
from a change in the non- B8 & S0 FE ER
cancellable period of a lease BHE - (58,518) (58,518)
Impairment B - (13,784) (13,784)
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZZTE-=%F
+=-—A=+—H 118,312 266,901 385,213

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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14. LEASES (Cont'd)
The Group as a lessee (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Cont’d)

Notes to Financial Statements B1 # R R MisE

31 December 2023 —E-—=4+_-F=+—H

14. A& (&)
EBIEAFABA(Z)

(a)

The Group's leasehold land is located in Wuhan City of Hubei
Province, Dongguan City of Guangdong Province, Chengdu

City of Sichuan Province, Nantong City of Jiangsu Province,
Cangzhou City of Hebei Province and Qianjiang City of Hubei
Province, the PRC, with lease periods of 50 years.

During the year, an amount of RMB419,000 (2022:
RMB677,000) of the prepaid land lease payments was
capitalised as part of the construction costs of the factory in

Chengdu City and Qianjiang City.

FREEEE)
AEBOHEE AN P B ERE
e BERERZEM - WJIEKET L
Bamlm o dbEAMNT KBt EET
- HEIAS046F -

RERN BNLwHEENREBARE
419,000t (—ZE = —4F : AR#¥677,000
7L BB ML A AR T KRB B ER R iR A
PRAH) — 55 -

Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements FR - HESENEREENLMEZSOT
during the year are as follows:
|-
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R ARETTT
Carrying amount at 1 January m—A—BHREE 350,247 374,201
New leases HHE 222,611 365,500
Accretion of interest recognised FRERHF| BIL 1R
during the year 12,539 16,997
Covid-19-related rent concessions R E HFA R RS A RIS
from lessors EENESER - (34,790)
Payments (NE-S (227,434) (216,960)
Reassessment of a lease term arising AT BT E £/
from a decision not to exercise TREAE A
the extension option - (23,014)
Revision of a lease term arising from A E & AR AT B
other changes in the non-cancellable FEmEHMARIE
period of a lease (75,144) (131,687)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+—RA=+—ArREE 282,819 350,247
Analysed into: DA -
Current portion mENEE S 168,183 199,543
Non-current portion EMENER S 114,636 150,704
282,819 350,247
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 41 HEABENI SO TN GEA M ERERM T4 H

to the consolidated financial statements.
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o
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

14. LEASES (Cont'd) 14. & (=)
The Group as a lessee (Cont'd) REBIERAFEBA )
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to () REZABIANBESHBEITENT :
leases are as follows:
[
2023 2022
—E-=HF T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENFE 12,539 16,997
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {§ Fi#E & ERIITEE B 217,243 253,427
Expense relating to short-term leases HSHEERENFS (GEA
(included in cost of sales and selling and ~ $4%& Bk A & $5E & D #F 2 )
distribution expenses) 12,408 23,839
Variable lease payments not included in (T EHE & ERITET K2 A]
the measurement of lease liabilities SEMENRETAHEKR
(included in cost of sales and selling and N $HE &9 RS )
distribution expenses) 73,066 32,898
Covid-19-related rent concessions from  3& [ 78 A B ELE 50 b 4 2 15
lessors ERENESESR - (34,790)
Gain on modification of lease, net AEETWE F5E (16,626) (13,458)
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE 13,784 20,312
Total amount recognised in profit or loss R BEAERNE S 312,414 299,225

1 50 Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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14. LEASES (Cont'd)
The Group as a lessee (Cont’d)
(d) Variable lease payments

(e)

The Group leased a number of retail stores and premises which
contain variable lease payment terms that are based on the
Group's turnover generated from the retail stores and premises
in the shopping malls. The following provides information on
the Group's variable lease payments, including the magnitude
in relation to fixed payments:

Notes to Financial Statements B1 # R R MisE

31 December 2023 —E-—=4+_-F=+—H

14. A& (&)
EBIEAFABA(Z)

(d)

AEEE AN
AEEHEZEATEERDE  EFEE
ENAEERNBENTEERNENER
BH A AN FER - TIXRHERA
SEASEHEMNKNER - BIREEEMN
A R B

[
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
B E R AR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 —E-=F ARBFT ARBFT ARBTR
Fixed rent payment BEEHES TR 181,842 - 181,842
Variable rent with minimum BJ &% 2~ &K
payment [NE:N 58,000 18,168 76,168
Variable rent only AEHE - 54,898 54,898
Total #Et 239,842 73,066 312,908
N
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
&l 15 5K AR “eEt
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
2022 e — AREFL ARETL AREBFL
Fixed rent payment BEEES R 239,787 - 239,787
Variable rent with minimum FJ &4 ~ &K
payment (DE 1,012 797 1,809
Variable rent only EEE - 32,101 32,101
Total Bt 240,799 32,898 273,697
A 10% (2022: 10%) increase in sales in the retail stores would TEEHEEEEMIN(ZTE ==
increase the total lease payments by 2% (2022: 1%). 10%) B BEENRETEEIN2% (=T
T %) o
The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows (e) HEMBEeREBERENKHABEESR

relating to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed
in notes 34(c) and 37(b), respectively, to the consolidated
financial statements.

FARO RN & R 0 B AR & B TS #R R Mt
TE34(0) }37(b) KR EE -
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Notes to Financial Statements B #§ R R Mz
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

15. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 15. A RIE - HttERREREME
OTHER ASSETS, NON-CURRENT E ERE
|
2023 2022
—EBC-=F B F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETTT
Prepayments for purchase of BB H S ETEN
other intangible assets ;A - 759
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEWE - BB REREEN
plant and equipment B 13,322 22,130
Loan to an associate* m—fEBE QA RIIRHER 6,518 6,158
Total 5t 19,840 29,047
* The loan to an associate is unsecured, bears interest at the 6% per * m—EEERARRELERAERT  LA6%FF|
annum and matures in June 2027. K BEWR =T F AR -

1 52 Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T

31 December 2023 —E-—=4+_-F=+—H

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. HittBILEE
[
Software Trademark Patents Total
Lgus (5 =5 st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREF T AREF T AREF T
31 December 2023 —E-=F
+ZA=+-—H
Cost at 1 January 2023, netof WRZZE-=%
accumulated amortisation — B —HBHEA
Mk 2t 16,480 2,169 385 19,034
Additions during the year FARE 3,204 - - 3,204
Transfers from construction ERAERTR
in progress 2,296 - - 2,296
Disposal & (702) - (92) (794)
Amortisation provided FANTIRAE
during the year (10,374) - (100) (10,474)
At 31 December 2023 RZEBEZ=%F
+=—RA=+—H 10,904 2,169 193 13,266
At 31 December 2023: NZEZ=%F
+-A=+—8:
Cost DN 71,315 2,169 1,004 74,488
Accumulated amortisation Sty (60,411) - (811) (61,222)
Net carrying amount BREFE 10,904 2,169 193 13,266
31 December 2022 —E-CF
+=A=+-H
Cost at 1 January 2022, netof WRZZT-—4F
accumulated amortisation —A—HHKAE
N 2ty 22,583 2,169 530 25,282
Additions during the year FRRNE 4,177 - - 4,177
Transfers from construction ERaEETR
in progress 2,126 - - 2,126
Amortisation provided FANTIRA
during the year (12,406) - (145) (12,551)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-—F
+=—RA=+—H 16,480 2,169 385 19,034
At 31 December 2022: RZTE-—F
+-A=+—8:
Cost 3N 73,105 2,169 1,434 76,708
Accumulated amortisation Sty (56,625) - (1,049) (57,674)
Net carrying amount REFE 16,480 2,169 385 19,034
ERBEREZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)

The Group’s trademark is registered in the PRC and renewable
under local legislation. The Group intends to continuously renew
the trademark upon its expiry of registered duration of protection
and such renewal is expected to be at little cost. The trademark is
expected to continuously contribute to the net cash inflow of the
Group.

Impairment testing of other intangible asset -
trademark

The Group’s trademark has an indefinite useful life and is allocated
to the Group’s Zhou Hei Ya Business, which is treated as a cash-
generating unit for impairment testing:

Zhou Hei Ya Business cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the Zhou Hei Ya Business cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections is 13% (2022: 13%) and cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of
5% (2022: 5%), which is the same as the long term average growth
rate of the casual braised food industry.

The carrying amount of the trademark allocated to the cash-
generating unit of the operation of the Zhou Hei Ya Business was
RMB2,169,000 as of 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB2,169,000).

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the Zhou
Hei Ya Business cash-generating unit for 31 December 2023. The
following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
trademark:

Budgeted income — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to income is the average income achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

17. REEE R RINIRE

|
2023 2022
—EC-=8 T F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFT
Share of net assets SMEBEEE 631,501 633,246

Particulars of the Company’s material associates are as follows:

ARTMEABERAFENT -

|
Percentage of
Placeof  Ownership Voting Profit
incorporation interest power sharing  Principal activity
Name £ AMRLLE  FERER REEASM BADH  IEXR
Shenzhen Tiantu Xingnan Investment FImAERmREA B E PRC 25.00% 40.00% 25.00%  Investment fund
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (BEAE) (M mXE®R f REES
("Shenzhen Tiantu Xingnan") (Note a) &) (fffzta)
Shanghai Zni Yi Enterprise Development  HEBEAERRER AT PRC 49.90% 49.90% 49.90%  Investment holding
("Shanghai Zhi Yi") (Note b) ([EE8=]) (M) i REER
Hainan Tiantu Xingzhou Investment BEABERFEERERY PRC 33.33% 25.00% 3333%  Investment fund
Partnership (Limited Partnership) PE(ERAR)([BEXE # REES
("Hainan Tiantu Xingzhou") (Note ¢) ~ BJ&1]) (Fitzic)
Hubei Dwelling Foods Co., Ltd. M BERRERAR (L PRC 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%  Warehousing Business
("Hubei Dwelling") (Note d) 8= ) (k) i BHER
ACCF Ginkgo Capital I L.P. ACCF Ginkgo Capital | Cayman Island 4161% 3333% 4161%  Investment fund
("ACCF Ginkgo") (Note e) LP.(T ACCF Ginkgo)) HEHE REES
(Fite)
BARBERZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE

31 December 2023 —E =

17.

F+=-A=+—8H

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

In March 2018, the Group, through an indirect-wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into a partnership agreement with Shenzhen Tiantu
Capital Management Centre (Limited Partnership) and Shenzhen Tiantu
Xing'an Investment Enterprise (Limited Partnership) to jointly form
Shenzhen Tiantu Xingnan, an investment fund, as a limited partner
with an initial capital commitment of RMB500,000,000, representing
50.00% of the total commitment capital of RMB1,000,000,000 of this
fund.

The Investment Committee of Shenzhen Tiantu Xingnan comprised of
five directors, of which two of them are appointed by the Group and
the remaining three directors were appointed by the other shareholders
of Shenzhen Tiantu Xingnan. The resolution of the board of directors
of Shenzhen Tiantu Xingnan requires approval by simple majority. As
such, the Group can exercise significant influence over Shenzhen Tiantu
Xingnan's financial or operating policies and, accordingly, the Group
accounts for Shenzhen Tiantu Xingnan as an associate.

As of 31 December 2022, the total paid-up capital of this fund was
RMB850,000,000 as a result of the capital distribution to all investors
of RMB90,000,000 in January 2022. The Group's paid-in contribution
of RMB212,500,000 (2021: RMB235,000,000), represented 25.00%
(2021: 25.00%) of the total paid-up capital of this fund.

As of 31 December 2023, the total paid-up capital of this fund was
RMB835,957,000 as a result of the capital distribution to investors of
RMB14,043,000 in September 2023. The Group's paid-in contribution
of RMB208,972,000 (2022: RMB212,500,000), represented 25.00%
(2022: 25.00%) of the total paid-up capital of this fund.

In April 2021, the Group, through an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
entered into an agreement with Shanghai Bofu Business Service Office
(Limited Partnership) to jointly form Shanghai Zhi Yi, with an initial
subscription amount of RMB29,940,000, representing 49.90% of the
total initial subscription amount of this associate.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group’s paid-in contribution of
RMB17,515,000 (2021: RMB17,505,000) represented 49.90% (2021:
49.90%) of the total paid-in capital of Shanghai Zhi Yi.

As of 31 December 2023, the total paid-up capital of this fund was
RMB31,918,000 as a result of the capital distribution to all investors
of RMB3,182,000 in April 2023. the Group’s paid-in contribution of
RMB15,927,000 (2022: RMB17,515,000) represented 49.90% (2022:
49.90%) of the total paid-up capital of Shanghai Zhi Yi.
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

()

(d)

In October 2021, the Group, through an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into a partnership agreement with Shenzhen Tiantu
Capital Management Centre (Limited Partnership) and Shenzhen
Tiantu Investment Management Co., Ltd to jointly form Hainan Tiantu
Xingzhou, an investment fund, as a limited partner with an initial
subscription amount of RMB500,000,000, representing 50.00% of the
total initial subscription amount of this fund.

The Investment Committee of Hainan Tiantu Xingzhou comprised of
four directors, of which one of them is appointed by the Group and
the remaining three directors were appointed by other shareholders
of Hainan Tiantu Xingzhou. The resolution of the board of directors
of Hainan Tiantu Xingzhou requires approval by simple majority. As
such, the Group can exercise significant influence over Hainan Tiantu
Xingzhou's financial or operating policies and, accordingly, the Group
accounts for Hainan Tiantu Xingzhou as an associate.

As of 31 December 2022, total capital paid-up of this fund
was RMB570,000,000, being the additional capital injection of
RMB70,000,000 by independent third institutional investors.
The Group’s paid-in contribution of RMB250,000,000 (2021:
RMB250,000,000) represented 43.86% (2021: 50.00%) of the total
paid-in capital of Hainan Tiantu Xingzhou.

As of 31 December 2023, the total paid-up capital of this fund
was RMB750,000,000, being the additional capital injection of
RMB175,000,000 by independent third institutional investors
and RMB5,000,000 by Shenzhen Tiantu Capital Management
Centre (Limited Partnership). The Group’s paid-in contribution of
RMB250,000,000 (2022: RMB250,000,000) represented 33.33%
(2022: 43.86%) of the total paid-up capital of Hainan Tiantu Xingzhou.

In November 2021, the Group, through an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, disposed of 80.00% ownership of Hubei Dwelling, and the
remaining 20.00% of equity interest in Hubei Dwelling was accounted
for investment in an associate.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made a
RMB9,000,000 capital injection into Hubei Dwelling.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group's paid-in contribution of
RMB15,000,000 (2021: RMB6,000,000) represented 20.00% (2021:
20.00%) of the total paid-up capital of Hubei Dwelling.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group made a
RMB1,080,000 capital injection into Hubei Dwelling.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group's paid-in contribution of
RMB16,080,000 (2022: RMB15,000,000) represented 20.00% (2022:
20.00%) of the total paid-up capital of Hubei Dwelling.
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd) 17. RBEE R TINRE 2)
(e)  InJune 2022, the Company entered into a partnership agreement with (&) MZZT-—FXNA XAGHEABRABA @

Advantage China Consumer Fund (ACCF Capital) and Ginkgo Future
Ltd. to jointly form ACCF Ginkgo Capital I L.P, as a limited partner, with
an initial subscription amount of USD30,000,000, representing 49.50%
of the total initial subscription amount of the fund.

The Investment Committee of ACCF Ginkgo comprised of three
directors, of which one of them is appointed by the Group and the
remaining two directors were appointed by the other shareholders of
ACCF Ginkgo. The resolution of the board of directors of ACCF Ginkgo
requires approval by simple majority. As such, the Group can exercise
significant influence over ACCF Ginkgo's financial or operating policies
and, accordingly, the Group accounts for ACCF Ginkgo as an associate.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group's paid-in contribution of
USD10,000,000 represented 49.50% of the total paid-up capital of
USD20,200,000.

In June 2023, Max Bloom Group Limited joined the partnership, as a
limited partner, with an initial subscription amount of USD2,500,000.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s paid-in contribution of
USD10,000,000 represented 41.61% of the total paid-up capital of
UsSD24,033,000.
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

Notes to Financial Statements B1 # R R MisE

17.

31 December 2023 —E-—=4+_-F=+—H

REFERARNRE

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information TRHFABEEAB S ATNHMEERBE(E
in respect of material associates adjusted for any differences in the MetREE=EEL AR EESMBEHRERAN
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the BEE{EYEE) :
consolidated financial statements:
[
Shenzhen Hainan ACCF
Tiantu Tiantu Shanghai Hubei Ginkgo
Xingnan Xingzhou ZhiYi Dwelling  Capital I L.P Total
ACCF
Ry BE Ginkgo
REERE REEE 52 WiHE  Capital ILP st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
31 December 2023 ZECZETZAZt-H ARBTR  ARMTRT ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR
Current assets nBEE 91,722 126,484 31,911 2213 48,773 301,163
Non-current assets HRPEE 944,379 666,648 - 250,076 134,855 1,995,958
Current liabilities AR (572) (738) (113) (53,252) (12,056) (66,791)
Non-current liabilities ErREBaE - - - (125,693) - (125,693)
Net assets AEE 1,035,529 792,394 31,738 73,404 171,572 2,104,637
Proportion of the Group's AEENREEEL])
ownership 25.00% 33.33% 49.90% 20.00% 41.61%
Camying amount of the BRRANEEE
investments 258,882 264,105 15,837 21,030 71,647 631,501
Revenue Y& (43,610) 59,881 - 320 3,895
Profit/{oss) for the year FREF/ (B8) (59,831) 40,377 (173) (4,875) 6,528
Total comprehensive incomef(loss)  ER2EYN /(EE)
for the year &% (59,831) 40,377 (173) (4,875) 6,528
BRBERERERART
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd) 17. REFE NRINRE (@)
[
Shenzhen Hainan ACCF
Tiantu Tiantu Shanghai Hubei Ginkgo
Xingnan Xingzhou ZhiYi Dwelling  Capital ILP Total
ACCF
el sk Ginkgo
REERH AEEE LEEE HILIE  Capital I LP 3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
31 December 2022 “EOCEYTA=t-H ARBTR ARETRT ARETRE ARBTRT ARETRT ARETR
Current assets RBEE 57,423 20,426 35,093 4,625 105,855 223,422
Non-current assets FEREEE 1,052,462 551,817 - 100,117 29,948 1,734,344
Current liabllities ok JL=N (482) (226) - (116) (355) (1,179
Non-current liabilities ERBARE - - - _ _ _
Net assets BEFE 1,109,403 572,017 35,093 104,626 135,448 1,956,587
Proportion of the Group's REENERELD
ownership 25% 43.86% 49.9% 20% 49.5%
Carrying amount of the ABRENERRE
investments 277,351 250,885 17,51 20,925 66,574 633,246
Revenue W 39,304 35,134 - - 669
Profiti(oss) for the year FREF(EE) 26,431 9,005 2 (74) (5,236)
Total comprehensive incomef(loss) A2 EUA,/(E1E)
for the year kS| 26,431 9,005 2 (74) (5,236)
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18. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME, NON-CURRENT

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R Mz
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

18. EERBRQAFEFAHMEERAZ
RERE - FRE

|
2023 2022
—EBZ=HF —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Equity investments designated at fair EEBRAFEFAEMEEZEKA
value through other comprehensive ZRERE  FRE
income, non-current
Hubei Mingchuang Agricultural Technology J#1tBREI R R REF R A A
Development Co., Ltd. (“Mingchuang”) (Tregsll) 2,500 2,500

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income as the Group considers
these investments to be strategic in nature.

In January 2022, the Group, through an indirect-wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into a capital subscription agreement with
Mingchuang, an unlisted company incorporated in the PRC, with
a capital increase with RMB2,500,000 representing 3.33% of total
paid-in capital of Mingchuang. Mingchuang is principally engaged in
food processing.

BHRASER R LR EREARBEE - %
RETAIRE A E AR A FEF AR 2R
A °

RZTZZF—F - AEEFERBEMEL2ENR
B e A (—ARP MK MIELETA
AR EARRE R - &R ARE2,500,000
TC AR E M E A BRER3.33% - BHEIEZER
ERMIMTI -

19. INVENTORIES 19. #&
|
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Raw materials R 246,606 220,808
Work in progress RS 5,975 2,114
Finished goods 2K 41,717 33,748
Packaging materials BEME 21,022 24,056
315,320 280,726
BRBERERERART
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. EZEIWFIE
[ S —
2023 2022
—E-=F T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETF T
Trade receivables B S EWGRIE 78,259 63,297
Less: Impairment provision B RERE (16,999) (7,260)
61,260 56,037

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned
and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables related to various
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

SR B TSR R B FE MR IR A RS BRAR A2 ] - DA
BEREERRER - SRERETE RN BIE
o BN EXATR R ANEE R 5 RUGRIRE Z ([
TRAEPEENEE U BEXREFEAM
@ o AEE N B H B 5 BUGRIR RS A (EA
ERRREMIBEREE - BHRUFATEE °

REMRREZEMEONEZRUGIA(SH
BEBREE) NRROTIT

[ —
2023 2022
—EC-=F - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFT
Within 3 months =EAR 29,804 46,665
3 to 12 months =z+—-@EA 31,401 1,919
Over 1 year —F LAk 55 7,453
61,260 56,037

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

20. EZEBWRIE#)
BB NI R EBRR BRI T

|
2023 2022
—EBC-=F T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
At beginning of year F 7,260 1,335
Impairment losses (note 7) AR (FEE7) 9,739 5,925
At end of year FR 16,999 7,260

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected
credit losses prescribed in HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. The Group
overall considers the characteristics of the shared credit risk and
the days past due of the trade receivables to measure the expected
credit losses. Majority of the receivables were neither past due nor
impaired and relate to diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default and in general, the Group recognises a loss
allowance based on a 12-month ECLs at each reporting date. The
Directors are of the opinion that the credit risk was minimal in view
of there has not been a significant change in credit quality.

To measure the ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The ECLs
below also incorporate forward-looking information. The impairment

AEBRABBITERHE BT B REERIE9
SATRENTRREEREE - ZEAAFHERMA
B SN TR BEFESNERERRE - &
SEEREEREEERRSBIESREIA
HBHIRBATTEEREREEE - RN ARD &
WRRBE AR @ B TR AR E - B B B AR XA
BROZTCEPAR  M—RME  AREIRE
WS AR+ B A RREEEEREREIE R
o ENEEERAUBEREE)  EERREE
[ E DR

RIBEMEREER  ESRKFECREEAS
EERRFEMBIMREUETHE - N TTRHE
EBEERSHBLER BE-T - =FKk "

as of 31 December 2023 and 2022 is determined as follows: E-_F+ZR=+—H  BEBIAT
[ —

2023 2022
—EC-=5F - —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F R ARETTT
Expected credit loss rate TEEfEEIEARE 21.72% 11.47%
Gross carrying amount BEREER 78,259 63,297
Impairment JHE 16,999 7,260

ERBEREZERERAR
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21. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21. ENRE > HttEWFEREMEE

OTHER ASSETS

|
2023 2022
—E:-=F T F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBFT
Prepaid property rents TERYEES 24,734 27,309
Advances to employees BTREME LK 2,377 1,309
Advances to suppliers e TR TENR 31,379 35,291
Deductible input VAT AIHIRE TR E R 63,273 37,614
Interest receivable JE IR 2, 29,942 22,503
Others Hib 9,314 12,040
161,019 136,066

PREBEEHSEARIRE - 5t A LR ERH DR
B A T BN A R R SR M EMGRIB B R -

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.

22. STRUCTURED DEPOSITED AND OTHER 22. HBMEFERREAFETFABEZNE

164

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH tEmEE
PROFIT OR LOSS
EEEE—
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
bz AR®TT AREFIT
Current: BNES
Other financial assets at FVTPL BAHERABEEM
Structured deposits products G REM (i) 514,749 307,546
Wealth management products BEEM (i) - 717,189
514,749 1,024,735
Non-current: FEBNER :
Other financial assets at FVTPL BAFEF B EM
Private equity fund CREELENERES (iif) 120,000 120,000
634,749 1,144,735

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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22. STRUCTURED DEPOSITED AND OTHER
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Cont'd)

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

The above structured deposits products were issued by licensed banks
in Chinese Mainland. As at 31 December 2023, structured deposits of
RMB514,749,000 (2022: RMB307,546,000) were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as these structured deposits
are with expected rates of return (not guaranteed) at floating rates
ranging from 1.50% to 3.60% (2022: 1.50% to 3.90%), linked to
foreign exchange rate.

At 31 December 2023, the balance of wealth management products
issued by licensed banks in Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong was nil
(2022: RMB717,189,000). They were mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest. Last year, the
underlying investments of the financial assets were primarily short-
term sovereign bonds, financial bonds and central bank bills, and other
investment products issued by commercial banks in the inter-bank
market in Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong, which were very liquid
with a relatively short-term maturity.

At 31 December 2023, the financial assets of RMB120,000,000 (2022:
RMB120,000,000) represented a private equity fund, of which the
Group is a limited partner. They were mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest. The private
equity fund is managed by an independent professional fund manager
approved by Asset Management Association of China for a period of 5
years.

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R Mz
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23. RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH IN TRANSIT 23. SRHEBERERRE

|
2023 2022
—E-=HF - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFIT
Restricted cash 4,000 100,000
As at 31 December 2023, the restricted cash of RMB4,000,000 RZEZZ=ZF+_A=Z+—8 "  ZRHIR
(2022: RMB100,000,000) represented non-interest-bearing cash  ARKEA400000T(ZE-_F: AR
deposits for letters of credit paid to commercial banks and will be 100,000,000 T ) HE 5 A IE S A TR
returned upon the completion of the corresponding transaction. TR T EER &% - WHIEER S TKIEER
All of the restricted cash of the Group was denominated in RMB as REZBEZ=FR-_F-__F+-_A=+—H &K
of 31 December 2023 and 2022. SEMABEXBRHRSAARKEE -
|
2023 2022
—E-=E —E-fF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT
Cash in transit TERIRE - 700
The cash in transit represents the sales proceeds settled by debit EERSERNFEARUEL RERAREERRT
cards or credit cards at the year end, which have yet to be credited M ARG AR B A I E PTG FUA

by the banks to the Group.
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24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T

31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

24. BERBITEREER

[

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETF T

Cash and cash in bank R RIRITEEATER 277,570 210,618
Time deposits THIFR 796,907 1,034,630
1,074,477 1,245,248

Less: Time deposits with maturity over B =1E R A ERIEE

three months AT R (690,000) (757,707)

Cash and cash equivalents HENEEEEY 384,477 487,541

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB954,146,000 (2022: RMB926,097,000).

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Chinese Mainland'’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate
to their fair values.

RIREHR - AEBUARETENERE S LR
1T S8 M E BiF 0B A R 954,146,0007T
—T- 4 AR¥926,097,0007T) °

ARETREE L BRKEMER - AW - Rig$
B A s S B IR AR M0 ) oK B EE - B EE AN EE
BIRE)  AEEALEBEREREIMNEZERH
RITBARBEAMEEMER -

RITEPFRIRER T RRITHERA XA ZEF
KA E - |RIOTERFERNEE B EIHY
B R E L HIRTT o

Re MRS FEVNRREZE A HERS

ERBEREZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. EZRNRIE
The ageing analysis of the outstanding trade payables as at the end REERARIZEZEAHRE DA NE S ENR
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BRI ITIT ¢
| e
2023 2022
—EC-=F B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFT
Within 3 months ={EARA 92,559 104,492
3 to 6 months =Z=EA 1,889 1,302
6 to 12 months ~Ne+ @A 1,035 809
Over 12 months +@A L 919 841
96,402 107,444
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing. ZPENRIETE -
26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HittENRERETER
|
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
b AR®BTT AREETTT
Current B
Refundable advances from customers A FiREME P FEUK 51,834 49,105
Payables for purchase of property, BEYE  HWEKLRED
plant and equipment JETFRIE 9,685 32,038
Payables for short term leases R SRR 5,093 3,142
Payroll and welfare payable JE & RAEH 159,555 152,659
Other tax payables HibfEM A 8,757 7,682
Deposits received from suppliers B EREm RS 50,784 51,579
Freight expenses BERY 12,283 16,047
Contract liabilities aHBE (i) 46,531 48,250
Other payables HAvfEFRIE (i) 31,580 34,924
376,102 395,426
Non-current FERE
Contract liabilities X ON=NE (i) 19,673 32,850
395,775 428,276
(i)  Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and () EHtEAZEAEIEA T EBEAKRE
repayable on demand. RIEE o
(i) Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver products (i) BHEERERINE R MRS FTKE

MBI - AW A BHEIEEARRER
S T DR THAT B RIS 0 o

and franchise services. The increase in contract liabilities was
mainly due to the increase in sales orders and provision of
franchise services at the end of year.
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Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Cont'd) 26. HftEMRERESEA @)
[
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AREET T
Short-term advances received from WEF W R R
customers
Current TE
Sale of goods HEEM 24,738 30,327
Franchise services Ry SRS 21,793 17,923
Total contract liabilities, current SHBERE  RB 46,531 48,250
Non-current FERB
Franchise services R v RS 19,673 32,850
66,204 81,100
27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 27. AR ES
On 5 November 2020, the Company issued convertible bonds due R-EBE-ZTF+—AFA  ARXFCETR
2025 in the aggregate principal amount of HK$1,550,000,000. The —E_REDHNABRES NEBEA
bonds are convertible at the option of the bondholders into ordinary 1,550,000,00087C c RZZE-ZTE+=F+5<
shares on 16 December 2020 on the basis of the initial conversion B EEEa AR EIRSHRE10.4038 T
price of HK$10.40. The bonds are redeemable at the option of the WIEAEKRALER - EEAEEARER T
bondholders on 5 November 2023 at 103.86% of their principal —=F+— AR BIRALH103.86% & G FES
amount together with accrued but unpaid interest. Any convertible BRANZFEBEOES o TR R TR
notes not converted will be redeemed on 19 November 2025 at SN -—E - FE+— B+ A BIREARSH
106.58% of its principal amount together with accrued but unpaid 106.58% B [F fEET R A 2 FIERER - (EHi%
interest. The bonds carry interest at a rate of 1% per annum, which is 1% M EFRAERN S  HASEXERAARA
payable half-yearly in arrears on 5 May and 5 November. K+—BRBSft e
ARBEBRZRARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Cont'd) 27. RRES @)
The convertible bonds comprise two components: AR E SR MRl D 4B ¢
a) The debt component was initially measured at fair a) (EBI DY AT {E1,494,938,000/ 7T
value amounting to HK$1,494,938,000 (equivalent to (FHE R AR#1,258,139,0007L)5T = © B&
RMB1,258,139,000). It is subsequently measured at amortised BEABTRIERELE R SR EE
cost using the effective interest method after considering the BIB IR AT = -

effect of the transaction costs.

b)  The derivative component comprises conversion options and b) ’ﬁi%{ﬁ;}@ﬁ.ﬁ}ﬁ R A AR B RE o #E (7 3
early redemption options (not closely related to the debt BR (& 7% 6 7} ZHEE) YR AFE
component), which were initially measured at fair value with 55,062,000 7T (F8E X AR #46,341,000
an amount of HK$55,062,000 (equivalent to RMB46,341,000). TL)EtE

The total transaction costs of HK$29,104,000 (equivalent to HEETAABREEFEBEBORT SR AL

RMB24,494,000) that are related to the issue of the convertible 29,104,000/ T (FHE R A R24,494,0007T) 2

bonds were allocated to the debt component exclusively in its initial REVIBTEREE I BREERIL S © KitA

measurement, and were included in the carrying amount of the debt BRI HEEEE - W(FE AT R ERT R

component and amortised over the period of the convertible bonds EEREAR TS o

using the effective interest method.

From the issuance date of convertible bonds of 5 November 2020 BrRBRESRTH - E-_EF+—ARHEZE

to 1 November 2023, there has not been any conversion of the TEC=F+—A—H - SiEERE A RRkE

convertible bonds. As of 31 December 2023, the Group has totally HoHEE-_=F+_-_A=1+—H KE£EED

redeemed the convertible bonds. ZEER AT AR ES o
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Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T

31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H
27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Cont'd) 27. ATRARES (@)
|
Embedded
Debt derivative
component component Total
BRI BARSTEI D HEt
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREEFIT AREEFTT
Nominal value of convertible =T = —FP37A[#R
bonds issued in 2022 REHEE 1,233,353 34,278 1,267,631
Interest expense FBRAXZ 35,711 - 35,711
Interest paid EFE (10,430) - (10,430)
Exchange realignment P 3 A2 95,636 2,704 98,340
Early redemption FEAIAEE (914,591) (22,856) (937,447)
Gain arising on change of NEEEBEEZ
fair value Wk - 2,731 2,731
As at 31 December 2022 pr .= S—
+=ZA=+—H 439,679 16,857 456,536
Interest expense FBERAXZ 8,616 - 8,616
Interest paid EFE (2,361) - (2,361)
Early redemption IERIE (456,587) (16,932) (473,519)
Exchange realignment b 5, B 10,653 75 10,728
As at 31 December 2023 R-T-=%F
+=ZA=+—H - - -

28.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

28. T ESRITER

|
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
ZE-=E+ZR=1-H ZEIZETZR=T-H
Effective Effective
Interest Interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BRFIZ(%) BRER  ARMTRT  ERNE%) EFER  ARETR
Bank borrowings - unsecured FTEH - EER - - - 2.05-2.5 2023 60,000
Bank borrowings - secured (note)  $R{TE R~ BHEIR (i) - - - 21 2023 100,000
- 160,000
Note: MH5T

As of 31 December 2022, the Group's time deposits of RMB100,000,000
were pledged for this letter of credit. During the year, the bank borrowings
were fully repaid and as of 31 December 2023, the Group had no borrowings
and all pledged assets were released.

HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—8 KEETHERA
#100,000,0007t B EREEAE RS o RNFRITE
RErHERE HE-_ZT-_=F+-A=+—H K
EEMERITES - WEEBRAEERFEE KA -

ERBEREZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

29. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and tax liabilities during the

year are as follows:

29. JEER R
FREEHIBEERBARBENZBNT :

Deferred tax assets EERIBEE
|
Accumulated Expenses  Government
losses accrued grants Others Total
RitEE ST BB Hith @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR¥TR ARETR AR¥TR ARETR
At 31 December 2022 and i S g
at 1 January 2023 e =
“Z-=F—-f—H 63,847 15,099 10,672 15,488 105,106
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FREBZED/(05B)H
profit or loss for the year (note 10)  IEERIA(FIEE10) 492 - (389) (1,495) (1,392)
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F
+ZA=1+—H 64,339 15,099 10,283 13,993 103,714
|
Accumulated Expenses  Government
losses accrued grants Others Total
ZHtEE et T8 Hity @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARBTT AREFT
At 31 December 2021 and RZZE-—F+-H
at 1 January 2022 =+-8k
“E--F—-f—H 34,956 16,700 13,644 18,845 84,145
Deferred tax credited/(charged) o~ FNBEBHER,/ (F1%)H
profit or loss for the year (note 10) ERERIE(KTEE10) 28,891 (1,601) (2,972) (3.357) 20,961
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_—F
+-A=+—H 63,847 15,099 10,672 15,488 105,106
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29. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

29. EEBIE ()

Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEEE
| —
Depreciation
allowance Fair value Share of
in excess  adjustments profit
of related  of financial ~ attributable ~ Withholding
depreciation  instruments  to associates tax Total
BUEEEAE  SEMIAZ PR E
MiTERE  ATERER A TR B LIk
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR¥TR ARETR AR¥BTR ARBT T
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=%—H—H (35,701) (2,519) (17,914) - (56,134)
Deferred tax charged to profitor &R A Bz IR
loss during the year (note 10) EERA(MR10) (3,058) 1,332 695 (35,000) (36,031)
At 31 December 2023 RZB-=%F
+=A=1+-H (38,759) (1,187) (17,219) (35,000) (92,165)
| —
Depreciation
allowance Fair value Share of
in excess adjustments profit
of related of financial  attributable to
depreciation instruments associates Total
LR E TRMIAYZ FE(GREE
R E R NHEFHE NGl st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AR®TFT AR®ETFTT AR®ETFTT
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—F—HF—H (36,573) (3,564) (15,272) (55,409)
Deferred tax charged to profit or FREBZNROIELT
loss during the year (note 10) TIE(MEE10) 872 1,045 (2,642) (725)
At 31 December 2022 NE o
+=-A=+—H (35,701) (2,519) (17,914) (56,134)
BARBERZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

29. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities (Cont'd)

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB13,128,000 (2022: RMB17,816,000) available for offsetting
against future taxable profits in respect of certain subsidiaries in
Chinese Mainland, for which no deferred tax assets have been
recognised. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in certain subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised. The available period of the unused tax losses will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Chinese Mainland.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Chinese Mainland and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributable by those subsidiaries
established in Chinese Mainland in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008. Under the current organisation and operation
structure, the Group's applicable rate is 5%.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recognised the relevant
deferred income tax liabilities of RMB35,000,000 (31 December
2022: Nil) on earnings anticipated to be remitted by certain
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amounts of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Chinese Mainland for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised amounted to approximately RMB2,620,803,000 as at 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB3,092,613,000).
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29. EEBIE ()

LL&E%E%)

HE =F+-A=1+—H rEEFAH
ﬁ% F¢IWWWE AR AR PE RT3 A1 Y
FERAHIEEIEARE13,128,000L (===
F: AR¥17,816,0007T) + Atk W0 £ FL L FER
RIERITEEE - NEBEWERZEHBERIELT
MBEE FRELEREMEEEZETHEBEAR

E2FE—BEE - UWRATAKAESELERM
A ST IR 1R o BEHEAE AR R IE AR A M

ERARBARIEBENFERBEER —E20F
IEIR

RIEFREMERESEE - R E R AN
BECEREINEEETIRMIREBEMN10%
BB - ZETFBE T N\F—A—BREEN
MERAR-_ZZ+tF+ - A=+—HRBREANA
) o iR Bl s B IME B B e BN AR T A
g - AEAERER AR - I% &
EBRPNPEARR IO ZENEATRN-EZ
NE—AB—BRRFESEMNTmS ﬁm% @mﬁm
Tt o 1RYE B AIARAE A 2R - A EREAR
KE5Y o

RZZZ=F+=ZA=+—8 AEEZHE
HTFWEBR R RERAGELNREFERA

R#35,000000c(ZE=Z=2F+=-A=+—
H: )NBEBECHERAG RZT_=F
+ZA=+—H8 @REFHEANBHEARE
BETEERECHEAENTREEEED
AANERHE2,620,803,000C(Z T - —F : AR
3,092,613,0007T) ©



Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

30. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 30. BUR#BY
| e
2023 2022
—EC-=F B
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFT
Non-current IERE 47,191 49,474
Current D 2,283 2,283
49,474 51,757
The movements in government grants during the year are as follows: FABUTHBEE T -
|
Non-current Current Total
FERE B BEr
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—_F—HA—H 51,298 2,372 53,670
Payments were received this year PRI ER S 50 459 - 459
Released to current portion BB E ey (2,283) 2,283 -
Released to profit or loss BEiEn - (2,372) (2,372)
At 31 December 2022 ‘S
+-—A=+—~H 49,474 2,283 51,757
At 1 January 2023 R-ZTE-=F—HA—H 49,474 2,283 51,757
Released to current portion B mEh iy (2,283) 2,283 -
Released to profit or loss BEiEn - (2,283) (2,283)
At 31 December 2023 MN-E-=%F
+=-—A=+—H 47,191 2,283 49,474
BRBERERERART
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. lRA
[
2023 2022
—EC-=F T F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREETFIT
Authorised: JATE
50,000,000,000 shares of USD0.000001 50,000,000,000 8% &%
each (2022: 50,000,000,000 shares of M{E0.000001 3 ST RN
USD0.000001 each) (=ZZ = =% :50,000,000,000
%= I f50.000001 =T
B&15) 306 306
Issued and fully paid: BETRARE
2,383,140,500 shares of USD0.000001 2,383,140,50008 &%
each (2022: 2,383,140,500 shares of [E1E0.000001 3 THI AR 15
USD0.000001 each) (ZZE =% :2,383,140,500
& & AR EI1E0.000001 3£ TTH)
f&) 16 16
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as RATWRAE BB T -
follows:
[
Numbers of

shares in issue

Share capital

Treasury shares

SRITRAEE ;& EFRS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT
At 1 January 2021, RZZT=—_—F—HA—A8-
31 December 2021 and —E-—%+—R
1 January 2022 =t+—BK
—E-_%—A—H 2,383,140,500 16 (341,445)
Exercise of share-based awards {T{¥ LARE(D Sz~ 09 228} - - 16,986
At 31 December 2022 A
+-A=+—8 2,383,140,500 16 (324,459)
At 31 December 2022 and N-ZE-—F+=8
1 January 2023 =+—BK
—E-=F—H—H 2,383,140,500 16 (324,459)
Repurchase of shares EEAEIEPgr) - - (51,709)
Exercise of share-based awards {T{# LARR(D X~ 89 #€ &) - - 25,987
At 31 December 2023 RZZE-=F
+-—A=+—H 2,383,140,500 16 (350,181)
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32. RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME

The Company operates a restricted share unit scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 25 July 2018 for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
the Company’s directors and senior management. The Scheme
became effective on 25 July 2018 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

During the period from 30 August 2018 to 24 October 2018, the
Company purchased 65,412,000 of its shares on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange for a total cash consideration of HK$299,998,000,
equivalent to RMB263,525,000. The purchased shares will be
used as awards for the participants in the Scheme. In 2021, the
Company purchased 10,633,000 of its shares on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange for a total cash consideration of HK$99,975,000,
equivalent to RMB83,286,000. In 2023, the Company purchased
26,343,500 of its shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
for a total cash consideration of HK$56,810,000, equivalent to
RMB51,709,000. As at 31 December 2023, 90,814,419 (2022:
70,930,057) ordinary shares of the Company were held by the
trustee of the Scheme. The total number of RSUs to be granted
under the Scheme in any financial year shall not exceed 3% of the
total shares in issue of the Company as at the beginning of the
financial year.

(a) 20 April 2020

On 20 April 2020, the restricted share units (the “RSUs") of
the Company representing 4,580,900 ordinary shares with par
value of US$0.000001 each of the Company (the “Shares”)
were approved to be granted to 24 selected persons including
2 directors under the Scheme. The grantees of the RSUs are
required to pay for the grant of any RSUs under the RSU
Scheme based on 20% of the average closing share price in
March 2020, which amounted to HK$0.83 per RSU.

On 25 March 2021, the RSUs of the Company representing
1,065,575 Shares were approved to be further granted to
the selected persons mentioned above under the Scheme.
The grantees of the RSUs are required to pay for the grant
of any RSUs under the RSU Scheme based on 20% of the
average closing share price in March 2020, which amounted to
HK$0.83 per RSU.

Notes to Financial Statements B1 # R R MisE

32.

31 December 2023 —E-—=4+_-F=+—H

PRI 7 E A 5t &
ARATARZE-NEFLAZ+RARBERHB
(P EArE B (TRt 8 - AR RER AR EE
EBRDERERMOA BB2EE - L BNE
BEREREAARNESRERERE - Zith
R-T—N\FLAZTHBER - BIESTIY
HiEE] - BRAIBZERAZIARI0F

RE-_Z—N\EFENA=Z+BZ2-_ZF—N\F+A
THOBEMEERN KRR RBE BB ZAE
B 65,412,000 A AR H - BREESREA
299,998,000 7 7t (48 & M A K 1 263,525,000
L) c EREBERMEAERSIZEENEE -
RZEZ—F ARARBEBBRABE
10,633,000 [k A X B fE D - LR ENREA
99,975,000 /& 7T (48 & % A K ¥ 83,286,000
L) c MRZTBZ=F  ARAIREBHZNE
H 26,343,500k A ARG - BEERER
56,810,000/ 7T (AEE R ARMES1,709,0007T) ©
R=ZZT—=F+=-A=+—8 90,814,419
—E 4 1 70,930,0578%) ANA I E B B X
SEIRFEARE - RE—BFERBEXR G
D EERIET B AR BIAR (D BAI B - TSR
BN ZETF E BN A R E B TR B EE &Y
3% o

() ZE=ZEFMWA=+H
R-ZB_TENA-1+H  BEZFE
RATZBHIRMDEM([ZRFRDE
{7 )RR AR R &% M B 40.000001 37T
IR A% 4,580,900 i ([ B3 N EE T
0HBFEANL(BIERES) - XIRHIRHD
BRI ABRRRIE R B (5 B AL ETE]
BREOEMZRERMDEMIE - -TF
= AR THBE20% (BNE 2R HIp) &
70.83%7T) LS 5/IA -

RZEZ—F=A=+HA  RBEZXT
&+ RARZR B EA1,065,5758% 8%
HEMEE—SRT LEFAL - BR
BB BB AL AR A BB IR IR HI B B
fET B8R E A EMZR RGO BEMNIE =
ZEF= AFHRTER20% (B SR
Betn BBA0.8378 70 ) L FUH ©

ERBEREZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

32. RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME (Cont'd)

(b)

()

(d)

25 March 2021

On 25 March 2021, the RSUs of the Company representing
10,206,295 Shares were approved to be granted to 160
selected persons including 2 directors under the Scheme.
The grantees of the RSUs are required to pay for the grant
of any RSUs under the RSU Scheme based on 20% of the
average closing share price in March 2021, which amounted to
HK$1.23 per RSU.

31 March 2022

On 31 March 2022, the grant of 12,106,500 RSUs to 220
selected persons including 2 directors under the Scheme was
approved. The grantees of the RSUs are required to pay for the
grant of RSUs at a price of HK$1.23 per RSU.

3 April 2023

On 3 April 2023, 16,182,500 of RSUs were granted to 260
selected persons including 2 directors under the Scheme. The
vesting is subject to the satisfaction of performance and such
conditions are not satisfied in whole or in part, the RSUs shall
lapse automatically in respect of such proportion of underlying
shares as have not vested with effect from the date on which
the conditions are not satisfied.

As of 31 December 2023, the aggregate shares concerned

represented 1.17% (2022: 1.20%) of the Company's issued shares as
at 31 December 2023.

The granted RSUs shall vest, subject to the performance of the
individual grantee and the Company, as follows:

0

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

as to 25% of the RSUs on the date ending 12 months after the
date of grant of the RSUs;

as to an additional 25% of the RSUs on the date ending 24
months after the date of grant of the RSUs;

as to an additional 25% of the RSUs on the date ending 36

months after the date of grant of the RSUs; and

as to the remaining 25% of the RSUs on the date ending 48
months after the date of grant of the RSUs.
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32. ZMRBIRDEAF &)

by ZE=—F=A=+HH

RZEZ—F=A=Z+HA  BEZ
FrEl ARREREIBMEMRE
10,206,295 A% & 17 B 5% T 1608 F A &
(BIE2RBESE) - XRHIRMEM AR AL
PARIE S R$IRR (0 BE AL ET IR K A2
FREIR G BRI —E - —E= A EHH
EH20% (BN SR AR5 BEA1.23787T)
SAFRIE -

(0 =ZE==—F=A=+—H
R-ZZE-_—_F=A=+—8  cibERE
ZA R0 ETEAT(BIE2EESE)E
F12,106,500 8% 52 R & & 10 BB L o IR
A& A7 BT IR A B LI 5 2 PR I AR 15 BE L
REFREHIENDR A1 23T FE -

(dy ZEZ=FB=H
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M2660%ETFTAL(BE2ZEE) R
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32. RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME (Cont'd) 32. ZRBIROEME @)
The following shares were outstanding under the scheme during the HARS A - ARIEEZET 2R LA T RS 1 R BT -
period:
2022 B —
[
Number of shares
Share price R#%A
as at the Granted Vested Forfeited
date Exercise  Asat1Jan during  duringthe  duringthe  Asat31Dec
Date of grant of grant price 2022 the year year year 2022 Vesting period
RETF BEH R=Z=Zf R=Z=zf
BRYEH RE %8 -F-B FRERE FAEHRE FRERK tZA=T-B  BES
HKS HKS$
B BT
20 April 2020 473 0.83 2,885,810 - (961,927) (91,567) 1,832,316 *20 April 2020-25 March 2024
e Sl 23 WIZZZENAZTRE
MA=TH ZZCME=A-+IA
25 March 2021 7.90 0.83 1,065,575 - (355,188) (33811) 676,576 25 March 2021-25 March 2024
“T--F e e e o =Y
ZA=tA@H ZE-WE=-A=THA
25 March 2021 7.90 123 9,906,456 - (2,465870) (248,916) 7,191,670 25 March 2021-25 March 2025
—Zo-% RZZ-—F=A-+1H
Z“RA=-tEAR 2-Z-R¥=A-ThHA
31 March 2022 432 1.23 - 12,106,500 - (224,000) 11,882,500 31 March 2022-31 March 2026
e Sk 3 RZZ-ZF=A=1-HF
ZR=t-H ZE-RFZR=T-R
13,857,841 12,106,500  (3,782,985) (598,294) 21,583,062
BARBERZERERAR
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31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

32. RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME (Cont'd)

The following shares were outstanding under the scheme during the

period: (Cont’d)

32.

R0 ELE 8l ()
ERSPY - AR B PO LA TR AR BT
()

2023 =5
|
Number of shares
Share price R#%A
as at the Granted Vested Forfeited
date Exercse Asat1Jan  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  Asat31 Dec
Date of grant of grant price 2023 year year year 2023  Vesting period
RETF BEH R=BZ=% R=Z=zf
BRYEH RE ke -F-B FRERE FAEHRE FRERK tZA=T-B  BEHS
HKS HKS$
B BT
20 April 2020 473 0.83 1,832,316 - (908,322) (327,170) 59,824 20 April 2020-25 March 2024
I S 223 RZZ-ZEMA=THE
MA=TH qfﬂlﬁ A-+IA
25 March 2021 7.90 0.83 676,576 - (335,395) (2,142) 339,039 25 March 2021-25 March 2024
It Sl 2 LZ-F-AZtHAZ
=AZt3A _7_@ﬁ AZtHHA
25 March 2021 7.90 123 7,191,670 - (2,353,646 (315,639) 4,522,385 25 March 2021-25 March 2025
—Zo-% R-B--F=A-+HAZ
b=y 1= ZECR¥=R-tEA
31 March 2022 438 123 11,882,500 - (2,861,775 (700,075) 8,320,650 31 March 2022-31 March 2026
Sk 3 RZFZZ#=A=+-R%
=A=1-8 757/\¢:ﬂ:+—5
3 April 2023 3.64 0.89 - 16,182,500 - (16,182,500) = 3 April 2023-3 April 2027
ZECCF RZT_=FMA=RZE
mA=A —“Z-tENA=A
21,583,062 16,182,500  (6,459,138)  (17,527,526) 13,778,898

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised an
equity-settled share-based payment expense of RMB24,401,000

(2022: RMB32,768,000).

The fair value of the restricted share under the Scheme as at the date
of grant was determined based on the closing price of Company’s

share as at the date of grant.

* The end of vesting period has been changed from 20 April 2024 to 25

March 2024.
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33. RESERVES

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 85 to 86 of the
consolidated financial statements.

Share premium

The share premium of the Group represents the amount paid by
shareholders for capital injection in excess of its nominal value.
Details of the movements in the share premium are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve of the Group represents the reserve arose from
reorganisation in previous years.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, certain subsidiaries
of the Group which are domestic enterprises are required to
allocate a certain portion (not less than 10%) of their profit after
tax, as determined in accordance with the relevant PRC accounting
standards, to their respective statutory surplus reserves until the
reserves reach 50% of their respective registered capital. Subject
to certain restrictions set out in the Company Law of the PRC, part
of the statutory surplus reserve may be converted to increase share
capital, provided that the remaining balance after the capitalisation is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve
The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record exchange
differences arising from the translation of the consolidated financial
statements of the foreign subsidiaries.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of shares
awarded which are yet to be vested, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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33. f#te
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE

31 December 2023 —E =

F+=—A=+—H

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB236,368,000 (2022:
RMB373,442,000) and RMB222,611,000 (2022: RMB365,500,000)
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for properties.

34. FEBHERERMTE

(a) EEFRERSH
RAFE i EREZHNE  A%E
FRAEEERHEABENIRSFIED R
BARME236,368,000L(ZFE=—F : A
R#373,442,0007T) X AR#222,611,000
T(ZEZ=F : AR¥365,500,0007T) °

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) EXEBERMETENEESE
activities
2023 —E-=F
[ S
Convertible
bond and
related
Interest- derivative
bearing bank financial Lease
borrowings instruments liabilities
AR
&% K186
sTEMBITER TTESRMTIA HEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
At 1 January 2023 RZZEZ=F—H—H 160,000 456,536 350,247
Changes from financing cash flows FI&IR & REE (162,485) (467,321) (214,895)
Gain from early redemption of TEAIIE Bl AT R IR E S
convertible bond Wk - (8,559) -
New leases FiE - - 222,611
Revision of a lease term arising from [E#H & HAR o &idE 2
a change in the non-cancellable BEHMBHNEHEE
period of a lease - - (75,144)
Interest expense FEFAX 2,485 8,616 12,539
Interest paid classified as operating D EAKEIRESTEN
cash flows 2HFE - - (12,539)
Foreign exchange effects INEFZE - 10,728 -
At 31 December 2023 B =F
+=-A=+—H - - 282,819
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 34. KA B & RERME )
CASH FLOWS (cont'd)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) EXEBERETENAEEEE)
activities (Contd)
2022 —E-—F
EENNTT
Convertible
bond and
related
Interest- derivative
bearing bank financial
borrowings instruments  Lease liabilities
AR
&5 LA
FFERITER fTEemIA HEBE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREEFIT ARETTT AREEFTT
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_F—HF—H 50,000 1,267,631 374,201
Changes from financing cash flows R&EIR & RES 110,000 (896,964) (199,963)
Gain from early redemption of IERTEE Bl Al AR S 5 W s
convertible bond - (50,913) -
New leases g - - 365,500
Covid-19-related rent concessions 71 &5 tH F8 A #9 ER 3 T b A
from lessors FIEHEENHSER - - (34,790)
Reassessment of a lease term AT TSR R
arising from a decision not to AR E T A,
exercise the extension option - - (23,014)
Revision of a lease term arising A E RN
from other changes in the non- H B mEHH
cancellable period of a lease HEEE - - (131,687)
Interest expense FERAX - 35,711 16,997
Fair value gain on embedded BARPTERSH
derivative component NFEEKE - 2,731 -
Interest paid classified as operating D EAKEIRSTREN
cash flows ERFE - - (16,997)
Foreign exchange effects INERZ - 98,340 -
At 31 December 2022 R-ZZT-—%F
+=—A=+—H 160,000 456,536 350,247
BRBERERERART
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows is as follows:

34. GEHEHRERM=E )

() MERSHHAE
AAGARSRERNEER SR AE
T

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R ARETTT
Within financing activities 2 REEE T (214,895) (199,693)
Within operating activities SR ES) (98,013) (73,734)
35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. HAREE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant REMEHR - AEEWRERNAAE -

contingent liabilities.

36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group's interest-
bearing bank borrowings are included in notes 23 and 28,
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.
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37. COMMITMENTS

(@ The Group had the following capital commitments at the end
of the reporting period:

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
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37. &iE

(a) RIEHIK - AEEBE FHEARYE -

[ D

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT

Contracted, but not provided for: BB RS
Software ;i 89 -
Buildings EF 36,572 38,785
Plant and machinery e K ikes 1,292 1,680
37,953 40,465

In addition, the Group’s undrawn capital meaning an associate

Ush - AEBBAREAANKERAS

is as follows: NN
[ D
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTR AREFTT
Capital contributions payable to fEmEEE R EIHE

associates 412,048 407,237

(b) The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet
commenced as at 31 December 2023. The future lease
payments for these non-cancellable lease contracts are
RMB11,998,000 (2022: RMB203,364,000) due within one
year, RMB6,915,000 (2022: RMB178,625,000) due in the
second to seventh years.

(b)

AEBEHEBEE TR Z_ZEZ_=F+=A
Z+—BRBBHEEALN - ZETAH
HEHEANNRRBENK A —FRIE
AR®11,9980007T(ZFE = —4F : A
R#203,364,0007T) * E=FE2ELFH
ARMB,915000(ZT=2F « ARM
178,625,0007T) ©

ERBEREZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B #§ R R Mz
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. B AR S
(a) Designation and relationship of related parties (a) EAEEFMIBIBAEIF

Related parties for the years ended 31 December 2022 and BE T - FR-_ZFT-_=%+-A

2023 were as follows: =T —RIEFENEB AT

|
Name Relationship
BE/ BB e
Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang Ultimate controlling shareholder
A= ERERS T BRI ER
Zhou Hei Ya Foods Joint Stock Limited Subsidiary controlled by the Controlling Shareholders

Company (“ZHY Foods")
ARBRRBRHERAF(ARERM]) PERR IR ) Y BB X R

Hubei Dwelling Associate of the Group
Wit RE REEE SN A
Mingchuang Subsidiary controlled by a close member of Mr. Zhou Fuyu's family
ZEl HAEBHEE—RERSBIEHINMEAR
(b) The Group had the following transactions with (b) XEBRFREBEBR S ETHIRS
related parties during the year: mT
[
2023 2022
—E-=F =St =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBFT
Rental payments GiEkEANE=N
Mr. Zhou Fuyu AEtaE 118 -
ZHY Foods FAEBRm 3,510 2,880
3,628 2,880
Interest income FEMA
Hubei Dwelling LR E 360 158

1 86 Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c)

Financing arrangements
The following transactions were carried out with related
parties:

Pursuant to the agreements between the Group and the
Controlling Shareholders, Hubei Shiji Yuanjing leased three
stores (2022: six stores) for the year ended 31 December
2023 from the Controlling Shareholders for its operation with
periods of approximately 2 years (2022: 2 years). The lease
terms were mutually agreed between the parties.

The leases for three stores were recognised under HKFRS 16.
The amount of rent payable by the Group under the leases was
approximately RMB52,000 per month (2022: RMB252,000 per
month) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T

31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

()

A =B
BB RITATRS

IR IR S B B iR AR 3R 2 B9 13 a% - L
s E S _=F+=-_A=+—H
IEFE - AEEBREAE=fFME(=ZF
ZZF  NEME)  AREAME(ZE
TZF  WE)BEAES - HEKRAE]
77 HERLE -

“HPEMEENRESEMBHRE L
Al 165 ER - BHE_T-_=F+=-A
=t+—HLFE RBEZERE  ~5H
ENHeeE AT ANARES2,0007t(=
L% : §AARKE252,0007T) ©

[ B
2023 2022
—E-=F T F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT
Lease liabilities HEAE - 610
Interest expense T e 17 30
Payment for lease liabilities NHEEBE 550 4,847

The related party transactions in respect of the items related
to the leases above also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

B LB E T B M BT 3 5 TV R
BREERS(EER LTRAE4AE)

ERBEREZERERAR
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 38.
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties:
The Group had an outstanding balance due from
Hubei Dwelling, its associate, of RMB6,518,000 (2022:
RMB6,158,000) as at the end of the reporting period. Principle
and the related interest receivables were included in the other
non-current assets as of 31 December 2023 (Note 15).

(e) Compensation of key management personnel of

BEE RS E)

(d) RISEREE S BR%ER -
PG IR - A E R & R EHE
BERTHREAARKE,518,000T(=F
——4%: AR¥6,158,0007T) - HE_-Z
—=FE+ZA=+—H8 A& REEEK
FEBIAEMIEREEE (KIzE15) -

() AEBTEEEASHHM :

the Group:
I
2023 2022
ZEZZ=F —T-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR¥ETT
Short-term employee benefits e EHEE & T 14,698 17,651
Post-employee benefits BEBR 12 1B T 481 481
Equity-settled share-based payment DARE 2R 45 & DARRAD A 5T 6
expense RRFX 4,927 10,805
20,106 28,937

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

39. TR T A -ZERED

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

RBERR - FREMTANKEENT :

2023 =5
Financial assets EREE
[
Equity
investments
Mandatorily at fair value
designated as  Financial assets  through other
financial assets atamortised  comprehensive
at FVTPL cost income Total
BHETAR BROFEFA
NATEFA REHERE  Htt2EWAZ
BRvEREE ABRNSREE RERE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARET ARET
Trade receivables g S kzE - 61,260 - 61,260
Other financial assets included in STABRFUE - At EREIE R
prepayments, other receivablesand ~ EMAEMEMEBEE
other assets - 39,460 - 39,460
Rental deposits RERS - 95,175 - 95,175
Structured deposits BEEHER 514,749 - - 514,749
Other financial instruments at FVTPL A FERFABEA
HitemTA 120,000 - - 120,000
Restricted cash XREIBEE - 4,000 - 4,000
Cash and bank balances Be RBTERsEs - 1,074,477 - 1,074,477
Equity investments designated at REREATE AR
fair value through other 2ERAZ R E
comprehensive income - - 2,500 2,500
634,749 1,274,372 2,500 1,911,621
BRBERERERART
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Contd) 39. @R T HE —HER2 9 &)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RIREHIR - RESHTEMNEmAELT : (&)
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
(Cont’d)
2023 (Cont'd) ZEC=H(E)
Financial liabilities LREE
[
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities at
at FVTPL amortised cost Total
RAYE R
fFABEZ 2 N
A= NN et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T ARBTT
Trade payables B S ERFIE - 96,402 96,402
Financial liabilities included in 5t A E fib & 7018 &
other payables and accruals EEFERNSRmAEE - 109,425 109,425
Lease liabilities HEBE - 282,819 282,819
- 488,646 488,646
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R Mz
31 December 2023 —E-_=F+_-_A=+—H

39. EWMITR-REHE D @)
REEIR - SESMTAGREENT : (&)

(Cont’d)
2022 —E__—F
Financial assets SREE
|
Equity
investments
Mandatorily at fair value
designated as  Financial assets through other
financial assets at amortised comprehensive
at FVTPL cost income Total
BEIETER e BATERFA
MATERA RAARS  E2ERAZ
BazemEE PREE R g et
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Trade receivables e} L6 - 56,037 - 56,037
Other financial assets FTATBNRIE - At
included in prepayments, other [EUFEREMEE
receivables and HEMSRHEE
other assets - 31,503 - 31,503
Rental deposits HERE - 94,195 - 94,195
Structured deposits BEEER 307,546 - - 307,546
Other financial instruments RO EH BN
at FVTPL HieBIA 837,189 - - 837,189
Restricted cash XREIRE - 100,000 - 100,000
Cash in transit EgRe - 700 - 700
Cash and bank balances Re RFTERER - 1,245,248 - 1,245,248
Equity investments designated at fair 1§ ARAFEH ALt 2k
value through other comprehensive A2 et &
income - - 2,500 2,500
1,144,735 1,527,683 2,500 2,674,918
BRBERERERART
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Contd) 39. @R T HE —HER2 9 &)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RIREHIR - RESHTEMNEmAELT : (&)
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
(Cont’d)
2022 (Cont’d) ZEZF(E)
Financial liabilities sHmas
[
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities at
at FVTPL amortised cost Total
BATESA REE SRR
Basertas AENERAE #aEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETTT AREBTIT AREETTT
Trade payables Z S ENRIE - 107,444 107,444
Financial liabilities included in 5t A E fib & 7018 &
other payables and accruals EETERANSRIAE - 137,730 137,730
Convertible bonds Al ES - 439,679 439,679
Interest-bearing bank FHEERITIER - RED
borrowings, current - 160,000 160,000
Derivative financial instruments T4 &g T A 16,857 - 16,857
Lease liabilities HEAE - 350,247 350,247
16,857 1,195,100 1,211,957
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably

approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

40. SRTEAFERLITFEER

AEEEMTAZERERA FECGREESRR
HEBERIERINMT

|
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE AFE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=E —E-F —E-=E —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFIT AR®T T ARBFIT
Financial assets SREE
Structured deposits measured RN F{EETEHY
at fair value HEBEER 514,749 307,546 514,749 307,546
Other financial assets at FVTPL 12 A F(EET ABEEHY
Hith & R EE 120,000 837,189 120,000 837,189
Equity investments designated 3E7E Az AFETA
at fair value through other Hib2mEmAz
comprehensive income IR E 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500
637,249 1,147,235 637,249 1,147,235
| —
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE RNEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=F B — —E-=F —E-oF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETTT AR¥T T ARETTT
Financial liabilities S@MAasE
Convertible Bonds AR ES - 439,679 - 439,679
Derivative financial instruments {74 & @ T A - 16,857 - 16,857
- 456,536 - 456,536

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank
balances, cash in transit, restricted cash, rental deposits, trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, interest-bearing bank borrowings, sHESRITER
trade payables and financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the

short-term maturities of these instruments.

EEECHERE MRITERER - B8RS
XRERE WERE  BHEWHUE - FHAE
NFIE - AtREERIEREMEEN SR EE R
B 5 N F0R At ALK
ENEFERNERAEN A FEREREER
o TEMRRETIABEBRIE -

ERBEREZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and determines
the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The Group invests in structured deposits (2022: structured deposits
and wealth management products), which were issued by banks in
Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong. The Group has estimated the fair
value of these structured deposits and wealth management products
measured at fair value by using a discounted cash flow valuation
model based on the AAA rating bond yield and the implied liquidity
spread as at the issue date.

The Group invests in a private equity fund, which is managed by an
independent professional fund manager. The Group has estimated
the fair value of private equity fund by using recent trading price
approach based on the recent observed price.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 40. TR TEAFERAFEER®)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Fair value hierarchy N EER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TRERAEESRTANATEASESR :

of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value BRAFESENEE
As at 31 December 2023 R-—EB-_=%+=-HA=+—H
[
Fair value measurement using
AT EFERA
Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EAAEE EBEAXFAHEE
WS [OPN ¢
(B=%) (B=8) #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥TRT
Structured deposits measured RATETENERIETER
at fair value 514,749 - 514,749
Other financial assets at FVTLP BAFERT BN
Hiv e @ &EE 120,000 - 120,000
Equity investments designated at 1EE BIE AT ER AHM
fair value through other 2EIRAZ IR E
comprehensive income - 2,500 2,500

ERBEREZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 40. TRITARFERAFERER )
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd) NEEERKZ)
Liabilities measured at fair value BAFEFENERS
As at 31 December 2023 N-B_=F+-A=+—H
[
Fair value
measurement
using
AFETERA
Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)
BEAFAEEBRA
HE(E=R)
RMB’000
ARET T
Derivative financial instruments THESMTA -
Assets measured at fair value BAFEFENEE
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-_—_F+=-RA=+—H
[
Fair value measurement using
N EFEHRA
Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERABE EARAPAEE
BABUR SR
(B=4) (B=4) #aE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREEFIT AREETTT
Structured deposits measured BN ETTFENERIEER
at fair value 307,546 - 307,546
Other financial assets at FVTLP BNV EFABENEMS
BhE B 837,189 - 837,189
Equity investments designated at EEREATET ARME
fair value through other HWRAZ iR E
comprehensive income - 2,500 2,500

1 96 Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)
Liabilities measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2022

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R Mz

31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

40. TRITEQAFERAFEER =)

NHERRE)
BATES BRI

RZBZZH+ZA=+—H

Fair value
measurement
using
ATEHERA
Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)
BAAEREA
FIR(E=R)
RMB'000
ARBFT

Derivative financial instruments

TEERITA

16,857

During the reporting period, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 — quoted price in active markets and
Level 2 — significant observable inputs and no transfers into or out of

Level 3 — significant unobservable inputs.

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the

year are as follows:

RBEME - F—R(ERTENRE)EFE—
R(EATEERBARER) A FEFEZHLES
% FZR(EATUBERBARE) T ESE AR
B -

FRE=RALFEIELHNT :

|
2023 2022
—EC-=HF - oF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFT
Derivative financial instruments MTHEEMIA
At 1 January K—A—H 16,857 34,278
Loss arising on change of fair value NEEZSHEEREGE - 2,731
Early redemption IRRTHE (16,932) (22,856)
Exchange realignment [ 5 % 75 2,704
At 31 December N+—A=+—8 - 16,857
BRBERERERART
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group
had cash at banks denominated in foreign currencies, and was
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from some currency
exposures, primarily with respect to HK$. Foreign exchange risk
arises from short-term deposits in HK$.

Details of cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 are disclosed in note 24.

In addition, the Group has currency exposures from its convertible
bonds as at 31 December 2022. The Group currently does not have
a foreign exchange hedging policy. However, management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign exchange exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the HK$ and
RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax due to changes in the retranslated value of
monetary assets:

41.

TrRIEMREREBERBER

AEFENERTAEENT2ELBINERR -
FEERRERBECRR - EFEEZLBEE
BERIBZERBROBER B2 -

S1NEEE [ Pex
HE-_T-_=FR-_FT-_—_F+-_A=+—HIE
FE - AEBEBLINETHERRITRS - WHER
HrEERBELAMIIMNERR  FEBEBTE
B o SNERR R 8 LB TTEMER R BT -

RZBZ=FR=_ZT-_—_F+=-A=+—H N
ARBEMNR SRR EEBWFBERNE24
R o

o - RZEZZF+ZA=1+—0 ' £5£EH
AERESMAEREY RS - A%EE B iwEs
ELHHIEE - AT - BIEEBeELINERR - I
HBREHEREEBLIRERIMNERR

TRITRBE R BTRARBESAIRT b
S5 T A BB AT R B8 (G A
SRETE)

[ —
Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
the HK$ (decrease) in
exchange rate  profit before tax
BER RRBE A F
EH (TR #m R
% RMB’000
% ARET T
31 December 2023 —E-=f+=-HA=+-—H
If RMB weakens against HK$ AANRE S ETEE -5% (220)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ EARE S ETHE 5% 220
31 December 2022 —E-—_%#+—-A=+—H
If RMB weakens against HK$ EARERBITRE -5% (1,087)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ EAREH B THE 5% 1,087
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties equal to the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties and related parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 20.

All the Group’s bank balances, restricted cash and structured
deposits are held in major financial institutions located in Chinese
Mainland and Hong Kong, which do not have a recent history
of default. The credit risks on bank balances, restricted cash and
structured deposits are limited.

The Directors make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of cash, cash in transit, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The Directors believe that there are no
significant increases in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the loss allowance of cash, cash in transit, financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
was immaterial under 12-months ECL calculations being classified as
stage 1.

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R KT 5T

31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

41. sREREERERBE#®)

=ERkR

AEBRHF T RERTREMRZPFERN
A EERREENGAMBHRRKRMAIIEEE
EREMEEIREE °

AEEERER A REEESENFE =TT LA

X5 ARENBERRABERERERGRRZ S
MEPEZERBRERRF o W - BUREHRISE
EE - MASEFMAENZRARL TERX -

BUHARBEELBEZRIGAZ ERERR Z#E
— B BB M 20357 -

REEW B RITERER  XRFIRE - K&
BIEFFIER P B A B e T B AR08k
MEIBESRMEERE o RITERER - ZRHR
T REBUERZEERBRABR

EERBBEATRE  BELRLAENES
REMEMAREEENAEEEN - HRE
EERE  FEABNSUR - EEEEURREM
BEN T BEER R WENEETTE5IE R -
EERR - BYIGHERIAR  ZELEZEER
ARSI ERBE D BAE —FEEMI12(E
ARYEEBEFENER S  E8He AR
IR - A tRGRIA R B b B R R R AL
TEKX -

ERBEREZERERAR
2023 F#f

199



Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41.

AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

TrRIEREEAERBE®)

RBE R

AEERAKEERDESHREATAEREES
ERER - ZTAZRIEBMTANEREE
(W8 S RYGRIR) 2 2| A R EB 2 RIRER

2.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end NG BN BRI B AT L) AR AL IR R L &
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted TEmaEIEAmT
payments, is as follows:
EEET
2023
—EC=E
Less than
On demand 12 months 1to 5 years Total
RERX SR+ =EA —ZAHE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTR AR¥TR ARBTR
Trade payables B S RIA - 95,483 919 96,402
Lease liabilities HEaE - 184,643 120,554 305,197
Financial liabilities included in AR ENFTE K
other payables and accruals EAERNEREE 109,425 - - 109,425
109,425 280,126 121,473 511,024
[
2022
“E-F
Less than
On demand 12 months 1to 5 years Total
wEk SR+ ZER —ZhF Ht
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®EFT AR®EFT AREFT AR®FT
Trade payables B ZRENFOA 2,952 104,492 - 107,444
Lease liabilities HEAE - 203,364 178,625 381,989
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t BiR{TfE 5k - 160,000 - 160,000
Convertible bonds AR ES - 4,413 476,577 480,990
Derivative financial instruments T4 €@ T A - 16,857 - 16,857
Financial liabilities included in SAEMENTIBE L
other payables and accruals EEFERNTRAE 137,730 - - 137,730
140,682 489,126 655,202 1,285,010
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41.

42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

The Group uses the gearing ratio (gearing ratio = total liabilities/total
assets) to monitor its capital structure. As of 31 December 2023,
the Group'’s gearing ratio decreased to 19.6% from 28.7% as of 31
December 2022, which was primarily due to the decrease in total
liabilities due to bank borrowings and the issue of convertible bonds
in 2023.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements,
no material events were undertaken by the Group subsequent to 31
December 2023.

Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R Mz

41.

42,

31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

TrRIEREEAERBE®)

EREHE
AEBEAEENT R BRAREAREREL
BN REFRBERLE - USRHEEB R
ERREERAL

REERBCE RGOS RBBEENRBRR
BERLEABWHEEITRAE - BERIHA
BERERE  AEBA AR N FRENR
B REES TREREITHR - AEETZT
RSN FEMM B RFE AR - HEZTZ=F
+ZA=+—AKk=ZZFT_=ZF+=ZA=+—HL
FE  AEBEAEEMNEE  BERTREHME
EaI& 1L -

rEEFEREEGBLR(BRBERUEEE)E
RENREE W_EBE-_=F+-_F=+—8 -
AEEEERBYEHBE-S_Z_F+=A4
=1+ —HH28.7% [EE19.6% * EEMHRIRTT
BRER T =FETBRESETE B ER

BERREMH
REAIMBHRRIEDS  AEMN-T-=F
ToAS T BAYEETEARE -
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& R R MiEE
31 December 2023 —E=-_=%+=-A=+—H

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

43. XA BRI K

ARARRRERAROABARAREROT

|
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R BARIEE 218,452 213,379
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 218,452 213,379
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Other financial assets at fair value through £ AP (EEF AfB2 8
profit or loss, current HEthemEE "D - 244,383
Prepayments and other receivables TR RRIE R EoAth e U 5RE 77 994
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITIF AR 87,335 385,292
Amounts due from subsidiaries i NG B/ 368,820 557,628
Total current assets REBEEHE 456,232 1,188,297
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Derivative financial instruments PTESBTA - (16,857)
Other payables and accruals E Ao 5IE R IERHE A (32,512) (28,778)
Total current liabilities REEEAE (32,512) (45,635)
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFEE 423,720 1,142,662
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #&ERRE A& 642,172 1,356,041
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Convertible bonds AR E S - (439,679)
Total non-current liabilities FRBEERE - (439,679)
NET ASSETS EEFE 642,172 916,362
EQUITY En
Share capital &% 2 16 16
Treasury shares EFRD (350,181) (324,459)
Reserves (note) EXAC D) 992,337 1,240,805
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 642,172 916,362
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Notes to Financial Statements B # ¥R R Mz

31 December 2023 —E-=%+_-HA=+—H
43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. KR A BARRTE)
COMPANY (Contd)
Note: MIsE
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: RATVEESRNT
|
Share-based Exchange
Share payment fluctuation Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
UBRG 5
Hpz EXRS
RDERE DE1 " REEF @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBFT AREFT ARBFTL ARBFT
Balance at 1 January 2022 A—E - —F—-A—AMEH 1,434,892 26,998 (89,704) 153,145 1,525,331
Total comprehensive expense FREEAXER
for the year - - - (130,648) (130,648)
Final 2021 dividend paid BIRAZZZ—FRERS (236,286) - - - (236,286)
Translation from functional mmag%%}ﬁ:ﬁ%iﬁ\l‘é
currency to presentation currency - - 63,097 - 63,097
Equity-settled share-based payment  LARRELE LR &
arrangement HER 2 (TREH - 32,768 - - 32,768
Exercise of share-based awards 171 ;%L‘AHQ X IRE 5,092 (18,549) - - (13,457)
At 31 December 2022 —E-_F+tZfA=1—H 1,203,698 41,217 (26,607) 22,497 1,240,805
Balance at 1 January 2023 m,g:;ﬁ—ﬂ—amﬁ% 1,203,698 Mm217 (26,607) 22,497 1,240,805
Total comprehensive income FR2ARALE
for the year - - - (26,473) (26,473)
Interim 2023 dividend paid BRAZZZ=FHHRE (257,955) - - - (257,955)
Translation from functional EUJQEEM?Q REFIEHE
currency to presentation currency - - 31,018 - 31,018
Equity-settled share-based payment — LABEEE AR D &
arrangement oS A NE - 24,401 - - 24,401
Exercise of share-based awards TERBRAZ AR 128 6,469 (25,928) - - (19,459)
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F
+-A=1+—H 952,212 39,690 4,411 (3,976) 992,337

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2024.

44. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

44. L EGE

ri-w

T

e

AUBHREAN T _NF—A_++tRAK=ES
SHER BT -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hF R IEH R

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEEE
[ e—
For the year ended December 31
BE+-A=t—HEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=f R ofF TR —F ZTZTF —h&F
RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥TRT ARETIT ARETT ARBTIT ARBTT
Revenue ek 2,743,628 2,343,353 2,869,963 2,181,502 3,186,040
Gross profit E7 1,438,161 1,289,484 1,658,393 1,210,156 1,801,400
Profit before tax G TbE 214,149 54,731 450,990 200,058 545,210
Profit for the year attributable RAEHEE AELFA
to owners of the Company i A 115,576 25,283 342,424 151,221 407,448
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EBERERE
[ eee—
As at December 31
R+=—A=+-—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ZEI=ZF 2o T “TEF TNF
RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB‘000  RMB'000
AR¥ETRT ARETT AREBTIT ARBTT ARBTT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,762,434 2,888,207 2,850,014 2,590,676 2,716,671
Current assets RENVEE 2,130,825 2,843,512 3,788,021 4,324,215 2,762,245
Total assets BEE 4,893,259 5,731,719 6,638,035 6,914,891 5,478,916
Total equity BRERS 3,935,410 4,088,309 4,210,308 4,100,853 4,238,409
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities ETEAE 273,665 728,841 1,560,815 1,552,555 501,638
Current liabilities mEAE 684,184 914,569 866,912 1,261,483 738,869
Total liabilities BERE 957,849 1,643,410 2,427,727 2,814,038 1,240,507
Net current assets MENEEFE 1,446,641 1,928,943 2,921,109 3,062,732 2,023,376
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERTB A & 4,209,075 4,817,150 5,771,123 5,653,408 4,740,047

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited

Annual Report 2023



72248
B)ZEPE
ZHou He Y

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited

B RIREREZERER AT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RASESEMZNERAR] )
Stock Code B 155 : 1458

www.zhouheiya.cn



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Business Review and Outlook
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management
	Directors’ Report
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to Financial Statements
	Five-Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover



